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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of PayU Payments Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consclidated financial statements of PayU Payments Private Limited (the
“Parent”} and its subsidiaries (the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”}, which
comprise the Consclidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Consclidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive loss}, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accerding to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”} in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under sectiont 133 of the Act, {"Ind AS"} and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, and their consolidated loss, their consolidated
total comprehensive loss, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
("SA”s) specified under section 143 {10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financiai statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code
of Ethics. We beiieve that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficlent and appropriate te provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

» The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at
the date of this auditor’s report is information included in the Director's repert, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and cur auditor's report therecn. The
Director’s Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

= Qur opinion on the consclidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

» In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries, to the extent it relates to these
entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditers and consider whether the cther
information identified above when it becomes available is materially inconsistent with the consclidated
financial statements or cur knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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e  When we read the Director’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA 720 ‘The
Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consclidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, censolidated financial performance including other comprehensive loss, consolidated cash
flows and consclidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are respensible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reascnable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and compieteness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consclidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Parent Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the geing concern basis
of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intend to liquidate their respective entities or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The raspective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are aiso responsible for overseeing tie
financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consclidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and teo issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasconably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consalidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consoclidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsibie for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to consclidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

 FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management.
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+« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group te continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consclidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probabie that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of cur work; and (i) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the consclidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal financial cantrols that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total assets
of Rs. 875.05 million as at March 31, 2025, total revenues of Rs. 641.89 million and net cash inflows/
(cutflows) amounting to Rs, (86.04) million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consclidated financial statements. These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us
by the Management and our opinion on the consciidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary is based solely on such unaudited financial
statements. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
Management, these financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Cther Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to financial statements
certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained zll the information and explanations which te the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

k) In our opinion, proper bocks of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Group including relevant records so far as it
appears fromiocur examination of those bocks, except (a) for not keeping backup on & daily basis of
such books of account maintained in electronic mode in a server physically located in India by one of
the subsidiary and (refer note 59 to the financial statements) (b) in relation to compliance with the
requirements of audit trail, refer paragraph (i}{vi} below.
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<)

d)

€)

g)

h)

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consclidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the bocks of account maintained for
the purpose of preparation of the consclidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent Company as on
March 31, 2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, none of the directors of
the Group cempanies is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 frem being appointed as a directer in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, are
as stated in paragraph (b} above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internai financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and the operating effectiveneass of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A" which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent company and subsidiaries companies to whom
the internal financial contrels over financial reporting is applicable. Cur report expresses an unmeoedified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls with reference to
consclidated financial statements of those companies.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given te us, the
Parent and subsidiary companies being private companies, section 197 of the Act related to the
managerial remuneration is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given te us:

1} The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consclidated
financial position of the Group - Refer Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements;

ity Provisicn has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the applicable
law or acccunting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on leng-term contracts
including derivative contracts - Refer Note 21 and 52 to the consclidated financial statements;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferrad to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Parent, and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India. Refer Note 53
to the consolidated financial statements;

iv) (a) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have
represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in the note 58(ii} to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds} by the Parent or any of such subsidiaries te or in any other person(s} or
entity(ies), including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of
the Parent or any of such subsidiaries ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. :
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v)

vi)

{b} The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries which are cempanies
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have
represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and betief, other than as disclosed
in the note 58(iii} to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Parent or any of such subsidiaries from any person{s} or entity{ies), including
foreign entities (*Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or atherwise, that the Parent or any of such subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party {“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{c} Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances perfermed by us, nothing has come tc our that has
caused us cor the other auditers to believe that the representations under sub-clause {i)
and {ii) of Rule 11{e}, as provided under {a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

The Parent and its subsidiaries which are companies incorperated in India, whose financiat
statements have been audited under the Act, have not declared or paid any dividend during the
year and have not proposed final dividend for the year.

Based on ocur examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below,
the Parent, its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have used accounting software for
maintaining their respective bocks of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, which
have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log} facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software systems:

In respect of Parent Company!:

a) certain accounting software used for maintaining accounting records of revenue and cost, the
accounting software did not have the audit trail feature enabled throughout the year;

b) the accounting software which was used for maintaining accounting records related to all
general ledgers, the accounting software did not have the audit trail feature enabled at the
application level.

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not cecme across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with in respect of the accounting scftware for the pericd for which the audit trail
feature was operating.

Additionally, the audit trail that was enabled and operated for the year ended March 31, 2024, has
been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for recoerd retention, as stated
in Note 60 to the financial statements.

In respect of first subsidiary (Paysense Services India Private Limited):

a) the accounting software which was used for maintaining accounting records related to
maintenance of loan origination by the Company, did not have the audit trail feature enabled
during the period starting from April 01, 2024 to May 08, 2024 at the application level.

b) the accounting software which was used for maintaining accounting records related to
collections made by the Company, did not have the audit trail feature enabled during the period
starting from April 01, 2024, to March 06, 2025 at the applicaticn level.

c) the accounting software which was used for maintaining accounting records related to ali
general ledgers, did not have the audit trail feature enabled at the application level.
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Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with in respect of the accounting software for the peried for which the audit trait
feature was operating.

As audit trail feature was not enabiled for the vear ended March 31, 2024, reporting under Rule 11
(@) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the
statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable, as stated in Note 60 to the financial
statements.

In respect of second subsidiary (Lazypay Private Limited):

a) the accounting scftware which was used for maintaining accounting records related to all
general ledgers, did not have the audit trail feature enabled at the application level.

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with in respect of the accounting software for the period for which the audit trail
feature was operating.

Additicnally, the audit trail that was enabled and operated for the year ended March 31, 2024, has
been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, as stated
in Note 60 to the financial statements.

In respect of third subsidiary (PayU Finance India Private Limited):

a) the accounting software which were used for maintaining accounting records of Small Micro
Business loan balances and its related general ledgers, did not have the audit trail feature
enabled throughout the year;

b} the accounting software which was used for maintaining accounting records related to
maintenance of loan origination by the Company, did not have the audit trail feature enabied
during the period starting from April 01, 2024 to May 08, 2024 at the application level;

¢) the accounting software which was used for maintaining accounting records related to
collections made by the Company, did not have the audit trail feature enabled during the period
starting from April 01, 2024 to March 06, 2025 at the application level;

d) the accounting software which was used for maintaining accounting records related to all
general ledgers, did not have the audit trail feature enabled at the application levei.

Further, during the course of cur audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with in respect of the accounting software for the peried for which the audit trail
feature was operating.

Additionally, the audit trail that was enabled and operated for the year ended March 31, 2024, has
been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, as stated
in Note 60 to the financial statements.

In respect of fourth subsidiary {PayU Digital Labs Private Limited):

a) the accounting software used for maintaining accounting records of revenue, did not have the
audit trail feature enabled throughout the year.

b) the accounting software which was used for maintaining accounting records related to all
general ledgers, did not have the audit trail feature enabled at the application level.

| |
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2.

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with in respeact of the accounting software for the period for which the audit trait
feature was operating.

Additionally, the audit trail that was enabled and operated for the year ended March 31, 2024, has
been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, as stated
in Note 60 to the financial statements,

In respect of fifth subsidiary (PayU India Innovation Private Limited):

a} the accounting software used for maintaining accounting records of revenue, did not have the
audit trail feature enabled throughout the year.

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not Come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with in respect of the accounting software for the period for which the audit trail

Additionally, the audit trail that was enabled and operated for the year ended March 31, 2024, has
been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, as stated
in Note 60 to the financial statements.

With respect to the matters specified in clauze (xxi} of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the Companies
{Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 {"CARC"/ “the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO
feports issued by us and the auditors of respective companies included in the consolidated financial
statements to which reporting under CARG is applicable, as provided to ys by the Management of the Parent,
we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports
of the said companies inciuded in the consolidated financial statements except for the following:

r Clause Number of
Name of the CARO Report with
Company qualification or
adverse remark
Clause 7(b)2
Clause 11(c)3
Ciause 174
Clause 155
. Clause 7{b)?
f aysense Services U72100MH2015PTC266824 | Wholly Owned Subsidiary | Clause 174
ndia Private Limited
Clauge 195
Clause 3(c)s
Clause 3(d)6
Clause 11{a)?
Clause 17

CIN Nature of Relationship

Payl Payments

Private Limited U72400MH2006PTC293037 The Holding Company

Payl Finance India

Private Limited UB5910MH1992PTCO68664 Wholly Owned Subsidiary

PayU Digital Labs
Private Limited

U72200KA2080PTC028279 Wholly Owned Subsidiary | Clause 7(a)

1 Clause pertaining to delay in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
2 Clause pertaining to statutory dues which has not been deposited on account of any dispute,
*Clause pertaining to Whistle Biowar Complaints received during the year.

4 Clause pertaining to cash losses fncurred,
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* Clause pertaining to support letter obtained by the company for going concern,
& Clause pertaining to loans/ advances overdue for a period of more than ninety days.

’ Clause pertaining to fraud on the company notice or reported during the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No., 117366W/wW - 100018}

23»." Tufs .

Robin Joseph
(Partner)
(Membership No. 060408)

Place: Gurugram
(UDIN:255120298MLXUR3312)

Date: June 16, 2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred tc in paragraph 1{g} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatoery Requirements” section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™)

In conjunction with ocur audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as at and for the
year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to conselidated
financial statements of Payl) Payments Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Parent”} and its subsidiary
companies which are companies incorperated in India, as of that date.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company's management and Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to consclidated financial statements based on the internal control with reference to
consolidated financial statements criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAI)”". These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Parent and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India,
based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note"} issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143{10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial cantrols with reference to consalidated financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Cur audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
ar error.

We believe that the zudit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Parent
and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India.
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statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the Possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to

ternal financial control with reference to consolidated financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate,

Opinion

internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on
the criteria for internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements established by the
respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Deloitte Haskins & sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
{Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W - 100018)

Robin Joseph

(Partner)

(Mernbership No, 060408)
(UDIN:255120293MLXUR3312)

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 16, 2025
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Payl Payments Private Limited
CIN: U?I#ﬂﬂﬂhzﬂﬂﬂ'fﬂ!ﬁﬂi?

Consolidated Balance Shagt as at March 31, 2025
Amounts in TNR millions, unless stherwise stated

i Az at Az at
particulars g March 31, 2035 March 312024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fragavty, plant and equipment 3 358.03 146,61
Rlaht of usa assets 4 239.36 906.50
Goodwill 5 16,525.83 7,514,517
Other intangible assets s 3,252.23 223.20
Financial assets

(i} Investments & 77.04 77.04
{ii} Loans 7 12,715.83 12,882.10
(i} Other financial assets 8 836.95 832.87
Deferred tax assory {net) ] 120.63 -
Tax assers (net) g 1,197,532 1,295.63
Other non-cirrent assets 11 965.82 1 74
Total non-current assats 36,813,233 25003.91
Current assets
financial assats:
(i} Trade receivabies 12 3,645,609 1,664.57
(i) Cash and cagh equivalents 13 14,570,732 10,777.17
(I#) Bank halance ather than {ii} abave 14 26,193.40 4,231.42
(iv) Loans 7 30,265,725 18,670.05
(v} Other financial assets 8 T.148,74 3,890,42
Cantract assets 15 625,63 173.25
Other current assets 11 P S 1,583, 146270
Total current assets E4.032.93 40.BE9.58
TOTAL ASSETS __éemz- 65,873,409
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16 32,.218.20 J0,153.14
Other eguity 17 2,975.62 {5.234,04)
Equity Attributable to owners - 3519387 24,919,194
Nan controlling interest 18 1,258.13 - -
Total equity 36,451 95 24,918.1a
Liabilities
Non-current liabifities
Financial labilities
{n Bumnnmpi- 19 10,452.09 12,632.75
(i) Lease Habilities 26 720.25 764.62
(1) Other financial liakifities 24 3,876.74 366,72
Contract labilities i5 243,89 397,74
Deferred tax labilities (Net) 9 752.27 -
Provisions 21 371,87 288.97
Tetal non-zurrent liabilities 16,417.11 14,425,
R 1333580
Current Labilities
Financial liabHijes
1£3] Barrowings is 27,726.39 18,325.35
{1} Leace liabilithes 24 227.28 202.24
(i) Trade payablaes
= Tatal outstanding duas of MHCro enterprises and small enterprises ang 22 83.19 13.12
= Total oulstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smal 23

enterprises 2,646,149 1,932.45
(v) Other finaneia) liabilities 24 34,736.28 4,728,584
Contraet [iahilithes is 931.66 501,89
Other current fiabilities 22 1,629,586 741.82
Provisions 21 96.31 B5.14

Total current liabilities

6807711 26,528.55

Total kabilities 84,494,232 40,954,335
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,20,845.17 65 873,49

The above Consolidated Balance Sheet shouid be read in conjunction with the ACCOMPANYIng notes,

This is the Consolidated Balante shaet referred o In our report of even date,

For and an behalf af board of directors of
Pavl Payments Private Limited

A%

Anirban Mu e
i Executive Director g

For Deloitte Haskins & Selils LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firn Registration Number: 117356W/W- 100018

Toks T

Robin Joseph
Partner
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PayU Payments Private Limited

CIN: U72400MH2006PTC293037

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

B For the Year ended For the Year ended
I
ferticdigre fistes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revanue from operations 25 55,629.7% 45,273.87
Gther income 26 335.24 473.96
Total 5§‘965.13 45,753.83
Expenses
Cost of services 27 42,392.17 33,936.64
Employee benefits expense 28 6,676.20 ¥,135.85
Finance costs 28 91.98 108.95
Depreciation and amertisation expense 30 372.43 335.18
Imnpairment allowance and write-off of financial assets 31 4,618.97 2,868.00
Other expenses 32 4,310.05 4,067.24
Total 58,461.50 48,451,856
Loss before exceptional items and tax {2,496,67) (2,698.03)
Exceptional item: 33 - (36.54)
Loss before tax {2,496.67) {2,734.57)
Tax expense
Current tax expense 34 {7.76} 1,412.16
Deferred tax (cradit)/expense 34 {B8.27} 148,38
Total tax expense {16.03} 1,560,548
Loss after tax (2,480.64) {4,285,11)
Other comprehensive ncome/ {Ioss}: 35
Items that will be reclassifi o profit or los:
- Exchange differences on translation of foratgn operations {8.86) (23.89)
- Incarne tax rejating to these items - -
= .
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 2.74 21.38
- Income tax relating to these iterms - =
Total other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year {6.12) (2,51}
Total comprehensive [oss for the year {2,486.77) (4,297.62)
Earnings per Equity Share of Face Value of 7 10 Each
Basic EPS (in ¥} 36 {0.81) (1.49)
Diluted EPS (in ¥) {0.81) (1.43)

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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PayU Payments Private Limited
CIN: U?HMHHZNSPN:!!SH?

Consolidated Cash flow statomaent For the perlod ended March 31, 2025
Amounts in TNR millisns, unless otherwise stated

— —
Particulars

For the Year ended For the Year ended

Cash flow from aoperating activities
Lass before tax after exceptianal items

Adivstments for

Depreciation gng Amortisation expanses

Impairmant joas 20 Loans

Impadinment loss on fingncial assgts

Interest incoma on bank deposity

Interest income on SEOUfitY deposits

Interest income an Incomae tax refung

Intangible written off

ESOP mapanse (R5Y)

Finance cogt

LosE on account af early termination of leases

(Prafit) / Loss an sale of propenty, olant and equipment fnet}
Provigion for chargehack

Provision no lenger requiredy cradit balance written back
Unreatised Galn an farelan CUTTETCY transactions and transiations {nat)
Business combination adjustment

Operating profic before working capita) <hanges

Increags in other BLiets g contract assets
Increase in loan gt amertised cost

Dmnmffmmut:l in ethir hank balanges

Increage in tradg payahly

I!n:muif{dnmanj In provisions

]ﬂﬂu!ﬂtﬂbﬂﬂlll In othar finaneia) liabititles
rnm-.usq.-f{mmj in other Kabilitles ang contract Kahilities

Caxh generated fromy {uged in} cparations

Income taxes paig {net of refund)
Net cash outflow from cperating activities (A)

Cash fMlows from investing activities
Purchass of proparey, slant and eguipmant's
Purchase of intangibie asserg
sale of property, lant & equipment
(Investment) ¢ Maturity in bank depasits (net)
Invastment in Subsidiary (net off cash and cash equivatent fram subsidiary)
Irberast received gn bank depasits
MNet cash inflowy [eutfow) fram investing activitias {B)

Cash flows from financing activities
I%ue of chare cagita) {Inc!uding Pramium and issue expensas}
Pmcnd_-.,r{mpa-.-mmt} frosm/ o) borrowings {net)
Prineigal eloment of least paymants
Interast element o lease paymaents
Settlemant funds - marchant §nd custamerg {net
Net cash inflow from financing activities {C}

D. Net changes in cash and cagh wquivalants {A+B+C}
E. Opening eash and cagh equivilents

——Marh 32,2035 March 31, 2034

(2,496.67} (2.734.57}
372.43 335.18
4,525.83 2,770.05
93.14 97.95
(126.62) (109.23)
{£.98} {6.62)
{40.60) {56.83}
. 173.03
564.84 1,663,86
91,98 108.95
6.71 {1.69}
{3.07 {1,32)
73.20 134.96
(.48} {6.29)
(7.30) {19.17)
- 3,235.35
3,046.40 4,983,631
(859,79) 766.11
1,983.26 (2,540,70)
(88.84) (1.178.61)
{15,958,75) (17,838 53;
{964.82) {874.23)
627,79 112.2¢
6.68 {89.16)
{1,345.53) (811.97)
376,58 217.78

[12,680.01) (17,346.51)

B— 5 s )

F. Closing cash and cash equivalents
h n h ivalents as par above Lomprize of the following ;
Particulars

— I
Balances with banlks

Deposits wirh original maturity of e than three months
Balances in Escrow/Nods) accounts

Dank ovardran

Bal. per stat.

of zash flows

Chertorsg | @,

Accountanis

(190.77) (122.71)
(96.43) (142.31)
15,51 3.26
{1,619.653 414.92
(4,713.44) -
1286, 109.23
T4 T
— 262,39
15,911.49 2,i73.5%
5,490.43 15,438,47
{208.08) {168.46)
(88.42) (97,17}
20,045,332 -
———_._1_.21,___ —_— -
— L,155.68 — — 27,3454%
22,176.99 {11393
BE}7E7 5. 767.08
= EEiE e gg'l?w.i‘r_'
Az at As at
Mareh 33, 3025 March 31, 2034
6,928.74 3,332.76
7,641.93 7,444,413
20,049,32 -

M— T —
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PayU Payments Private Limited

CIN: U72400MH2006PTC293037

Consolidated Cash flow statement For the period ended March 31, 2025
Amounts In INR milliens, uniess otherwise stated

Notes:

1. The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method® as set out in Ind AS 7 - ‘Cash Flow Statements’,
2, Figuras in brackets indicate cash outgo except for items considered separately.

3} Changes In iiabilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars Opening Cash flow (net) Addition Others Closing
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Lease fiability 701.96 {266.64) 452.06 79.47 966,85
Borrowings 16,163.35 15,438.47 - {638.72) 30,963.1¢
For the year ended March 31, 2025

Lease liability 966.85 {294.50} 193.04 82.13 247,52
Borrowings 30,%63.10 5,450,43 - 1,724.95 38,178.48

The abova Cash fiow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to in our repart of even date,
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise}

1.

General information

PayU Payments Private Limited (“the Company or the Holding Company”} was incorporated in India on May
24, 2006 and is domiciled in India. The Company is a subsidiary of MIH Payments Holding B.V. from 20
December 2023. On December 20, 2023, MIH India {(Mauritius) Limited transferred a total of equity shares
to MIH Payments Holding B.V. As a result of this transfer, MIH Payments Holding B.V. became the parent
company. The Company is incorporated and domiciled in India under the provisions of the Companies Act
applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at Wallace Towers (Erstwhile known as
‘Shiv Building’}, First Floor, Crossing of Sahar Road, Vile parle {East), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400057.
The holding company together with its subsidiaries are hereinafter referred to as “"The Group”.

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of:

a) Digital payment services i.e., Payment gateway services for e-commerce transaction, risk-based
authentication and payment security service. It provides solutions ranging from mobile payments, fraud
and risk management, prepaid solutions, and a host of meirchant services. It is also engaged in software
solutions and other information technology enabled services which develop and deploy sclutions for various
digital payment channels, including UPI {Unified Payments Interface), Real-Time Payments, and other
mobile-based payment platforms.

b) Digital financial services i.e., business lending credit by way of personal loan and deferred credit facility
for short term duration. It also offers innovative payment and financing related services to Indian
consumers.

Summary of material accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

i) The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group comprises of Consclidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2025 and the related Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 and
material acceunting policies and explanatory notes ({hereinafter collectively referred to as
(“*Consolidated Financial Statements”).

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the management of the Holding
Company in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) prescribed under the Saction 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended from time fo time and other accounting principles genersily accepted in Indiz and
presentation requiremnents of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

i) New and amended standards notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 9 September 2024 and 28 September 2024
notified the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Second Amendment Rules, 2024 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Third Amendment Rules, 2024, respectively, which amended/notified
certain accounting standards {see below), and are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 Aprii 2024

» Ipsurance contracts - Ind AS 117; and
s Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback - Amendments to Ind AS 116

These amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognisad in current or prior peried.
Historical convention
The Consolidated Financial Statements has been prepared on a going concern basis, historical cost
basis and on an accrual basis, except for following assets and liabilities which have been measured at
fair value:

a) Certain financial assets and liabitities

h) Defined benefit plans — Plan assets and
¢} Cash settied share-based payments

*45‘ in
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement andfor disclosure purposes in these consolidated financiel statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactfons that are within the scope of Ind
AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in
Ind AS 36.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the consclidated financial statements and the accompanied notes have been
rounded off to the nearest millions as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

2.2 Basis of consclidation

The Group's Consoclidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of Helding Company and
all of its subsidiaries as at March 31, 2025. The financial staternents of the entities used for the purpose of
consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Holding Company.

Subsidiaries are ail entities over which, Holding Company exercises control if and only if it bas the following:

a) has the power over the investee;
by exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity; and
c} the ability to use its power over the entity to affect the amount of its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that 2 majority of voting rights result in contrel. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

a) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

b} The Group’s voting rights and petential voting rights

c} The size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative fo the size and dispersion of the holdings
of the other voting rights holders.

d) any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous sharehalders’ meetings.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein, Those
interests of non-controlling shareholders that are present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of nat assets upon liquidation may initially be measured at fair value or at the non-
contrelling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.

Non-controlling interast acquired through acquisition of Mindgate Solutions India Private Limited has been
recognized at proportionate share of the fair value of acquiree’s net asset method.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that thare
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consoclidation of 3 subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group
gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The difference between the cost of investment in subsidiaries {(investee company) to the Group and the
proportionate share in the equity of the investee Company as at the date of acquisition of stake is
recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be.
Goodwill arising on consolidation is tested for impairment at the Balance Sheet date. Non-controlling
interests which represent part of the net profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries that are not, directly
or indiractly, owned or controlled by the Group, are excluded.
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Payl Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise)

The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together
like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intarcompany transactions, balances and
unreslised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
palicies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the group.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group include subsidiaries listed in the table below:

: Country | 9% of Equity Interest
# | Name of Subsidiary Nature of relationship ;:)f March 31, | March 31,
ncorpor
A 2025 2024
ation
Payl Innovations Private Limited
{formerly known as PayU India - . o g
1 Settlement and Processing Private Wholly owned subsidiary India 100% 100%
Limited} B
2 fﬂ;’;r‘a“ce i R cys Step down subsidiary India 100% 100%
3 f;‘_'l' i:gse Services India Private |\ 11y owned subsidiary | India 100% 100%
Lazypay Private Limited {formerly
4 | known as Paysense Consultancy Wholly owned subsidiary India 100% 100%
Services India Private Limited)
Payl) Digital Labs {formerly
5 | known as Enstage Software Whelly owned subsidiary India 100% 100%
Private Limited) !
5 | Wibmo Inc. Whollvy owned subsidiary USA 1009% 100%
Mindgate Solutions Private s . N ¥
7 Lirnited Subsidiary India 70%
8 | Mindqgate Pte Ltd {(Singapore) Step down subsidiary _Singapore 70% B
9 | Mindgate Solutions FZ LLC-UAE Step down subsidiary UAE 70% -
10 | Mindgate Solutions UK Ltd Step down subsidiary UK 70% -
i1 | MIndgate Solutions Inc USA Step down subsidiary USA 70% -

2.3 Classification of assets and liabilities

The Group presents assets and lisbilities in the consclidated balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when:

a} it is expected to be realized, or intended to be sold ar consumed in normal operating cycle;

b) itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

d) itis cash or & cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-cuirent.
A liability is current when:
a} itis expected to be settled in its normal operating cycle;
t) itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
¢} it is due fto be sattled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
d) there is nio unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting peried.
All other lizbilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities, respectively.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash

or cash equivalents, The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purposes of
classification of its assets and liabilities.

2| Chartered |®
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise)

2.4 A) Business combination and Goodwill

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition method under the provisions of Ind
AS 103, Business Combinations. The purchase price in an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the
assets transferred, equity instrumeants issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of acquisition,
which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group. The purchase price also includes the fair
value of any contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair value on the date of acquisition.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date, except that:

a) deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind AS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

b) assets {or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 are
measurad in accordance with that Standard.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting pericd in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period, or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair vajue of the net assets acquired
is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assessas whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to
measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assignad to those units.

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Group acquired stake in *‘Mindgate Solutions Private Limited”
{Mindgate). As per the Shareholding agreement (SHA), the Group acquired initially 42.8% shareholding on
a fully diluted basis and is obligated to purchase additional 27.2% stake for which a liability is recognised.
Accordingly, effective such date Mindgate has bacome a subsidiary of the Group. This acquisition allows the
Group to expand its digital payments business. Refer Note 46 of the consolidated financial statements.

2.4 B} Commaon control transactions

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using the
pooling of interest method. Under pooling of interest method, the assets and liabilities of the combining
entities or businesses are reflected at their carrying amounts after making adjustments necessary to
harmonisa the accounting policies. The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior
periods is restated as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period
in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. The identity of the reserves
is preserved in the same form in which they appeared in the financial statements of the transferor and the
difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration
in tha form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital
reserve, The consideration for the business combination may consist of securities, cash or other assets.
Securities shall be recorded at nominal value. In determining the value of the consideration, assets other
than cash shall be considered at their fair values.

During the vear ended March 31, 2024, the Holding Company, directly or through its subsidiaries, acquired
businesses from entities which were ultimately controlled by the same parties who control it, both before
and after the business combination. These transactions were accounted as common control transaction as
per Appendix C of Ind AS 103,
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise)

2.5 Foreign currency transactions

Items included in the Consclidated Financial Statements of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates i.e. the “functional currency”. The
Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, which is the functional currency of all
entities in the Group.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional
currancy at exchange rates prevailing at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measurad in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using
the exchange rates at the date of the initial transaction.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign subsidiaries are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date. Income and expense
iterns are franslated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that pericd, in which case the exchange rates at the date of trapsactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in &
foreign exchange translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate}.

2.6 Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers
The group has the following main revenue sources: -

a) Revenue from Digital Payment Services
b} Revenue from Digital Financial Services
¢} Revenue from Authentication Services

a. Revenue from Digital payment services

Revenue from Digital Payment Services mainly consist of revenue from Payment Gateway business. Here
the Group works directly with banks and payment card networks so that its merchants do not need to
rmanage the complex systems, rules, and requirements of the payments industry. The group primatrily earns
revenue from fees paid by merchants to receive payments from their customers. The group collects the
transaction amount from the merchant's customer's bank, net of acquiring interchange and assessment
fees, processing fees, and bank settlement fees paid to third-party payment processors and financial
institutions. The group satisfies its performance obligations and therefore recognizes the transaction fees
as revenue upon authorization of a transaction by the merchant’s customer's bank.

b. Revenue from Digital Financial Services

Revenue from Digital Financial Services mainly consist of interest income from the Group’s digital lending
operations. Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method applied to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as
measured at FYTPL, taking into account the expected timing and amount of cash flows.

c. Revenue from Authentication services

Revenue from Authentication services are mainly transaction based revenue arrangement, where the
Company provides authentication services to its customers which are predominantly financial institutions.
Revenue is recognized at a point in time when the parformance obligation is completed i.e. truncation is
authenticated at a price which is specified in the contract with the customer.

For other revenue arrangements of the group, revenue is recognized as when the group performs its
performance obligation as per the contractual agreement with its customers.
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise}

Contract assets, Customer acquisition cost and Contract Liabilities
a. Contract Asset:

Contract assets are recognized when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract
assets are classified as unbilled revenue (only act of invoicing is pending} when there is unconditional right
to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

b. Customer acquisition cost:

The group capitalizes incremental and directly attributable costs of obtaining a customer contract, such as
sales commissions, if they are expected to be recovered, These costs are amortised over the expected life
of the loan. At each reporting date, capitalized costs are assessed for impairment and written down if the
recoverable amount is less than the carrying ameount. Other acquisition costs which are either not
incremental or directly attributable to a customer contract are expensed off as and when incurred.

c. Contract liability:

Contract liability {unearned and deferred revenue) is recognized when there is billings in excess of
revenues,

Advance from customer is the obligation to transfer goods or services to & customer for which the Group
has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers
goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is received.

Advance from customer and deferred revenue are recognized as revenue when the Group fulfils its
performance obligations under the contract {i.e., transfers control of the related goods or render services
to the customer).

2.7 Property, plant and equipment {*PPE”}

PPE are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset is derecognized when replacad. All other repeirs and maintenance are charged to
consolidatad statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of assets in construction phase which not ready to use before reporting date are disclosed under
‘Capital work in progress’. These assets are carried at cost less impairment if any and are not depreciated.
Depreciation commences once the assets are available for use as intended by management. When
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are reguired to be replaced at intervals, the group
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to allecate the cost of the assets, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Particulars Useful life as per Useful life as per
schedule II of management
Companies Act estimate
Furniture and fixtures - 10 years 5 to 10 vears
Office sauipment 5 years 3 to 5 years
Computers, data processing units and communication 3 years 3 to 6 years
equipment
Seirvers & vears £ years
Vehicles 8 Years 8 years
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/ K Ins p:
_*-' Chariorod |
> Accoumantsa @ J

-



PaylU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Censclidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise}

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life or the lease term, unless the
entity expects to use the assets beyond the lease term.

The useful lives have been determined based on lives specified in Part “C” of Schedule II of the Companies
Act 2013 except for furniture and fixtures, computers and office equipment which are depreciated based
on the internal assessment of the management, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets.

Individual assets costing less than INR 5,000 are depreciated in full in the year of purchase,

The asset's residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted prospectively
if appropriate.

An asset's carrying value is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
value is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

De-recognition

An item of PPE is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use.
Gains and losses arising from disposai of an itern of PPE are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceads and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss.

2.8 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Following, initial recognition, intangible assets
with finite lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment osses, if
any.

Internally generated intangible assets

Research and development cost

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development cost, are not capitalized and the related
expenditure is reflected in consolidated statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure
is incurred, Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use,

Capitalized development cost

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique assets
controlled by the group are recognised as intangible assets where the following criteria are met:

a) it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use

b) management intends to complete the asset and use or sell it

¢} there is an ability to use or sell the asset

d) it can be demonstrated how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits

e) adeguate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the asset are available, and

f} the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributabie costs that are capitalized as part of the asset include employee costs and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Fellowing initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less
any accurmulated amortization and accumnulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when
development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected
future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 21, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise)

Research expenditure and developmeant expenditure that do not meet the criteria given above are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Other intangible asseis

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties
and other taxes {other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities) and any directly
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and
rebates.

Subsequent axpenditure on an intangible asset after its purchase/completion is recognized as an expense
when incurred unless it is probable that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic
benefits in excess of its originally assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can be
measured and attributed to the asset reliably, in which case such expenditure is added to the cost of the
asset.

Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, The estimated useful
life and arnortization method are reviewed at the end of sach reporting pericd, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accountad for on a prospective basis.

Amortisation method and period

The group amortises intangible assets with a finite useful life based on management internal assessment,
using the straight-line method, over the following periods:

Name of Intangible Useful Life |
:_Ccmputer software & software development cost 3to 5 years |
| Trademark & technology 7 -10 years
| Customer relationship 10 -12 years
| Customer contracts 10 years
i Order Backlog 1-2 years

Intangible assets acquired int a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are
recognised initially at their fair value at the acquisition date {which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial racognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are repoited at cost
less accurmulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as infangible assets
that are acquired separately.

De-recognition

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the
Consolidated Statermnent of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecegnised.

2.8 Impairment
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting pericd, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss {if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time valua of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

if tha recoverable amount of an assat {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Non-financial assets other than goodwil] that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at the end of each reporting period. The reversal of such an impairment loss is recognized
in ™ in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

2.1¢ Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
oF equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Classification of financial instruments

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:
» Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost
» Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
» Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group recognizes & financial asset in its consolidated balance sheet when it becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrurnent. All financial assets are recognized initiaily af fair vaiue, plus in the
case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL), transaction costs that are
attributable to the acguisition of the financial asset. However, trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business medel in which an asset is held such that
it best reflects the way the business is managed and is consistent with the information provided to
management The information considered includes:

a. the objectives for the portfolio, in particular, management’s strategy of focusing en earning contractual
interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realizing cash flows through die
sale of the assets;

b. the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is hot considered in
isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Group’s stated objective for managing the
financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realized.

c. the risks that affect the performance of the business model, the financial assets held within that
business model and how those risks are managed.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

As a second step of its classification process the Group assesses the contractual terms of financial assets
to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recegnition, ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
assocuated w:rh the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for r:rthEr basuc
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Payl Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millicns unless stated otherwise}

lending risks and costs, as well as profit margin. In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

In making the assessment, the Group considers:

aj reset terms

b) contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

¢) prepayment and extension terms; and

d) features that modify consideration of the time value of money - e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates

Subsequent measurement

For subsequent measurement, the Group classifies a financial asset in accordance with (i} the Group’s
business model for managing the financial asset; and {ii) the contractuai cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset. Accordingly, the Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories:

a.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Debt Instruments

b.

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) the Group’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that rapresent
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

This category applies to cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial assets of
the Group including the loans which are sold by the entities engaged in credit business through direct
assignment to third parties. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effactive interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset (or
group of financial assets) and of allocating the interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a8 shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
foreclosure, call and similar options} but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes
all feas paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts,

The amortised cost of a financial asset is also adjusted for loss allowance, if any.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI}

Debt instruments

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

a) The Group’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b} The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that represent
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes
are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest
income and impairment losses and its reversals in the consolidated statement of profit and foss.
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise)

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is
reclassified from equity to the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

¢. Financial assets measured at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Itemns at fair value through profit or loss comprise:
« Investments (including equity shares) held for trading;
« Items specifically designated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition; and

» Debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent sglely payments of principal
and interest.

Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised .at fair value, with
transaction costs recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. Subsequently, they are
measured at fair value and any gains or losses are recoghised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as
they arise,

Other Equity Investments

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recegnised in Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Group has elected to
present the value changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’. However, dividend on such equity investments
is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Company's right to receive payment is established.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of 2 group of similar financial
assets) is deracognized from the consolidated balance sheet when any of the following cccurs:

a) The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;

b) The Group transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has
substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;

¢) The Group retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractuai obligation
to pay the cash flows without material delay to one or more recipients under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement (thereby substantially transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset);

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material lay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement;
and either

a} the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset. When the Group has transferred ifs rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass- through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
axtent it has retained the risks and rewards of cwnership.

In cases where Group has neither transferred nor retsined substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
financial asset, but retains control of the financial asset, the Group continues to recognize such financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvernent in the financial asset. In that case, the Group also
recognizes an associated liability. The financial asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and cbligations that the Group has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration
received is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, of in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts arr: mrer two vears past due, whichever occurs sooner, Financial assets written off rna!,r -stili'he.
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Payl Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise)

subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Group records allowance for expacted credit losses for all loans and other financial assets not held at
fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL). Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS
109. Hence the Group applies expected credit losses {“ECL") model for measurement and recognition of
loss allowance on its trade receivables, loans, other financial assets measured at amortised cost {other
than trade receivables) and financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCT).

a. Trade receivables

In case of trade receivables, the Group follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to
lifetime ECL is measurad and recognized as loss allowance. As a practical expedient, the Group uses a
provision matrix t¢ measure lifetime ECL on its portfolic of trade receivables. The provisicn matrix is
prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward looking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default rates
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are updated. ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal}
recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the consolidated staterment of profit
and loss under the head * Impairmrent allowance and write-off of financial assets”.

b. Loan and other financial assets

in case of other assets mentioned above, the Group determines if there has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased
significantly, an amount equal to 12-menth ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However,
if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount egual to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as
loss allowance,

The Group follows a ‘three-stage’ mode! for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial
recegnition. The assets migrate through the following three stages based on an assessment of qualitative
and guantitative considerations:

» Stage 1 For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit impaired upoh originaticn, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated
with the probability of default events occurring within the next 12 months is recognized. Interest
income is accrued using the effective interest rate on the gross carrying amount.

» Stage 2 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk for financial assets since initial recognition. In determining whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company uses days past due (DPD) information and
other qualitativa factors to assess deterioration in credit quality of a financial asset. For cradit exposures
where there has been a significant increase in ¢redit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit
impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized. Interest income is accrued using the effective interest rate on
the gross carrying amount.

« Stage 3 Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset have occurred. For financial assets
that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized. If, in a subsequent pericd, credit quality
improves and reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination, then
the Expacted Credit Loss reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-menths ECL.

Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer 2 significant
increase in credit risk since initia] recognition, the Group reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance
based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and ali the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (l.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original effective interest rate. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which
result from default events that are possible within 12 months from the reporting date,
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise}

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and lifetime ECL for
Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets, ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and
Loss Given Default, defined as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents the likelihcod of a borrower defaulting on its financial
cbligation, either over the next 12 months (12 months PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD} of
the obligation.

Loss Given Default {LGD) - LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of less on a defaulted
exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type, and preference of claim and availability of col lateral or
other credit support.

Exposure at Default (EAD) - EAD is based on the amount of outstanding exposure as on the assassment
date on which ECL is computed including undisbursed amounts in respect of Letters of Comfort.

ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by
a range of outcomes, taking inte account the time value of money and other reasonable information
available as a result of past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Manner in which forward looking assumptions has been incorporated in ECL estimates:

The Group considers its historical loss experience and adjusts it for current observable data. In addition,
the group uses reasonable forecasts of future economic conditions including expert judgement to estimate
the amount of expected credit losses. The methodology and assumptions including any forecasts of future
economic conditions are periodically reviewed and changes, if any, are accounted for prespectively.

The Group writes off loans given when the dues from such loans are outstanding for more than 180 days.
Other advances outstanding for more than 90 days are written off. While the amounts are written off, the
Company does not relinguish its rights to the sums due and continues its collections efforts, including, but
not limited to appropriate recourse under various provisions of the law. If the amount to be written off is
greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference s first treated as an addition to the allowance
that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. However, financial assets that are written off may
be subject to enforcement activities to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

Expected credit loss on Consumer receivables:

The Company applies the "Roll Rate Approach’ for computing the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on its loan
portfolic. Under this approach, historical data of loans is used to determine the probability of a financial
asset moving (or "rolling”} from one delinquency bucket to the next (e.g., from current to 30 days past
due or 30 to 60 days past due, and so on), eventually leading to default. Roll rate is the percentage of
outstanding balance that “rolls forward” into the next DPD bucket as 2 result of not being collected during
the current cycle.

Roll- rates is computed on the net outstanding balances at the end of each cycle (and is net of any
recoveries made during that cycle), Since the tenure for this product is low (maximum of 30 days ), only
tirough the cycle PD is applicable for estimation of flow rates into 90 and above DPD. And therefore usage
of macro- economic variables is not applicable in the context of ECL calculation for this product portfolic.

The default defined as an event where receivable is deermed unlikely to be collected from the borrower,
which is when a loan is delinguent for a pericd of 90 days.

The Total ECL {Expected Credit Loss) is calculated is calculated as Outstanding balance (EAD)* Impairment
rate (PD %)* Loss Given Default (LGD}.

Outstanding balance {EAD) is the outstanding balance, Impairment rate (PD %) is the expected default
rate and is estimated as the percentage of balance that will flow into the $0 DPD and above bucket. Loss
given Default {LGD} is the amount that would be lost in the event of default and is calculated by adjusting
the outstanding balance at default for any recoveries {net of collection cost} in the next 12 months.
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Ameounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise}

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement:

The Group recognizes a financial liability in its consolidated balance sheet when it becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are classiffed, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial iiabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, nat of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financia! liabilities include trade and other payables, leans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilittes are classified in two categories:
« Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
« Financial liabilities at amortised cost {loans and borrowings}

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or less

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or foss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recagnition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

The cumutative amortisation using the effective interest method of the difference between the initial
recognition amount and the maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal
repayments, if any) of the financial liability over the relevant period of the financial liability to arrive at the
amortised cost at each reporting date. The corresponding effect of the amortisation under effective interest
method is recegnized as interest expense over the relevant period of the financial liability and is included
under finance cost in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Arnortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

The Group has service agreement with its customers, whereby the Group agrees to compensate its
customners for deficiency in collection { Default Loss Guarantee) up to mutually agreed limits on the loans
serviced by the Group. The Group has also placed deposits with banks which have been lien marked in
favour of its clients as a security against its contractual obligations. These deposits have been disclosed as
“Lien marked" under cash and bank balances. The Group accounts for the fair value of guarantee in such
cases determined based on the probability of default which is based on historical default rate and
expectations of future conditions as a provision at year end.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise)

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss.

2.11 Fair value

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies
mentioned above, Fair value is the price that would be received fo sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

{a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
{b) In the absence of a principal markat, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measurad or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as follows, the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to
queted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs).

Level 1 financial instruments — Those financial instruments whare the inputs used in the valuation are
unadjusted guoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group has access to
at the measurement date. The Group considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading
activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are
binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments — Those financial instruments where the inputs that are used for valuation
and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data avatlable over the entire
peried of the instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs cther than
quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition,
adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to
iterns that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on
uncbservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Group will ¢classify the instruments
as Level 3,

Level 3 financial instruments — Those financial instruments that include one or more uncbservable input
that is significant to the measurement as whole,

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurament is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements at fair value on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period with relevant disclosures.

2.12 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the ¢onsolidated balance
sheet if there is a currently enforcaable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultanecusly. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of defauit, insclvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

2.13 <Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shori-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, and other short term highly fiquid investments
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather for investment or other purposes.

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the consoclidated balance sheet.
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Payl) Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial $tatements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise)

2.14 Restricted cash

The Group’s restricted cash mainly represents amounts received from customer and payable to merchants
held in escrow bank account.

Cash that is restricted from being withdrawn for use is reported under Other bank balances in the
consolidated balance sheet, and the same is not included in the total cash and cash eguivalents in the
statement of cash flows. The group also discloses a corresponding current financial liability in the
consolidated balance sheet.

2.15 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an ocutflow of rasources will be required to seftle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognizad as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measurad using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows {when the effect of the time value of money is
material}). When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is racognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or present obligation that
may, but possibly will not, require an ocutflow of resources. Where there is & possible obligation or & present
cbligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. However,
contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

2.16 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

The chief operating decision maker (CODM), who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Group Executive committee {comprising
of CED and CFO} who make strategic decisions. See note 42 for segment information presented.

The reportable segments of the Group comprise of the following:
a) Digital Payment Services
b}y Digital Financing Services
¢} Corporate Segment

Corporate segment comprises entities providing various corporate functions and activities. These services
include, but are not limited to, executive oversight, information management, legal, treasury, control and
accounting, human resources, taxes and investor refations.

Geographical segments are categorized as ‘India’ and ‘Outside India’ and are based on the domicile of the
customers.

CODM reviews results of subsidiaries of the Group on consolidated basis and considering the nature of
business operations.
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise}

iti)

2.17 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting peried and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the consolidated balance sheet.

Other employee benefits
Compensated absences

The employees of the Group are entitled to compensated absence. The empioyees can carry forward a
porticn of the unutilized accrued absence and utilize it in future periods or receive cash compensation at
retirement or termination of employment for unutilized accrued compensated absence.

The group also has liabilities for earned leave that are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. These are, therefore,
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method. The benefits are discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting pericd
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustrments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardiess of
when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the group before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchenge for these benefits. The
group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:

{8} when the group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

{b} when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37 and involves
the payment of terminations benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due mere than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present
value,

Car lease allowance

The Group enters into an agreement with a lessor to provide vehicles for use. As per this arrangement, the
Group pays lease installments to the lessor. The car lease expense payable by the group companies is
shown as employee benefit expense (net of payments recovered from employees) in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss.

Post employment benefits
Defined contribution plans {Provident Fund)

The Group pays provident fund contributions to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner as per
Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1§52, The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined
contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recoghised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or 3 reduction in the
future payments is available.
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise)

Defined benefit plans ( Gratuity)

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing benefits is determineg using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annyal reporting period,
Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (if applicable) and
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a charge
or credit to other tomprehensive income in the peried in which they occur., Remeasurements recagnised in
other comprehensive income are nol reclassified. Past service cost js recognised in profit or loss when the
plan amendment or curtallment cceurs, or when the Group recognises related restructuring costs or
termination benefits, if earlier. Gains or lesses on settlement of a defined benefit plan are recognised when
the settlement occurs. Nat interest Is calculated by applying a discount rate to the net defined benafit
liability or asset, Defined benefit costs are split into three cateqories:

= service costs, which includes current service cost, past sarvice cost and @3ins and losses on
curtailments and settlerments;
net interest expense or income; ang

¢ remeasuremeants,

‘The Group recognises service costs within profit or loss as employee benefits expense.Net interest expense
or income is recognised within finance costs

The liability or asset recognized in the consolidated balance sheet in respect of defined henefit gratuity
plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reparting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected
unit eredit method, Contributions in respect of gratuity is made to a fund administerad by the Life Insurance
Corporation of India.

Remegasurement aains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuaral
@5sUmptions are recognized in the period in which they ocour, directly in other comprehensive income,
They are Included in retaineg farnings in the staternent of changes in equity and in the consalidated balance
sheet,

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recegnized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost,

2.18 Share-based payments

The ultimate halding campany of the Group operates share option schemes (SAR and RSU) under certain
equity compensation plans, for the purpase of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants of
the Group companies, Employees of the group companies receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees rendar Services as consideration either for equity instruments (Mequity
settled transactions”) or cash equivalent of the equity instrument (“cash settled tra nsactions”). These share
based payment plans are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements of tha Qroup companies in
accordance with the “Ind AS 102 Accounting for Share-hased Paymaents”,

Employee restricted stock units ("RSUs") - Equity settled

Under the equity settied share basad payment, the fair value on the grant date of the awards given to
employees is recognized as ‘employee benefit BXPEnses” with a corresponding increase In equity aver the
vesting period net of advances paid by the group Lompanies for such RSU's, At the end of each reporting
pericd, apart from the non-market vesting condition, the expense iz reviewad and adjusted to reflect
changes to the level of options expected to vest, When the options are exercised, the employees receives
the shares of the Halding Company which are purchased by trust from market by utilizing the advance

Stock appreciation rights {"SARs") - Cash settled

as "employee benefit axpenses’ with g corresponding increase in liabilities, over the periad of non-market
vesting conditions getting fulfilled, The liability is remeasured at each reporting period up to, and including
the settlement date, with changes in fair value recognized in amployee benofits BXpenses.
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2.19 Leases

Assets and liabilities arising from & lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following [ease payments:

= fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

= variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date

* amounts expected to be payable by the group under residual value guarantees

= the exercise price of a purchase option if the group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

= payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the group exercising that
option,

Lease payments to be made under reascnably certain extension options are elso included in the
measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the group:

= where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee a3 & starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received

= uses & build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third party financing

* makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.qg. term, country, currency and security,

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing
or market data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities use that rate as
a starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments are aliocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periadic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
any initial direct costs

restoration costs.

The right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line method basis If the group is reascnably certain to exercise @ purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life. Payments associated with short-
term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss.

Short-term leases and [eases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases for
office premises that have a lease term of less than 12 months. It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recogrition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. The lease
payments associated with these leases is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

2,20 Income tax
The incoime tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable tncome

based on the applicahle income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
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Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Group operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The group measures its tax balances either based on the
most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the defarred income tax liability is settled or the asset is realised based on tax laws
and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax lizbilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differances can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in s business combination or for transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, a deferred tax
liability is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwiil.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, unused fax losses and
unabsorbed depreciation allowance only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilize those temporary differences and losses.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will aliow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority, Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has 3 legslly enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recegnized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.21 Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/iossas attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

» the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
shares

s« the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been cutstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease
the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed
to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive
potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair
value (i.e., average market value of the oufstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are
determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive
equity shares are adjusted for employee share options against the share capital of the Group and bonus
shares, if any, as appropriate.

2.22 Borrowings Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

To the extent that variable rate borrowings are used to finance a gualifying asset and are hedged in an
effective cash flow hedge of interest rate risk, the affective portion of the derivative is recognised in other
comprehensive income and reclassified to profit or loss when the qualifying asset impacts profit or loss. To
the extent that fixed rate borrowings are used to finance a qualifying asset and are hedged in an effective
fair value hedge of interest rate risk, the capitalised borrowing costs reflect the hedged interest rate.

Investiment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
2.23 Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires the management to make

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets

and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosuras, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities,

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and

of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to

be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and
judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calcuiation for each
affected line itern in the consolidated financial statements,

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

a. Business combination: On March 20, 2025, the Group aquired controlling intrest in Mindgate
Solutions Private Limited (Mindgate} and its subidaries. The acquisition was accounted for using the
acquisition method in accordance with Ind AS 183,

Significant Judgements

In applying the acquisition method, management was required to make the following significant
judgments:

1. Assessment of Control:

Establishing if control was obtained on the acquisition date required judgments. Management assessed
that it has control over Mindgate based on:

a} The Company's ability to appoint majority of Board of directors of Mindgate;
b) The board has the right to direct and approve operating budget of the Company; and
¢) Other substantive rights conveyed in the share holder agreement.

2. Present Access via obligation to purchase 27.2% stake in Mindgate:

The Share-holder agreement for acquisition of Mindgate provides the Group with an obligation to
purchase 27 2% for Rs. 6142 million subject to achievernent of certain targets by Mindgate.
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Management assessed that this obligatien to purchase 27.2% stake in Mindgate provides the Group
with present access to the returns of Mindgate. In making this evaluation the Group considared:

@) The certainty of Mindgate in meeting the financial targets; and
b} The ownership rights avaitable with the group relating to this shareholding,

Significant Estimates

In addition to the above judgments, management made the following significant estimates in
determining the fair values of identifiable assets, liabilities, and related instruments,

2} Intangible Assets: The fair values of customer relationship, developed technology, and order
backleg were determined using discounted cash fiow modeis, including the [multi-period
EXCcess earnings method and relief-from-rayalty method]. Significant inputs included:

a. Estimated future cash flows - 15.4% tg 20.3%
b. Royalty rate - 79%

€. Customer attrition rate - 10%

d. Discount rates - 15.6% to 16.4%

b) Cail and Put Options on Non-Controfling Interest: The fair value of the call and put options
refated to the NCI wag determined using an option pricing model i.e Monte Carlo simulation,
requiring assumptions including:

Simulated Revenue for FY 27 - INR 4175 Mn
Simuiated EBITDA for FY 27 - INR 606 Mn
Equity volatility - 42,69

EBITDA volatility - 23.4%

Revenue valatility = 5,99;

Risk-free interest rate - (. 7%

mpenow

b. Impairment of financial asset: The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of
financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amaount and timing of fisture
cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a
significant increasa in credit risk, These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which
€an result in different levals of allowances. Refer Note 2.10

c. Impairment of non-financial assets: Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset ar cash
generaling unit exceeds jts recoverabla amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use, The fair value less costs of dispusal calculation is based an available data
fram binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation js based on a DCE
madel. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include
restructuring activities that the Group Is not yet committed to or significant future Investments that
will enhance the assat's performance of the CGU being tested, The recaverable amount is sensitiva to
the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth
rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other
intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Group, The key assumptions used to detarmine
the recoverable amount for the different CGUs, including a sensitivity analysis, are disclosed and further
explained in Note 2.11 angd Nate 5B of consolidated financial statements,

d. Share-based rayments: The Group initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with
employees using a binomial medel to determine the fair value of the liability incurred, Estimating fair
value far share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate alsa requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model Including the expected life of the
share option, vaolatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them, For cash-settled shara-
based payment transactions, the liability needs ta be remaasured at the end of sach reporting period
up to the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recoanised in the profit or loss, This requires
a8 reassessment of the estimates used at the end of each reparting period. For the measurement of the
fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the Group uses a Binomial
madel. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based paymant
transactions are disclosed in MNote 2.18 and Note 38 of cansolidated financial statements,

€. Deferred tax: Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that itis probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax a i




PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR millions unless stated ctherwise)

q.

i

upon the likely timing and the tevel of future taxable profits tegether with future tax pianning strategies.
Refer note 2.20 and Note 34 of consolidated financial statermnents,

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits): The cost of the defined bensfit gratuity plan and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determinad using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actyal developments in the future, These
include the determination of the discount rate; future salary Increases, attrition rate and maortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined banefit
obligation is highly sensitive o changes in these assumptions. All assumptions ara reviewed at each
reporting date,

The martality rate is baszed an pubticly available mortality tables. Thase martality tables tend to change
only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases
dre based on expected future infiation rates, Refer Mote 37 of consalidated financial statements.

Fair value measuremant of financial instruments: When the fair values of financial assets and
financial liakilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value |z measured using valuation techniques including the DcF maodel, The inputs
to these madels are taken from observable marksts whera possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair valuss, Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 2,11 and 43 for further disclasure,

Useful life of intangible assets: The group has intangible assets which includes tradama rk, customer
relationships, software, brand name and title rights and customer relationship. The group estimates
the useful life of its intangible assets based an the expected technical obsolescence of such assets,
However, the actual useful life may be sharter or longer than expacted by management, depending on
technical innovations and competitor actions. Refer naote 2.8 and Note 5 of consclidated financial
statements,

Useful life of property, plant and equipment: The group has furniture fixty res and office equipment
a5 property plant and equipment, The useful lives of these itams of PPE have been determined based
on technical evaluation done by the management's expert which are higher than those specified by
Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013, in order ko reflect the actual usage of the assets. The asset’s
residual values, useful lives dare reviewed, and adjusted at each financlal year-end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate. Rafer note 2.7 and Mate 3 of consolidated financial statements,

{This space has been left blank intentionally)
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CIN: U72400MHIQ05PTC293037

Notes to C 1id. d ¥l lal far the year endad March 31, 2025
Amaunts In INR milllons, unless otherwise stated

3 Property, plant and equipment {ak cast)

Bisclosiures regarding aress block of Property, Plant and Eqitlpment, o Tati theteon and net block are as given belaw :
Lomputers, data
Leasehold . 5 :
Farniture CHice pracessing units and
Particutlars Improvements Vehicles Total
(butlding) and fixtures equipment oommfm!l:ation
Gross carry/ng valuae
As at Apri] 01, 20623 T2.50 i5.07 74,73 264.19 - 42645
Addltions B.84 14.31 12.79 7977 122.71
Disposale/ad; = 0.05) i+ 1,18 [2.96)
As at March 31, 2024 81.34 24,29 a5.00 340,61 - 556,24
Additions 15.10 4.08 4.38 171.21 . 150.77
Business acquisitian 22,598 24.85 19.59 140.86 97.02 305.20
CHsposalsadsiments [B.0) {12.56) [N T¥)] {16.30) = {29.34]
As at March 31, 2025 119.02 41,66 118.87 43640 G702 101297
A lated depreciatt
A5 af Aprit 01, 2023 7078 (X3 6574 705.20 * 353.56
Bepraclatlon charge for the year (refer note 30} 2.57 539 37.24 - 47.09
Duspedainfsaptments (0030 0.10 {109} = {5.02)
g at March 31, 2034 11.38 74.23 24135 - 399,563
Depreciation charge for the year (refer nate 30) i.19 &.83 &85.65 a B81.47
Business acquisition 19.66 1511 103.74 35,72 190.75
Dispesalsfadjusiments {053} [0.03) (18.23) . {1691}
A ot Harch 31, 2028 3170 EEAlY 394,51 35.72 B54.54
et carrying value
As at March 31, 2024 8.67 17.91 2077 95.27 - 146.61
As at March 31, 2025 3,95 9,96 20,93 241.89 61,30 358.03

Nates:
(i} The Group does not have any capital wark-tn-progress, hence the requlsite disclosures has not been given.
{ll) The Group dees not have any Immevable properties,
{iii} See note 40 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisitlon of property, plant and equipment.

(This space has been left blank intentienally}




PaylU Pay ts Private Limited
CIN: U72400MHZ0NEPTC293037
Motes to C Tid: i Fi ial far the year ended March 31, 2025
Amounts in INR milllons, unless otharwise stated

4 Right-of-use assets (at cost}

BDisclosures regarding gross hlock of Right-of-use Assats, accumulatad depreciation therecn and net block are as given below:

Description Building Computer Total
Gross carrying value
As at April 01, 2023 88003 187.57 1,047.60
Additiens 480.67 ] 480.67
Disposals/adjustments (27.47) - {27.47)
As at March 31, 2024 1,313.23 187.57 1,500.80
Additlons 33.48 - 3346
Business acquisition 308,51 - 302,51
Disposals/adjustments (244.58) (94.64) 339.22
As at March 31, 2025 1,411.62 92.93 1,504.55
A fated dap o
As at April 31, 2023 260.31 108.74 369.05
Ceprecistion charge for the year {refer nate 39) 187.79 48.91 236.70
Disposals/adjustments {11.45) - (11.45)
As at March 31, 2024 436.65 157.65 594.30
Cepreciation charge far the year {refer note 30) 209.03 26.18 235.22
Business acquisition 151,89 - 161.89
Disposals/adjustments (227.70) (98.53) (326.23)
As at March 31, 2025 579.87 85.31 665,18
Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2024 B746.58 29,92 996,50
As ak March 31, 2025 £31.75 7.61 835.36
Notes:

A. The Right of use assets represents office building, faptops/computars are taken by Group on lease which is sccounted in accordance with the principles of Ind A5 116 “Leases’.

B. The follewing are the s ras ised in tha stat t of praflt and [oss:
Particular For the Year ended Far the year ended

Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Depreciation axpanse of right-of-use asgets 235,22 238,70
interest expense on lease liabilities 83.42 97.17
Expense relabing to short-term and low-vajue leases (inciuded in other expenses)® 221.55 12{.35
Total 545.18 504,22
* This inctudes the amount paid for leased line and Data centre server chargas.

C. The effective interest rate for lease liabilities of the group is ranging from B.85% to 12% p.a, The Group has applied a single discount rate to a portiolio of leases of a similar assets in
simijlar economic environment with sirilar end date.

. Tha Group does not face a slgnificant liquidity risk with regard to s lease thahbillties 25 the current assats are sufficlent to meet the obligations related to l2ase Habitlties as and when they

fal} due. Refer note 44 for maturity profile

{This space has been left blank intentionally)
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CIN: U72H00MHZO06PTC2RE037
HWotes ko Tt
Amounts in millions, nnlass atherwise stated

for the year anded March 32, 2025

5 Other Intangible Assets {at cost)

Disctosures ragarding grees block of Intanglblc as3cts, amortfzation sxponsas thareon and net block are as glven hefoaw

Comp ' k and [~ Intangible aszet
Particulars Davolopment costa # hnoh tatlanahl Order backlag R Sacdull) under development
GroEE carrying vatug
As at April B1, 2023 IF L5 453,27 176,23 47800 - 1,136,05 7,514,17 40,03
Agditlons - - 931 - . 831 - 133.00
Disposalafadjustments 2 = = = E = - (173.03)
As at March 31, 2024 17.05 464.27 186.04 478.00 = 1,145.36 7,514.17 =
Additions b N FE43 - - FE.43 - -
Business acquisitlon - - B17.00 2,138.00 35.00 2,498%.00 5,011.65
Disposals/adjustments - - - - - - - =
As at March 31, 2025 17.05 A464.27 1,099.47 2,616.00 34.00 4,230.79 16,525.83 =
Accumulated amortisation
Az at April 01, 2023 P81 427.10 142.6% 289.12 = 870.78 = 4
Amortisation charge for the year (refer note 30) 5.68 .04 83.78 17.88 - 51.3% - -
Disposalisfadjustments - - - = - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 7.58 436.14 151.43 327.00 = 922.16 - -
Amortisatlon charge for the year {rafer note 30 568 a.50 14,24 27.88 - 55.30 - -
Impairment charge - - - - - - = -
Disposals/adjustments - - - - - - - -
As at March 31‘ 2025 13.26 A444.64 165.67 354.88 - a978.46 = -
et carrying walue
AgS at March 31, 2024 497 28.13 34.61 151,00 - 223,243 7,514,177 -
As at March 31, 2025 373 1363 2F3.73 2,281.12 3400 3,25233 16,5253 =

* It rep afcap B cosk of an ¥ g d gibie assets,
B. it of dwlll with usaful ife

Ag required by Ind A5 36 - 'lmpairment of Accats’ the Group performs impaiement tests on goedwill an an anneal basis by computing valee-in-use amount for the cash-generabing unit {'CGU). The récaverable amount of CGU has been
detarmined based on a value In use using cach Aow projectlsns from financeal bedgets approved by enmr management covaring a tem-year pericd, The Greup performed its annual impairment. tesk for y#ars ended March 31, 2025, and
March 31, 2024, respecklvely (herai reference date is |ly based op y d}. In earfier years, the Group recogrised goodwill from its aoquisition of Citrus Pay i Private Limited. The goodwill was allecatad to the
DuLingss &5 b whole singe the Group garfias aut only buslness activity, e, paymeal grocessing cervices, For the current Aranceal year, the recoverable amount of geodwl] was tasted for impairment based on a Disceuntad Cash Flaw

{"DCF") mekhod which requires the uze of certaln key assumplions, whith are hased on financal budgels agp

di by Baszis this, has coacjuded that ne impairment of goedwill exists.

Growkh rate vsed for comauttng vatue fn wse

H as at March 31, 2025

Bus]s on which the recoverable amount has been determined

INR 7,506.97 (March 31, 2034: INR 7,506.97)
[BCF method with chservable market data

Year 6109 - 20.1% to 19.1%
Terminal growth rate of 6%

Discount rate {Pre tax)

13.65%

Issumplion

Management’s approach to daterminmng the value assigned toeach key

Waluakion s as per forecasted business plan, whch |5 backed wp by intemal and extemal information avafable wath the
management,

Impact of pessible changes in key assumphbions

If the pre-tax ditcount rate and tecminal growth rate applied to the cash flow projections of this CGU had been 5% higher than)
manag:mﬂnl‘i zmmalﬂ {H 15% instead of 13,65%) and (6.5% Instead of 6%) respectively, the company would not have had ta|

any against the comying amount of goodwill,
€. Cther notas:
{li The Group docs not have brbes under devel hence the Ite o has not been given,
fIl) Sea mobe 40 for disclosure of far the of ible asseis.

(Vs space has been lef blank intentionaliy)
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CIN: UP2400MHZ006FTC203037

Hotes ba £ F t far the year ended March 31, 2025
Amounts in ENR mllions, unfss otharwire stated

& Investmunt

Particulars

Agat

Az 3t

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2034

Ungquetad equity shares Carried at f2(r vaTue through sther comprehensiva Indome {OCE)
Fully pald equity shares 61,320 (March 31,2024; 61,320} of INALD 23ch In tational Payment Corporatlon of Indla

Fulty pald equity shases 2,514 (March J1, 2024: 2,510) af INRID czch In Forbine Private LImfed

Tatzl
SGrEE wvalus of q d
[ rag amaunt of I walua of

EEE ] Fr01
003 003
77,04 77.04
7r.04 FRO4

[avestments at falr vatue throwgh OCF (fully paid) reflect tnvestment In unguoted equity securltes. These equily sharas are desigrated as FUTOCE a5 they are fot held for badng purpose and are net In similar re of business as the Group.

Thus, dleclosing thetr falr vatve fuctuation In profit or kss (FYTPLY will not reflect the parpose of hekding,

The gharez of Ferbine Private Limited ard NMabanal Payment Comperatlan of fndia ace unquated and the Growp being minarty sharchalder, does not have any ather aiternate source to detarming the falr valee of such Investments as ak Mareh 11,

2025, Aksa, the management, based on flnancial Infarmation avatlable, bef:myes that the vakre of these shares has Aot changed the walue of these shares have bean
considered as their fair value.
7 Loans
Particulars e RO
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non=urrent
At Amortised cost
Term Loans.
- Persanal ban 12,322.39 13,663,432
- Loan againct Fropoy L71.9% .
1342382 13,663.43
Less; Impairment allowance {773.99) (71,33}
Total (A} 12,719.83 13, E¥2.10
Currant
At Amortdsed cost
TFarm Loans
- Persenal loan 317801 1865152
- Loan agatnst Property A
- Consvmer reCgivabres {refer aote || below} 1,208 41
19,459.53
Less; Impglemant slkwance {2,270.47) {1.18%.48)
Total (8} ELR IR WIS
Tatal (A+BY 42,485,008 31,5515
Break up of securlty detalls
Laans considered goad - securad 179.7% N
Laans considered qood = unsecured 43,2092,72 32,321.35
Loans which have significant tnoreasse b oredlt sk 1,132,313 670 &7
Loans credit lenpacred 1,324.98 521.74
Tal loans 45,923,54 33,522,956
Less: [mpalnent allawance (2,244.45) {1,970 81)
Net loany 42,985.08 31,552,185
af 1 on leans
I 1k a3 on b of tha year 1,970.81 133294
Add: inerease In lmpalrrent alawance recagnlsed i profle or loss during the year 561774 2 %af 83
Less: Leans written off during the year a5 uncoliectile [3,644.09) (2,210.96)
Impuirment allowanos as at and of the yaar 2,944,485 1,970.81

Hotes:
il Rcfer nobe 44 for diclosures in rasgedr of Exgacted Cradlh Losses (ECL).
{0} Consumer receivables represents balances which are [n the nature of buy now pay later (BNPL).

iTi} There ace ag koans agdels which his beea dassified as fair value thraugh prodit & REs andfor fair vafue through other comprehengivg income,

e The Group has not grarted any keans o7 advances [4 tha nature of kane o promotar , diectars, ¥MPs and the related portles (o5 defined under Compantes Act, 2013,} edher severally or joiatty with any obher person, that are repaydbie on

dernand gr withost $pecifying any berme or pedoed of fepaymenk,

[13] The group In Bccerdsnce with iks poFoy hag wrizn off loan 252638 (net off recoveny of TNR 233,13 amounting oo 18R, 3,350,93 {March 31, 2024 INR |1,365.81) wheth am= pverdoe for more than 180 days and cangumer ragelvabies {net off

rocovery of [NRSE 7F) amounting to INR 203 76 (March 31, 2124 THR 495,400 which are everdun for more than 93 days,

(This space has toen faft blank Intentonatly )
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MHoter to O d Fl T far the yanr ended March 32, 2025
I INR mill unless srRted

B hor financisl sssatbs

fAL amortised cost}
Particulars e Asar
Hat AL A0 Mech DU 2004
Hen dirant
Ungocured. consldered good
Excess Interase soread racabables 73.05 265,26
Less: fmoalrmeat Bss allowance on excess ftesest soread recalyablies {1.76) (6,96}
71.29 262.80
Securily doousits 139,48 9595
Degesls with rematnkeg matunty of mare than 12 months (=) Ed6,18 534.12
Tatal (A) [ELR 1Y WA
*} includes amaunt engter B2n agatnst bank quarantes.
Current
Unseired eondisened asad
Exgess Interest spread recelvables 104,449 192491
Less; Provishen for toss allawgnce on cacess (nterost speead recelvables {2.51} {9.65)
141.93 1aB.26
Secunty denasiks 25,71 4,26
Deppsit whih oralrd] maturttr for more than 313 months = 19738 138,26
Comimission recoivable 166,09 1,311.95
Amoual being in escrow accownt 4,930.95 a
Recelvaltla on account of First Lass Defsult Guarantes (FLONG 475,04 37428
Other recetvabla # 1,250,7% 1,873.31
Totzl {8) LT L)
Totai{A + B} H oG5 A

{*} Inckrdes ameunt undee Cga dgainst bank guarantee,
{#) Refer Note &1 for related party balances.

Recancilation of Imoolrmant zllowanca on excess Interast spraad raceivabias

Particulars A3 at Az at
I 11 a3 ga of the yaar 11.11 a.10
Ads: Increase w impairment aowance recognsed in profit or loss duding the year # ;0
Leis: Ewcess Inbergst spréad recelvables wniteo aff during the year as uncalecble E. Lkl o
Impalrment allowanca 25 at end of the yaar 238 18,91
4 Defarred taw ageets/ {Nability}
jrT— anat A at
—— At AL 203 Miech 3, 2004
Deferred tax assets* 120,63 =
Tk LID&S &
Particulars Af at A% at
Baach 31, 3038
Doderred taoe Mablliey* 75227 +
alildl FTFNE :
*For datalls {refer note 3d}
10 Cairegnk Taw Aiscls
Particulars Agab Al
Tax assots {reti® 119752 127563
el LS R
“tet of curreat tax labilty of TNE 24,65 (Mamch 31, 2024 18R 1893}
11 Other assers
Feaioglars As at Ad At
March 312008 Maegh 31, 2008
Non-current

Unsecured, consldored good

Freoald excenses I26.8% 444 BB
Balance hng woin GOMEITUTEENT. SUBRENDES 616.97 640,91
Total {A} TEAHT TR TS
Currant
Unzacured. constdered qand
Batance bylng with govemmeat Juthenties 586,42 604,23
Prepaki sapanses 6,36 658,77
Advance to vendars 268,42 157,92
Advances 1o employees 1443 2247
QOthers 187 19.31
Total (B} S 1 —
Totul (A+S) LA T 3,548 a9
12 Trade rucelvabins
AF at As 3t

March JL 203% ____ Manch 31, 3004
Trade recelvables. 3,849.03 1,752.71
Lass: Allpwance amainst evoected dredlt loss (203,34} (a8 14)

TFotzl PR LAGA BT
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CIN: BF2a00MHZOD6PTSZ93037

Hotea o C Bdated Finznclat St fap the year anded March 31, 2025
in INR milll untass oth fae glnted
Ay Hreak-up for trade raceivahles :

n

[$14]
L1

13

Partleulars

Av at
Hareh X1, 2025

LTR13
March 31, 2024

Trade racalvables

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, constdered qeod

Trade recevabies which have s nifizant increase @ oredi risk
Trade reCebuaties - cradit imodived

Total (A}

Impalrment allawanze

Secured, constderad aoad

Liearured, Consdengd good

Trade rectivabies which bave sianiflcant tncrease In credit rick
Trace recohvables - cragt imggined

Totzl (B}

Total (A+8)

Motes:

1,664.57

3,645 .69
203,34 8814
LpEoL LT3R
{203.32) tes 11
(303303 ETRTIN
EXILNT] LG4 ¥7

Na trady o ather mecelvibie are due from directars or otiver officars of the company elther Seversil or Jointty with any other persen, Hor any trade or other racehvabde arg due from frms o7 private compantes mespactively In witch any directer is

a partner, a disector or a member.

Trade receivables are non-interast bearng and art normally settied In 30-5( davs,
Refer Mole 41 For refated earty baknces.

of Imp an trade
Particulars i Lo
Hersh . 1038 Mgt J1, 2004
1! 25 on beginging of the year BE.14 11157
Add: ngeaage (A Mnpalnnent Alowsnoe recognlsed In profit or less dusing e year 114 54 B1.63
Less: Wtlized durina the vear 2 {z.29)
Less! Reversal of previskn 3 {36.21)
Add: on -] 158
Impsirment alfewance as at end of the year 303,34 B4
AgeTng of trade recelvables
As at March 31, 2025
Ersin 1 AU TAlE Al Bl
Less than & & menths - 1
Particuta - -
zrifcutiars Untikad Mot Due monthz vaar 1-2 years Z-3yarrs More than 1 years Total
Unidliguted boade rocelvablion
= Consldered aond 246,58 101485 226,42 141.41 10.22 .01 343 .545.65
= WK Nave Basdfoant NCEEEE I GREN FHE - . . - B . . -
= Cradit impaired = = . 11,12 94.15 32.50 85,57 203.94
Disputed trade recelvables
- Constdered qoad - - - - - -
- which have slanlficant tnoregse in Zredit sk " - - ~ - " = -
- Credip impaired v - . = s -
Jotnl 245,58 FICTT N T I 7Y ST 7 YT FTRT [TH-F] L AT,
Ax at March 31. 2024
—Eram i dus gate o BaYMEnT
Paruiculirs unbilicd Not Dus Ll ils Sl £-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade recalvables
- Considered ooaod 270,84 422.54 7407 172,31 75.83 21,57 56,48 1.723.61
- Which have slanificant increase In credie ngk = 000 6.01 b.0o 2.51 + .55 317
- Credht Impatred - - - - L1247 2.53 387 25.%3
Disputed trade recelvables
- Consldesd qaod - - - - " - - -
- Wk have sidnificant norease in credit rsk a " . F x S =
- Credit imesled - = & fr N = z =
Tomi PR FTFEE] 70508 17Eiz 3057 BT [T, T S ¥ 1 5 % W
Loss allgwance & at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 was determined ax follows for trade undar the i ch
Az ol March 31, 1015
Less than § i - 1 ML
Particulan Unblifed et Dua H 1-2 yaars 23 ymars Maora than 3 years Tetal
menkhe. . . L hi — fo o
Grass Carring amount - irads recehmbles FETRT 1,014 &9 T, IG.47 152,53 [T IN] 34,51 £9.02 31,849,503
Exoected lorx ata 0,00%: 0.00% 0.00% 7.2 BE E0% 4.19% 65 00 5,28%
Expacted credit losses— trade L I = Ll - 11.32 94,15 3250 £5.57 203,34
Carrying amount of rade racalvables {nat af 246,58 1,014 8% FR-FLEY] 141,40 16,59 0% 345 3,645,639
imzairment’
Az at Marck 31, 2024
Erem e due et ol pagmant
Particulars Unbilimd Nat Bus o ifian & L] -1 1-2 years 2-3 years Hora than 3 yaars Totat
Erona Carrying amaunt - brade racaivabies 27084 q72.54 704 02 172,22 0,97 11 9% L75271
Expadtod o rala 0.00%% 0,040% 1007 0.00% IE,57%: 20.64%: F35% 1.66%
Exnacted credit [oLas— trade i S i1} 0,01 &80 15.07 353 4,49 2610
Carrylng amaunt of trads recelvables (not of 270,84 42,54 04,07 17r21 75.90 21.57 56,48 1,723.61
Imoalrmanty
Cash and Cash equlvalents
Farbeulzrs s at M
Merch 31,2025 March 31,3024
Cash in hand 0,85 .
Balances with tanks™ 6928, 74 333076
Dreposits vath orlginal maturity of kess than thege months F.be1,893 7 dad 4L
Tokz| 1857072 FTAEE]

Balances with banks ecludes balances In Excivanoe Eamers” Farelon Currency Accouat [EEFCH of 18R & B2 (March 31, 3033: INR 6,281




Payll Paymanix Privata Limited
CIN: U7 230 0MHZO08PTC293037

Odated Fh 1al far the yezr ended March 31, 2025

Hates ko Ci

Amounts bn INR milllans, unfess othensee sbated

14 Bank bxlance othar than above
Particulars Asat Fodrd
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Restrictad Cash hatd In separate account™ 464,52 974,30
Balance with Esorow Arcaunis™= 20,048.32 ¥
Depesits with orlgnal metadiy of mors thaa trés months but kst than byove months=== 5,675.26 325712
Total 26,193.40 a,23L 4F
= The campany uses BEFS accaunt to recelve maney through debit card/fcradit card, net banking bransaction taward al| the transaction ocouring an its portal 35 well 32 to 2etthe the respective marchants, In line with RB1 diraction, ssparate
acoount has been apened whidh ks not avatlzble for use by the company. ‘Out of total bakance, INR 282,77 (March 31, 2624 INR 171.45) repmsents amaunts ek In Citres waliel by customers which Is not ayalbbie for use by the campany.
== The Campany malatains ascraw account with HDOFC Bank snd Axls Bark, The efcrow 3CCownts e op d a5 per R81 P g b of payment for gf; peyment for gateway busirass, The
restricted babince fn the csorew accouats represants money collected from o an e &nd k5 uied for setiing of Sues o varous merchants and commisslon [nceme of the company ac por RBE guldelines,
*2= Inchudes amount under 'en agalnst averdraft, working capial demand ans 3nd Defaut Loss Guarantee (BLE) proviston.
15 Contracts assets and contract Fabilldes
As at Ay at
Parthcula
il March 33, 2035 March 31, 2024
Lontract asscks
Currénk 625,63 173.25
Total{&} 525.63 173.25
Contract lablitles
Nen-current 23389 38774
Lurrent 921,66 501.6%
Tetal (B) 1,175.55 E99.63
Total (A-B) (549.93) (736,38}
Al in [l during the year
[C] et out below 15 the amount of revenus racagnised fram:
Particulars For the year epded For the year cnded
March 31, 2025 Mapch 31, 2024

50L.8% 366,12

Revanue reconnised thak was Included b the contract Rablfity balance at the bealnning of the ysar
Revenua recoanised from perfarmance oblinations satisfied in previous vear

(This space has beea ot Blank ateattonaliy}

Choriored

mecountants




PaylF Payments Privata Limited

LCIN: U72400HH2006PTCIIZ0IT

Motes to O Finarcial for the vear andad March 32, 2025
Amounte In INR mitlens, unbose otherwles atatad

16  Share Capltal

Pariiculars

A Authorfsed share Capliab

4,040 050,600 {March 31, 2024; 4,000,050,000) Equity shares of [NA 18 sa<h
FEEP50,000 (March 3L, 2074; 999,950,000) Prefessnce shares of INR B0 ¢ach

Iseued, aubscribed and pakd up capltzl
3,221,819,926 (#arch 31, 2024: 3,015,316,362) Equity thares of 18R 10 cach frly pald up

Tatal

B Roconclllation of ihe number of equity sharee and share copial

LIg L AS a1
Margh 30, 1005 ek 3L, 1304
40,000,550 &8, 000,30
A5
32,215.20 30,553.38
EPRTCED FIXTINTH

articelisy

Apak April 01, 2023
= af H ke eollty Shares
Equy ihares [ssired dudtng the yebs

Az ot March 51, 2024

E5wsiy Enares nagsd LB
Ax at Myrch 31, 2025

[N Rights attsched to agilty sheres:

Humbar of Capiesl

Z.08,60,19,027 20,468.29
6A.54,402.40 £8.64
LA 1N :
3,01,53,18,062 30,15;2'}3‘
19314 3

The Company has onfy one doss of aquily shores having » par walies of [RA 10/ per share. Each holder of equety sares 12 entfzled to one vote pec shace, Each holdes Is cobded be ghidands a5 and whan the Company declares and pays Avlifend
afes ohtaining sharehoblfert” appoval, In the eyvent of liquidation of the compary, the holders o equity shases WOl s antitfed [o recelve (Maming assets of the corpiny, Aftes dlstrbutton of apy preforentlal amoonts, Tha glstebation will be o

crocofion is tha nember af ssols thares Rald by the Wthambobiar,

D. Bights lasus
Durthg the Finaedal year 2023-24 & 2024-25, the comoany has frsund Sraves, dataks of which are as follows.

Lastiowlars
Snaies alloted 1a MIH Hokdrgs LY,
Sharaz alketted 1o MiH Favmants Heldings BLY.
Shares allotted ¢ MIH Payments Haldings B
Shares allstted vo MIH Paymentt Holdings B,
Shares allotted 1§ HEH PEronTts Folsas BV,
Shoves Allotted fe MEH Pawrrrils Mol B4

E.  Conversisa of ul iikle Bt didoat Ialis wquilly shares
During the vesr wedad March 31, 2025, the comaany N3t qRreamed the

ke R Lt eqolky ghares,

L
FEE4
7517
7598

Bgreh Jh, i
lune 26, 2024
Hovamber 39, 2024
February 25, 2025
March D7, 2025

17075 1,067 .88
43177 281247
333,17 7,198.23
55541 177459
744,66 5,060 69

v o har
[y

o W0 MIH G5 (Mt Umntes

“Natia 14, F028

F. Purtuank ta the soqulition of Payzense Services India Private Umitqd, Payl) Finance Indly Prvate Limted, Lazvpay Private mibed, Payll Cipltal Labs Provate Urmited {Formeshy koown 35 Enstage Softwsre Private Umited} and Wibmo Inc, {2
2]

cantrel

of Appendit C of Ind AS 103], the HoMing Company has beued 335 115,227 rew aquety shares during the year ended Mardh 31, 2024, Meace rafer nate 48 far farther detacle.

LARFEE AREMEA U8 PR PavSASEL Ralaadn BV, — H LG Tutarbar 14, 037 TR AEOTT,

Sharey slaigd b BIH Farsashs Hobfoas BY, L3,82,04, 610 FiAfG Tanuary 29,“}0.!1 1,382.05 [ X8 EE
=% Aggreqgate numbes of equity shares szsend 2= bonus. shares lssugd for considaratton other than Cash and shares bbught back durihg the pertod of five yeart Imimedlately precedung the raporting date;

_ulllll e Lo

Parfoelam Hanch 31, 1035 i

By ARBFED Bt P BESeANA o Al Sadnies (el noted8h = CIERE]
H. Catefle af sharas hald by sach aharehalder holtding mors thin 5% shr

s all s

Kama of sharehabdor Eslatienahip

March 31, 2025 #arch 31, 2024

MIM Indla (Moo rtiue) Limiwd HedCap eompany [Tl Odcumber 19, 2023}
No. of shares

Holding %

MIH Paymants Holdlnor B.V. Hekitng company (Fram Decamber 20, 2023)
Mo, of sharae

Howding %

1 1
O,00% G.00%

1,22,18,19,9:7
100,80%

3,01,53, 18,851
100.00%

On Decambar 20, 2023, MIF Indly (Maurtins) Umted trsnsfored & tota) of 1,96%,718,688 equity shangs te MIH Paymants Holdings 8.0, As 8 result of Bug transtar, MIH Payments Holdings B, beearme the pAcent comphny,

I. Catalle of Promoter's sharahakding and shares hald by Helding company

Au st areh }, JOIF

i GRBEEE AUNAY

Promater nama Balattonship Mo, of shares

e
MIH Fawmmarts Holdwags AW, TiElirg Campiny [Fram Oecdrier 10, 0197 F PR T Y
FIEIL LRI L]
Pramoter nima Relationship o, of shares T AT
TN Enia [Paurfmn) Limied Wi company [108 Decarmber 1F, 1900] 1 [T
HIH Payments sadag .7, Hetdng company (Fram December 30, 3023} 1 H TS

{ThIs space has bakn it Blaok intentkonally}

—
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Payli Paymanis Privats Limbed

CIH: UFFATOMHIOOEPTC 293037

Motas tn Aldntad Financhl For the yvear andod Harch 31, 2025
Arrrayunte in INR milBone, untase othenalcs stated

17 Obher equlty

Paithulars ul!‘!‘;;tli T FTe I.“:..'Hﬂ;dr
Secui(tiey pramlum ,832,87 40,3986.39
Shatistery resara 10.6% Q.70
Caphal reterve 19,035,951 {8,035.95)
Aataitagd sbmings 13502134 i76.542,53)
Fifnias SuffEs ey IALINES PR 362 {15 63}
add:tenal eald In capltal (064) {064}
Shace based <omensttlon resarve £1.970.54) {1.635.38)

P —— — R iy

Favemant of resarves during the yoar
in Snciiel s preamium

Bafunce as at tho beginning of the yanr 40,986, 39 2546500
A Issirn of Fhore @pits drerng the year L3847, 28 15,524.3%

Less: Share [atut eRgenses o
BuTence = nt tho and of the year !-l..lﬁ.

[10)] Statutary reasrve

Ealanca a4 at the baginning of the vear .M 105
Addg; Addtlans uring the year 0.35 L 15
Batance ar ut theand af the yuar 16,65 9.74

{Hny Caplial ressrve

BalaAsE i #1188 baglnsiag of Ui vaar (B,035,95} 18,033,270
add; Agfustment an aceaunt of Busthess restrzcturing . 33

Dalance aw ol Uhw med o the e —_—EE AP

tivi  Aetined caralngs

Balanss au st the beginning of the yoir 126,542 530 (25,538,471
Leza! Laaa Far the year {2.480.65) 14,295.11]
Add: Remeasiregnent of Sefined benefit plans 2.74 21.38

Less: Less For tha noquiition of nom controlling bnkerast 17,321 681
Losa; Creaian of stalutory resarvg 10351 ILAEL
Balsnce tthe end af the year 130.021,25} 135,540,530

{v!  Foralan cuprency trxmalstion reaserva

Bala=ge aa st tha beginning of the veer 15.&2) a4.2%
AddfLass: Additlonsfaxtinaulstenent durng the year A2 FFa kLT
Balance am &t tha whd of the year LOF [35.63]
(vl}  Addllional peh |0 cxpltat
HaTance as at the bealening of the year {0543 b=
Addfieee: Additansfexttnoushmant Juring the yesr =
Srlanceo an 2t tha whd of the year [TELH m
fwlly  Share based compensation falerve
A Compansation for REU's Granted durlng the year
Balinse ad 41 Uha BRAARIAD o ThE vaar 1,240.9¢ 870,76
Addfeis Eddtweapiatirgarment ot B et bR Y] ArAd
Balunce wn ol ke wod of U yead [y F¥1] 1,296.5C
B, ERES UNARE BY GISUE CRmRany
Ealswcs wu 5k khe brgisaing of The e {2, E76.281 {2,828,57)
AddfLess; Additonsfextinguithin eak dudng the year 932,36 147,791
Balance as at the end ofthw year {1.543.52)
Share based compansotan resarve (et off crows charga) (3,038,543 SLE35,38)
{wiil}  Share spplication money panding alctmant
Balanca as ut the beginning of the yaar - 7965, EX
L ssuh of shape capltal diring the yesr - [T.m8.011
Bulance ot at the and of the year ~ =
[1-3] BB IR Cambiny s rRaarve
Balance ax atthe beginning of the yaar - B
Add; Put potlon ¥ablite an acquistien of subsslary i3 743060 .
Bafenca s at the end of the yasr f3.34300) =

Elwacription of aubture knd pusposs of sach reserve

[11] Securitas premium
Sectriies pramium |s vsed te recard the pramivm on trsue 0F shares, The reserve can be utllised gnly for bmided purposes tuch 38 fbante af bonus shares [n accordance with the grodsisns of Secfen §2 the Campanles Ao, 2013,

U Statutery resarye wiw 4504 BT Act
Statubary rEservas B8 erbblad 16 adhese o requiraments of aoclicabla laws sod will be udGsed b accardance with the =xld lxws.

i} cupital resnrva
The cpltil Reserve comprises resarvs areated on account of hustn ezt FestRseturingfcambkation and as ped the requirements of Ind AS 193 - Appendix C (Refar note 961

{h)  Rateined asmings
Reetalessd marmngs are thee profMis/(Bess) that the Growp has camedfTncurrdd 4l Sate, beas any tansfess to generxl reskrve, divlderds or szher distabubians pxld te sharehotds JKK Retalned samings include re-measurement boss f (galn) on defined
bensAE pians, fet of taxas that wil ot ba rechssited bo Statement +f Proft and bess

(v)  Forekan currescy ireselsifon rise e
i WG on d of th Mareign ang i akher
prof pr foss when the Ret Muesbment is disposedeoft,

hensive Income as th goloy and In & ¢4 phraLe FLsATve withEn equity, The crmulstive ameirnt 5 redessied te

(L34 Sharm baned comprrealn rresses
The aserve raprazents Chire baced compencatan (asarve by the emphaytes of the company fram Prasuz M.V, The r454rve i o5 B racegaise the far value of the awards 1ssued to the amployeas of the campany aet of cross charge ba Proses
M.y, [Refer note 38

[T B e e | T
The referva rapeeseats fair valiie of put optien Dabi®ty Gowards acqirisiten of Mindgate Solutien Fovale Limited,

I8 Nan - Contreling Intoreat

Farticwlers Axat Ag at
Museh 31,3078 March 33,302
Balsnce az at the bedinning of the vaar - 3,923,139
Add; Addittons during the year 1,258,13 5,
Less: Arauliad dudng the vear =
Balapos s &t the and oF the yaar [T HF] A

Nen-controling Interast ragrasants 308, equity thares of subsilary “Mirdgate Saluttens Brivate Lmited™ held by the promoters of Mirdgate Selutlons Frivate Umied,




Payt! Payments Privace Limhied
CIN: U7 Z508MHZO06PTCI9303T
Hotes ko Ci Mdated L1
Amounts fn IMR milllens, unless otharwise statad

19 Borrowlnge

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(At amortized cost)
Particizlars. As at Azt
Hargh 31, 2028 Mpren 3. IRES
Mon-current harrewings
Securad
e b {Refer note A bekow} 3,925.26 -
- 11.35% Debenttne - 11867
- &.90% Debenturs w 35026
Tt Lowss [Reler nobe I bl
- fram bank 20,536.23 17,432.5%
- from cther parttes {HBFC) 3.732.00 1,263.59
Less: Cusrant maturity of long term barmawings {17,731 40 (6,645 32}
Tomt (&} 1545407 1383058
Currant borrawinga
Cthers, Secwred
Cumant maturity of kng berm bemesings 17,741.40 6,645.32
Bank overdraft (Refer nota B hakw) 3813.13 214930
Warking capttal demand leans {Refer note 8 below) 2,989,592 3,935.99
Unsecurad
Commercial paper {Rafer note © beipw} 3,171,949 5,594.73
Totat (B} LTI LL R b
Total {A+E) JLITNAN 30,963,110
Hotes:
A, Budeamables sen-Converiilds debgoiures o
fly  Terss of debeniures
Partleulars/ ISTM He. INEQCLAGTOGS INECCLADTOZE INEDCLAGTDIC INEQCLACTO2E
issuer Party Wrefill SRam Term Band Citibank 84,4, Vivnt Short Term Bong Citivank N4,
Fund Fund
15U Radng CRISIL A #{Stabhe CRISIL A+SStabia CATSEL A+/Stabke CRISIL A= fStable
Rate of intesest - Fiued 10,50% G T-blll +2.49% 11.35% B, 50%
Usted J unlizted Flxed Figating Fluad Fired
Face value Lagfsted Urlisted Unlistad Linbgted
Date of Issue Sefember 10, 2024 May 30, 2424 Royember 26, 2021 March 30, 2022
Date of rademptton Seplember 30, 2025
Cracember 31 3025
March 31, 2026 May 26, 2027 i e Maren £3. 2025
June 30, 2026 seem '
September 30, 2026
Balares attstanding as at March 3k, 2025 g, 2,538.22 5
Balsnce outstandiag as at March 31, 2024 3 116,67 350.26
(it} Terms of repayment schedule
Particulsrd ELE Azat
March 31, 2025 Harch 31, 2024
Interedt Rate Ranas (%]
Less than lvear 4.14%5-10.58% 8 30%-11.35%
1-3 years 9. 149%-10.50% =
Carrving amount
Less than L vear £77.85 466,93
1-3 years 3,247 41 -
Notas:
1 R ble Man-Ce h are In bullet pay
(i) B Wan commrbibie doboniurgs gy i par, A the doh arg privitely phaced,
(1) e pen o iy ] by tha directors andfor other
{lv} Thece are no defaults as on halance sheet date in repayrent of debt security and interest thersan,
ivt Bran-L are secured by carl-nassw charae by hvaothesatlen of standand hosieess moeivables,
B. Term Loans, bank rking capjtat di d Kkns
Tarm Leans, averdrafts and working cagltal demand bans of Group ane secured by pan passu charge by way of hypothecelton an mayestds a5sels , curment assets and flved deposts.
s al A wl

Farticulara

(1} Tarm loan fram banks:

Interest rate mange (%}
Less than 1 vear

1-3 Vgars

3 -5 veps

Easrging amasnt
Less than 1 vear
1-3 vears

3 - 5 volre

Hore than § vears

{1} Term joan from other sartles (NBFCH
Latarest rata ranga (%)
Less than | year
1-3 years
Carrving amount

Less than 1 year
1-3 years

(il Sank ovardrafis:

Intereat rate rznge {91
Less than 1 wear

Carrying ameount
Less than 1 vear

fscouniznis o

March 31, 2035

March 31

BASY = 11.00%
B.35% = 11.00%

13,738.97
6,774.099
21,61
266

E300% - 11.10%
E0.30% - 11.10%

3,327.5%
464,40

704 to 10.35%

3.813.13

9.35% « 10,78%
9.35% - 10.70%
9.35%

50062.21
5487 61
2,952.64

10004
10000

217609
187.50

5.75% = 10.30%

2,14%.20



Pay¥ Payments Private Limitod

CIN: UF2400MH2Z006PTSZO3037

Motes to £ f i for tho year endud March 31, 2025
Amounts In INR milllons, unfess otharwise stated

vy Working Capltal demand joans:

Interest rote ranae (%)

Less than 1 year 9.2 to 10.68% £,50% - 10,85%
Carrving amount

Less than L vear 2,5%9.92 5,925.9%
Notes:

{1} The abave Carrying ameunt represeats the prnelps! repayments, Interest accrred and E1R adjustment
{ll} Tie above Inans haye both types of rate of interest 1o, fived znd foating

£, Coammerchal paper:
Detalls of commercial paper is as follows:

For March 31, ZG25

Particulars Fape value ISIN N Rate of Interedt  Issue rating Date of Issua Repayable Date
Comm ertial Pager - Citi Bank 2,300.00  [NEOCLAI4073 1 11%: CRISIL AL+ 12-Now-24 0R-Sep-25
Commcscial Paoer - Gitd Bank 180000 INEICLAI4OE] IO 11% CRISIL AL+ 2B-M3r-25 O6-Auag25
For March 31, 2024

Fartdculars Face walus ISIN Mo, Rote of Interest  Issue rallng Date of Issue Repayable Date
Commerclyl Paoes - CIH 80k 230000 INEGCLALA040 8,92% CRISIL AT+ 30-0t-23 25 -Dt-24
Commercisl Papes = Clo Bank: BS000 INEOCLAAOST 9.50% CAISIL AT+ 27-Mar-2d 26-Mar-25
Commerceel Panes - Cith Bank 28508 INEQOLATADES 5.50% CRISIL Al+ 28-Mar-24 27-May-za

HNotegs;.

i) ¥o borrewings iz quaranteed by the diectors 3ndior othors.

(1) The Group fag submimed the quartery mmitms and statements of current assets fied by the grous with Banks ar fsanclal Instibutions i agresment with its bopks of accounks,
{1} The barewkgs ableined by the Group Fram banks and finanoal mstitatkns have teen appled for the pupeses for which such kans were was takea,

20 Lease llablltics

Partiealars As at A5 at
March 331, 2025 March 31, 2624

Non-gursent

Lenze RabMies Fi.25 FE4 62
Totbxl (A) 720.25 764.62
Lurrent

Leasd IabliFes 227.28 202 23
Total {&) 22728 202,24
Tatal {A+ 3} 547,53 966,86

A Tho feliowlng I5 the £xirylng valle of (vasae Fabllity and movemant therecof during the year endad March 31, 2025
ulars Amount

azat Aartl 0L, 2023 FoLe7

Additions during the vear 452,06

Flnance cost accruad durlng the vear 3717

Diedetions durina the vear (17,701

Paymant of leage lisbilities [266.64)
AsatMarch 31,2024 966,86

Additens during the vear 1277

Business acavisiteon 160.27

Finance cost accrued durina the vear B8.42

Defetions during the vear 16.29)

Payment of lease babilties 1294,50),

As atMarch 01,2038 847,53

2% Provislons
Particulars Az at As at
March 31,3035 Maech 31,2024

Nan-current

Beovistons for aratoiby {Refer Nobe 37} 225.23 132,14

for d 122.66 12582

Frovigkan for long term emplovee benefic 18,12 -
Frovigion for Gnerows Contract 580 S
Tetal (A) 371.87 258.97
Currant

Provisions for aratuty (Refer Note 37) 53.40 37640
Provislons for compensated absences 42,93 d47.50
Tokl {H} 96.31

Total {A+B} 468.18 344.11

2T Dther Tabities

Pardculars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,3024
Luirant
Stabutary RIS 72855 38107
Employes benefits payatie BG6.79 356.25
Twher flabiktles 34,42 .50

Tatat 1,629.86 FAl.B2




Payll Paymanes Privels Limised
L4 LH UF TAOGMH 200E PTET S0

Pedns 18 Coanoldualed Financist Sataments for tho year ended March 31, 2025

Amourts in INE milome, unless lherwice itated

23 Trade payahtes

Farticulers Ax 3t Az at
—HMAGh AL G MarenJp gens
Trade payables
= fidigl T dues of micre ent and stmall 1 ang Elis 13,12
= ketal autstanding duwes of rediors other than meceg ERSETEASE and $mal) Enterprises 2,646,114 1.932.4%
Tausi 790,33 LR
Motes:
I Trase ssaties are ARt Larins and are nommally settied In 30-50 days,
(i) For puplanattons on b Grouss cred risk MINAAEMENT protesses (Refer Note 44}
[U1H Rter Moae 41 tor relafed party Dalances,
Agelng of trade pavables
Ax al Marck 31, 2025
Firavm tha duw data of P prman
Particulars Leag thap More than
UnbHled Wok Due 1year 1-2 ymars 2-Zyearp 2 years Total
Ureillyputed trade payaddes
Hicrp amerarioe ol small enterprtses 348,54 18 85 21,49 .l .80 - 33,19
GiRer thass migr ERBSTEE and smali Enlerpzes 1,774,273 164,83 64511 58.80 o0z 0.7 264514
Diipited trade paysties
Micra eefnranaes and small enterpnses s - # - - K.
Qther s micey crtedprises and smar) Entdprsng - . a - = - 4
Tuts LBLIER PEE AT (TR EE EIF] BT 2,739,323
Az at March 31, 2024
Fran the dus date of Faymesy
Parthkulars Less than Hore than
Unklifad Not bua £ year 1-2 years 2-3 yayrs Fyears Tatal
Uedleputed brade payabies
Hicrn emtesmites g smal entepricas - 317 531 .64 - - 1332
O Bhan maprg EARSRSE and smal| entarpses 1,4587.19 50,05 297 57 75,37 1313 3.38 193245

Diapiited trade paystdes
Mitro entorprizes and smap enkemise s
Other than mtcm ENLErPrised and Smali enterprises

Toial
24 Othar Anancial llabllitg s

1933

Particulars

Mon—current

[Lmpirids stack opltens psn payavle®
Pyl ppties Nabi by
Totar {A}

Currant .
Stiuniy BeBsE reciived from merchant
Empliree siock smtisns glan pavabier

bl

vy
Favable to marchanisee
TS re iy Latdiby
Aetrpnt redunctabda (p vengumerss e
FIASEman SEAGES Pyt tes
MareRant halance el i baak
Cachbarh payatis
Colortion pwvasie on acimnt af Builgned joans
PEYEE fod Bcquiiien &F ity
Provisions o defaut es supsamies (00G) (refer note 1} bedow!}
Dfharg

Totul (B}
Total {A+H}

1 Datsult Loss Gusrenlgs | DLEN revision

Tee Gy hay serdies SISO, el (ks CUStomars, wherchy the Group agrecs to campansate its cuztamers

SApESan Sulatanging a8 ¢ the period #nd 15 a5 felfows;

133.74 366,72
el oo -

kL] ELS %k

q93.55 §32.37

96693 1,580,566

= 251,05

26, 197,44 749,01

16,87 13,89

182,77 174,45

E 5B5.69

235,83 3zim

. 18 65

104.92 117.47
6,192,00 *

284,40 114 BS

r E_IH.'I'I
rl

tar any deficigncy inits colfection services { Default Loss Guaraptee {0LG)) up g FUtuaby agresd Emits, The byl amount of DiG
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25

{ii}

{iii}

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

Rewenue from contracts with customers

Sale of service
- Revenue from Digital payment services
- Revenue from Digital Financial Senvices
- Revenus from Authentication services

Other aperating revenue

Total revenue covered under Ind-AS 115

Disaggregated details of revenue:

The disaggregation of the Group's revenues from cantracts with custamers is given below:
Sale of service

Revenue from Digltal payment services

Payment Gateway Commision
Others
Tatal

Revenue from Digital Financial Services
Interest income on loans

Service and Fee income

Commission income

Assignment of loans

Total

Revenue from Digital Authentication services
Transackion based revenue

Software developmant and support services
Gthers

Total

Taotal (A)

Other operating revenue

First loss default guarantee (FLOG) income
Other operating revenusg

Total {B)

Revenue from operations (A+B}

Notes:

(i)

Geographical disaggregation

In the following tables, revenue is disaggregated by geography:

39,274.85 34,128.85
11,964.61 7,221.02
2,002.63 2,196.37
2,388.5¢ 1,727.63
55.629.79 45,273.87
38,682.26 33,400,94
591,79 637.51
3%,274.05 34,128.85
10,420.65 5,475.63
1,303.06 1,012.57
240.90 248.59
. 484.23
11,964.51 7,221.02
1,546.52 1,696.13
456.11 265.54
e 234.70
2,002.63 2,196.37
53,241,329 43,546.24
1,247.78 450,44
1,140,72 1,277.19
2,388.50 1,727.63
55.629.79 45,273.87

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31_ 2025 March 31, 2024

Within India 54,418.60 44,597.39
Outside India 1,211.19 676.47
Total 55,629.79_ 45,273.86

(i1} Unsatisfied performance obligation

The following table shows unsatisfied petformance ebligations resufting from fixed-price long-term contracts:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31. 2025

For the year endad
March 31. 2024

Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocatad to long-term contracts that are partially ar fully unsatisfied as
at reporting date
Management expects that the transaction price allocaked to the unsatisfied contracts will be recognised as revenue

- during the next reporting year
- Rermaining thera after

1,157.97

$14.08
243 .89

109.28

109.28

As permitted under Ind AS 115, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfled contracts which are for periods of one year of less or are billed based on time incurred

are not disclosed.

{iii} Thming of revenus recognition

w) ;
(v) disciosures have nok been given.

Revenue from Payment gateway comission, interest income on loans, comission income and cther cperating revenue are recognised to the customers at a point in time,
whereas revenue from software development and support services and service and fee income is recognised over a period of time,

The Group has determined that its contracts with customers do not contain a significant financing component and variable considiration, and therefore. the related

Ascouaionis ler

s
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26 Other income

Partlculars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Intarest income on

- Bank deposits

- Security deposits

- Incorme tax refund

- Leans
Provision no longer reguired written back
Liability written back

Gain on disposal of property, plant and eguipment {net}

Miscellaneous income
Total

27 Cost of services

126.62 109.23
8.98 662
40.60 56.83
.00 4.01
3.11 3.64
1.37 2,55
3.07 132
151.59 299.76
335.34 479.9%

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Digital Payment sarvicas
Payment gateway cost

Data centre charges

Service fee and commission expense
Other cost of services

Digital Financial services

Interest on borrowings for finance business
Loan processing and verification charges
Sales support expenses

Collection and repayment expenses

Loss on foreclosura charges

First loss default guarantes [FLDG) expenses

Digital Authentication services
SMS charges

Software licence and hosting fee
Software subscription charges

Total

28 Employee benefits expense

33,870.44 29,357.56
20.21 8,59
3,079.13 817.50
16.96 68.46
3,262.02 1,549.63
101.17 126.85
645.85 768.85
767,84 451.89
46,15 -
352,01 403.99
115,39 214.57
52,88 46.09
62,10 122.66
42,382.17 33,936.64

Particulars

For the year ended
- March 31, 2625

Salaries, wages and bonus {Refer note 37)
Contribution to pravident and other funds
Compensated absences

Gratuity expenses (Refer note 37)

Share based payment expense [Refer note 38}

Cach settled share based compensation remeasurament”

Staff weifare expenses
Total
*Pertains to fair value measurement of SARs

29 Finance costs

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

6,142,656 5,518.94
248,28 231.41
42,99 63.66
58.47 65.22
1,401.37 1,516.52
(1.327.81) {354.40)
110.24 93.50
6,676,20 7,135.85_

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 20215

For tha year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest on:

-Financial lizbilities measured at amortised cost
- Lease liabilities
- Qthers

Total

30 Depreciation and amortisation expense

88.42 97.17
3.56 11.78
$1.98 108.95

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2125

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment {Refer note 3)

Eepreciation on right-of-use assets (Refer note 4)
Aamortisation of intangible assets {Refer note 5)

Total

Charizrsd | O
£ -

C2eULLants (o

80.50 47.18
235.22 236.70
56.31 51.38
372.43 235.18
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31 Impairment allowance and write-off of financial assets

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31. 2024

Impairment loss on loans and recelvables

Change in Expected credit loss allowance
Written off *
Total (A)

Impalrment allowance on other financial assets
Expected credit loss
Trade receivables

Excess interest receivable
Other receivables

Written off

Trade receivable written off
Total {B}

Total {A+B)

Notes:

1,023.24 833.18
3,502.5% 1,936,87
4,525.53 2,770.05
93.14 58.94

- 7.01

- 4.88

_- 27.13
93.14 97.96
4,618.57 2,865.00

The group in accordance with its policy has writhen off loan assets (net off recovery of TNR 293,19) amounting to INR 3,350.93 (March 31, 2024: IMR 1,365.81) which

are overdue for more than 180 days and consumer receivables (net off recovery of INR 58.77) amounting to INR 202.76 (March 31, 2024: INR 445.40) which are

overdue for more than 30 days.

32 Other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended

March 31, 2024

Marketing ard promotianal expenses
IT and related costs

Legal and professional expenses
Management Fees (refer note 41)
Hosting and bandwidth expense
Rates, taxes and fees

Provision for chargeback
Travelling and conveyance

Office maintenance

Auditors remunaration
Communication

€S Expenditure

Bank charges

Power and Fual

Insurance

Foreton exchange loss/(gain)
License Fees - Thought Machine
Rent

Repairs & maintenance

Software Development Expense
Director sitting fees and commision
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Note: Payment to auditors
- Statutory audit fees
- Group audit fees
- Fees for other seivices
- Reimbursement of expenses

Total

33 Exceptional Item

252.27 184.72
593.90 357.35
766.43 879.34
549.73 484.28
889.5% 832,32
45.61 115,53
73.20 134.96
162.62 137.45
297.48 351.83
55.34 43.98
17.47 16.23
2.24 3.17
13.36 14,24
27.62 25.05
15.19 10.04
81.37 38.70
128.96 186.75
221.55 170.35
11.09 59.78
3.27 .
54.62 0.68
47.14 20,49
4,310.05 4,067.24
38.59 22.62
6.36 6.70
6.72 12.22
1.94 0.10
53,51 41.64

Particulars

Far the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Employee benefit expense™
Total

{36.54)

[36.54}

* These costs pertain to expenses incurred in the process of rightsizing as part of a restructuring program aimed at eptimizing the utilization of the workforce,

Somen it
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34 Tax expense

Particulars

Current tax expense®
Deferred tax expanse / (banafit)

Tatal

#*

For the year ended

March 31, 2025

For the year anded
March 31, 2024

(7.76) 1,412.16
{8.27} 148,38
{16.03) 1,560.54

Cne of the subsidiary of the group, Wibtme Inc has paid taxes amounting to INR 1,393.41 In USA jurisdiction on acogunt of transfer of Payl Dlgital Labs Private Limited

{Formedy known as Enstage Software Private Limited) by Wibma Inc to MIH Payments Holdings B.v. pursuant to change in shareholding structure during £y 2023-24,

The Income tax expense for the year can e reconciled to the accaunting profit as follows:

Loss before tax {2,496.67) {2,734.57)
Income tax using the Company's domaestic tax rate* 25.17% 25.17%
Expected tax income (623.18) {GB2.98)
Tax effects of amounts which are deductible for taxable income {259.89) (612.58)
Tax related to expenses not deductible for income tax S88.62 410.13
Losses and unabsorbed depreciation on which deferred tax not recognised 396.16 1,253.90
Other temporary difference on which deferrad tax not recognised (38,92} {15.97)
Effect af current tax related to earlier years 1.18 -
Tax effect of higher tax rate in different jursdiction - {5.33)
Tax on capital gain recognised - 1,353.41
Reversal of defarred tax asset - i48.38
Gthers
Other items (B0.80) {324.87)
Depreciation and amortisation on PPE and intangbles - {3.55}
1 tan grized in the stat t of Prafit or Loss {(16.03} 1,560.54
Deferred tax
{i) The bal prises t porary diff: attril ble to:
Partitculars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Deferred tax assat

Provision for employee benefits

Share based payments

Proviston for first loss default guarantee {FLRG)
Security deposit

Loss sllowance on financial assets

Provision for chargebark

Provision for impairment of investments
Lease lability

Revenue adjustment-ICDS impact

Net foreign exchange differences {unrealised)
Processing tee defer

Deferred Revenue

Qther ltems

Carmry forward tax losses

Total deferred tax asset (A}

Dbeferred tax liability

Property, plant and equipment and Intangibles
Right of use asset (ROU)

Customer acquisition cost

Receivable on account of FLDG

State deferved tax cradit

Fair value of intangibles acquired

Unamertized processing fee - bormowing
Excess Interest receivable

Tatal deferred tax [iabilty {B}

Defarred tax asset (net} [A-B]
Deferred tax asset restricted to deferred tax liahility (C}

Defarred tax asset recognized
Deferred tax liability recopnized

Naote:

121.39 74.63
277.0% 478.00
71.58 28.91
3.52 0.66
153.19 31330
86.35 63.20
3,169.43 268.75
238.88 243.35
616 17.97
(1.15) Q.38
164.36 -
1.56 3.08
- 0.58
4,565.84 4,861.14
14,858.66 5,553.87
77.83 84.66
210,44 228.15
i72.43 36.60
- 94.20
36.61 36.61
752.27 -
36,81 i7.88
44.67 il6.32
1,331.06 614.42
13,527.60 5,935.45
1,331.06 614,42
120.63 =
752.27 =

1. The Group offsets tax a3ssets and lizbilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to sef off curment tax assets and current tax liatyilities and the resultant

deferrad tax assets and deferred tax liabllitles relate to income taxes levied by the same tax suthority.

2, Group has not recognized a net deferred tax asset an account of uncertsinty on availability of future taxable profits which can be utilized against these brought
forward tax losses, Further, allowabllity of brought forward tax losses af company may be scrntinized by tax authorities In future.
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{ii}

35

Unused tax [osses on which no deferred tax asset Is recognised in Balange sheet

March 31, 2025

Unused tax losses
Tax impact on Unused tax losses

Unused depreciation allowance
Tax impact on unused depreciation allowance

HNote:

March 31, 2024

14,073.51
2,542.02

7,081.91
1,782.28

15,143,52
3,811.32

4,170.54
1,049.64

The Group has tax losses which arose in India {except in case of Wibmo} and that are available for offsetting for eight years against future taxable profits of the Group
in which the losses arese. The Group afso has unused depreciation allowance which arose in India (excapt in case of Wibmo) and which is available for offsatting for

indefinita period against future taxable profits of the Group in which the losses arose,

The aforesald tax ] and bed depraciation will [apse in the subsequent years as follows :

Within 0-5 years
From 5-10 years
Unlimited

Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

4,866.27
8,107.24
7,081.91

6,175,58
8,867.94
4,170.54

Partlculars

For the yvear ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Items that will be reclassified to profit or [oss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans
Financial asset measured at FWTOCE

Total

{This space has been left blank intentionaliy)

{8.86) (23.89)
2.74 21.38
{6.12) (2.50)

/S
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Particulars

Faor the year
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

36 Earnings per equity share
Face value per share

Profitf{Loss) attributable to the equity shareholders (A}
Woeighted average number of eguity shares for calcufation of basic earnings per share (8}
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of diluted eamings per share {C}

Bastc Eamings per share (4/B}
Dilutad Earnings per share (AC)
{Thiz space has been left blank intentionally)

gharisred

Aogountanis

10

{2,480.64)
3,06,98,85,204
3,06,98,85,204

{G.81)
{0.82)

g

{4,295,11}
2,87,52,79,218
2,87,52,79,218

{1.49}
{1.49}
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(a}

{b

L

{1i)

{iz)

(v}

B.

<.

)

()

{ib]

v

Emplovee benafits

Pefined contrdbutlon plans
The Group pays prevident fmd o to the Regl ] d Fung C a5 por tha ployees' F funds and Miscellaneous Provistons Act, 1952, The Group has no further payment

bl opce the bkt have been paid. The coatrbutlons are acceunted for as defined o b plans and arer as employ ) when they are due.
The Group has recogmsed the for Employer's o Ut to the Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance, Mational Pension Scheme and Laboor Welfare Fund contribution [n the Restated
Cansoitdated Statement of Profit and Less. The contribubions payable to the plan by the Group i< at the rate spedified in rufes to the scheme.
The Group has fzed the following in the < d of Profit and Loss:

For the year endad For the year ended

Fariiculars March 11, 202% March 31, 2024
Contributtons to provident fund 247.498 230.83
Other funds B.60 0.58

Defined benefit plans - Gratuity
The Graup provides for gratulty for employees as per Payment of Gratulty Act, 1872 as ded, n who ara In service for 5 years are eligtble for gratulty . The amount of gratulty payable on
L 15 the employ last drawn baslc ¢3lary per month proportiohately for 15 days salary multiplted for number of completed years of sepsce. The gratutty scheme covers substantially all
regular empl [ are al determined at year-end. Galas and losses of changed actuanal assumptlons are charged to Other compreheasive income.

Gratulty iz a defined benefit plan and Group 15 axposed o the following riska;

Intearest rate risks
A Fal In the discount rate which Is [Inked te the Government Security Rate will Increase the present value of the [lability requiring higher provisian.

Salary Risk:
The present vafue of the defined benekit plan [labllity is calculated by reference ta the Futuce salaries of members, As such, an jncrease In the salary of the members more than assumed tevel will Increase the

plar's Balslity,

Aszet Liabllity Matching Rlsk:
The plan Faces the ALM risk s to the matching cash fow. Graup has ko manage pay-out based on pay as you qo basls fram own funds.

Martallty risk:
Since the benefts ynder the plan b5 not pavable for [He tme and payabla il retirement 2ge only, plan does not have any Iongevity,
Actuaarial Azsumptions
in actordance with Ind A3 1§ = Employee Benefits, the actuanal vafuation for the aforesald defined "beaeflt’ plans s based ¢n the following assumptons:
rartieulars Faor the yoar anded For tha year anded
Harch 24, 205 Mareh 31, 2024 %
Discawnt rate £,60% - 6.92% £.90% - 7,13%
Salary escalation rate £.00% - 8.00% 8.00%
Expected future working |lfe 25.44 - 30,18 1.11 - 30,58
Mortality table 1{H% af LALM {2012 - 14) 100% BALM (2012-20148)
Withdrawal rates {In Soage) :
Up to 30 years 22% - 57% 5% = 52%
From 31 b0 44 years 2% - 57% 5% - 52%
Above 44 years 22% - 57% 5% - 52%
Retlcament age &0 years &0 years
The ing tablas I7¢3 the P ta of net ban#fit exp L grlzed in the £ It of Prafit and Loss, C i Cther Compreh ive I
and galzed in the C £ Sheet:
ch i defined benetit ablbgath
Particulars — L
March 35, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defined Benefit abligation at the beglnning of the year 196,16 17135
Acquisttlan adjustmant .43 -
Trterest cost 13.89 12.45
Pask sarvice cost - {4.54)
Cumrent service Cost 46,40 59.53
Beeflt pald directly by the Graup £37.96) (23.25}
Acraartal (galng foss (.77} [ 19.6%}
Cefined beneflt obligation at the end of the year 30580 196.16
Changes In the falr value of plan assets
Partical As at Az at
— March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fair ¥alue of plan assets at the beglnring of the pear 25.28 22.06
Expected Interest Income 1.81 L.62
Actuarlsl gain floss) {0.83) 1,70
Falr value of plan agsets b the end af the year 17,18 25.38
len of benefit ien [PBO) at the end of year in current and nen current provistons
As at Aa at
el March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Current 5340 3764
Man-eurrent _ 225.23 133.14
Tatal PB2 at the end of year 27853 i70.78
Amoupt Included In the Consolidited Balance Sheet arsing in 1] of Its defined benaflt igation/ plans
- As at Ag 3t
artlculang March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of defined baneft obligation/ plans 305.79 196,16
Falr value of plan assets 27.16 25,37

Met dafined Benslit abligatian 278.63 170,73
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{v} T Izad in the C ldated of Frofit and Loss
P Far the year ended For the year ended
. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Qurrant service cost 16.40 55,54
Past service cost - {2.54)
Intesest cost 13.58 12.45
Actuzl retumn on plan assets (1.B1} i1.63)
Tzed in the & i 4 of Profit and Loss 58,47 66.22
(wi) t iged in the € idated Other Compreh Ive Income
e For i year ended  For the year anded
ars
arter March 31, 2025 March 31, 1024
Return gn plan assets, axcleding cuded In Interest fincome {0.03) 1.70
Gainf{loss) from change in demographlc assumptions 181 7.80
{Fainf{foss) from change in Ananclal assumptions i, 14 2.95
Exgedence galnsf{losses} [9.18] B.92
Total racognlsed in other prekansive i 74 21,38
vl HivIby tor the deflned henefl *
feal Far the year ended For tha year ended
e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Impact of change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year J05.80 196,16
- Impact due bo increase tn G.50% - 194 {B.42) (4,12}
= Impact dug to decrease in 0.50% - 1% 210 4.22
Impact of the chanqge In salsry increase
Present valee of obliaation at the end of the year ELCE G 156.16
- Impact due bo increase In .58% - 1% 7.28 3.96
- Impact Jue to decrease in 0,50% - 1% {7.03) (3,91}

Zre not 3l Hence, the Impact of change due bo these is not catculated,

due to ity and

The above sensitivity analysis is basad on a change In 3n assumptien while holdmg 2f] pther assumpligns constant, Tn practice, tus s unhkely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptigns may be
comrelated. fvhen calculating the sensitivity of the defined beaeft obligation to Ifi actwarial pu the same method {present vatue of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting pariod) has been apphed as when (alcu!a(lng the defined beneflt [iability recognized in the Consolidated Balance Shaer,

{ulit} The expectad Tty Tysis of g y Iz as
Particulars For tha yoar anded For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 3%, 2024
Within the next 12 months 53.79 37,64
Defwgen I and & pear 159,44 104,332
Between S and 1{ years 92,57 .26
Total Expected PFayments I0E.80 207,23
{ix] Awerage d ion of defined beneflt
Partical For the year ended For the year ended
AL
bl March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Averane duration of defined beaeht obligations 1.31-3.62 1.83-14.35
{x} The major categories of plans aszats are as follows:
Particulars For the year ended For tha year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Funds managed by Insurer 27.16 25.38
Total ITAE TEAR

The group has invested duning the year ended #arch 31, 2022 in gratulty funds which is administered through Life Insurance Comporation of india.

[This space has bean left blank intentions v}
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38 Share based payments

Naspers Limited {'Naspers') has offered certaln employees of the Company various equity compensation plans, Tn terms of these plans, employees are
affered awards in the form of either share options, restricted stock units ('RSU') or share appreciation rights ('SAR’).

All awards are granted subject te the completion of a requisite service {vesting) peried by employees, ranging from one year to four years. Unvested
awards are subject to forfeiture on termination of employment. Vasting takes place in tranches degending on the duration of the total vesting period.

In respect of the share options and SARs on exercise date, following completion of the vesting period, awards are settled with employees in the equity
instruments of Naspers Limited ot its subsidiaries for equity-settled plans and in cash or other assets for cash-seftled plans, where applicable. In respect
of RSUs, awards are automatically settied in Naspers Limitad or its subsidiaries equity instruments on the vesting date.

The group share trusts hold Naspers shares or its subsidiaries equity instruments (as sharcholders) to settle awards hield by employees of the Naspers
and Prosus group. These share trusts were foundad by Naspers o administer the Naspers group share schemes for all employees.

RSUs are granted with an exercise price of zero. All SARs are granted with an exercise price of not less than 100% of the fair value of the SARs on the
date of the grant, All cancelled options/RSUs/SARs are cancelied by mutual agreement between the employer and employee.

Naspers Restricted Stock Plan Trust ("Naspers RSU'}:

Under the Naspers 85U plan, share options may be granted with an exercise price of not less than 100% of the market value of the shares at the time of
the grant. The Maspers shares are automatically settied with the participants on thelr respective vesting dates. The Naspers Reskricted Stock Blan Trust
may issue no more than 200,000 awards In aggregate during any one financial year. This plan is classified as equity-settled at Nasper's level. The
vesting perind is over four years with 25% vasting each year, This Plan has been discontuined in financial year 2024,

pl Chanaes in optlons during the year

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Particulars Number of options Weighted Number of Weighted average

average exercise options exercise price

price (ZARY {ZAR)

Balance at the beginning of the year - - 162 -
Granted during the year - i = a
Forfeited during the yaar - _ e -
Exercised during the year - - (162) -
Expired during the ysar 2 - - -
Balance at the end of the year - - = =

MIH Fintech Heldings SAR Plan (Global Payments}

Under the MIH Fintech Holdings BV Share Appreciation Rights (‘SAR'Y Scheme, no more than 2,5% of the total number of ordinary shares is avallable for
Issue, SARS may be granted with an exercise price of not less than 100% of the fair value of the SARs at the time of the grant. This plan is classified as
cash-settled, All offers vest equally over four years. SAR offers expire after 10 years from date of grant for any SAR granted issued prior ko 19 April 2022
and & years from the date of grant for any SAR Granted on or after 19 April 2022,

During the previous year MIH Fintech Hotdings BY SAR plan and MIH Payments Holdings BV SAR Plan (2022) have been merged as one plan namely MIH
Fintech Holdings SAR Plan (Global Payments).

The weighted average fair valug has been calculated by an external valuer using the Bermudan Binomial option pricing redel, using the following inputs

and assumptions:
March 31 2025 March 31 2024

Weighted average fair value at measurement date (in US$) - 3.75
Weighted average share price (in US$) - 9,83
Weighted average exercise price fin US$) - 10.53
Weighted average expected volatility {in %), determined using historical annual company valuations. - 46.40%
Weighted average option life {in years) - £.01
Weighted average dividend yield {in %} - 0.00%
weighted average risk-free inferest rate (in %), based on zero rate bond yield . 4.08%
Weighted average sub-optimal rate (in %) - 180%
Weighted average vesting pericd (In years) - 2,50

b} Changes in SAR during the year:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Particulars Number of options Weighted Number of Weighted average

average exercise options exercise price

price {USDY {USD?}

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,60,683 59.65 6,27,444 54,59
Granted during the year - - 65,851 10.63
Movements (InfOut) 18,551 120.45 (3,332) {63.18)
Forfeited/cancelled during the year (2,21,772) 23.23 {2,01,806) 22,95
Exercised during the year (67,293} 62.01 (1,29,459) 33.95
Retnstatement 347 140,26 1,061,885 13,14
Expired during the vear - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,900,526 946.80 4,60,693 59.65

Vested and exercisable 1,62,309 99.71 2,20,576 81,75




PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

£l SAR outstanding at the end of the year by exercise price
As on March 31, 2025 SARs putstanding SARs currently available
Exercise prices {in US$) Number Weighted average Weighted average Exercisable at Weighted average
outstanding at remaining exercise price {in 31 March 2025 exercise price {in
31 March 2025 contractual [ife Us$} Uss$)
! [wears)
1801 11,106 3.24 10.01 3,702 15.01
10.63 7,056 4.25 10.63 1,764 18.63
10.70 1,531 6.91 10,70 1,146 10.70
46.63 684 0.47 40,63 684 40,63
45.92 1,595 1,42 40,92 1,595 40,92
58.44 590 2.23 58.44 594 58.44
75.16 1,083 3.24 75.16 1,083 75.16
82.865 44,703 5.48 - 5.52 82.85 44,703 82.86
§5.18 62,339 4,31 - 4,65 95.18 62,339 95.18
140.26 59,839 6.23 - 6.45 140,26 44,703 140.26
1,820,526 96.80 1,62,309 99.71
As on March 31, 2024 SARs oulstanding SARs currently available
Exercise prices {in US$)} Number Weighted average Weighted average Exercisable at Weighted average
cutstanding at remaining exercise price {in 31 March 2024 exarcise price (in
31 March 2024 contractual life Uss) us%)
{wearsl
6.54 20,338 6.48 6.54 - -
10.01 85,554 4,25 10,01 21,3BB 10.81
13.61 47,198 7.23 10,61 23,598 10,61
18.63 65,851 5.25 10.63 - -
15.70 1,531 7.92 10.7¢ 764 10.70
40.63 875 147 40.63 875 40.63
40,92 1,545 2.42 40.92 1,595 43,92
58.44 1,279 3.24 58.44 1,279 38.44
75.16 1,467 4.25 75.16 1,467 75.16
82.86 78,707 6.48 - 6.63 82.86 53,283 82.86
95.18 76,694 5.25 - 5.69 95,18 76,694 95,18
140,25 79,604 7.23-7.42 140.26 39,633 140.26
4,60,693 L 55.97 2,20,576 79.B3

MIH Payments Holdings SAR Plan {India Paymeants}

Under the MIH Payments Holdings SAR Plan {India Payments) , no more than 15% of the total number of ordinary shares is available for issue, SARs
may be granted with an exercise price of not less than 100% of the fair vaiue of the SARs at the time of the grant. This plan is classified as cash-settled.
All offers vest equaily over four years, SAR offers expire after 10 years from date of grant for any SAR granted issued prior to 19 April 2022 and 6 years
from the date of grant for any SAR Granted on or after 19 April 2022,

During the previous year Naspers Fintech BV SAR Scheme ('Naspers Fintech') and Payl! Global BV SAR Pian {2020} have been merged as one plan
namely MIH Payments Holdings SAR Plan (India Payments).

The weighted average fair value has been calculated by an external valuer ysing the Bermudan Binomial option pricing model, using the following inputs
and assumptions:

March 31 2035 March 31 2024
Weighted average fair value at measurement date (in US$) 12.32 32.90
Weighted average share price {in US$) 42.42 72.99
Weighted average exercise price {in US$) 72,98 87.62
Weighted average expected volatility {in %}, determined using historical annuai company vaiustions, 48,10% 42.04%
Weighted average option life {in years) &.00 10,01
Weighted average dividend vyield {in %) 3.00% £6.00%
Weighted average risk-free interest rate (in %), based on zero rate bond yield 4.08% 3.84%
Welahted average sub-optimal rate {in %) 180% 180%
Weighted average vesting peried (in years) 2.50 2.52
b} Changes in SAR during the year:
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024

Weighted Number of Weighted average

Particulars Number of opticns average exercise ti exercise price
price (USD) it {usn)

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,47,371 80.66 2,93,146 76.28
Granted during the year 6,17,795 72.99 1,76,584 87.62
Moverments {In/Out} - - 6,591 76.61
Forfeited/cancelled during the vear {1,73,937) 7771 (16,994) 73.97
Exercised during the year {3,998} 72.89 {12,217} 76,13
Reinstatement 5,076 73,83 261 76.65
Expirad during the year = - - -
Balance at the end of the year g 8.92.307 75.92 447,371 80.66
Vested and exercisable / 'f._ﬁ__ . ! 1,42,157 78.77 68,727 75.95
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

£l SAR outstanding at the end of the year by excrcise price

As on March 31, 2025

SARs cutstanding

Exercise prices {in U5%) Number Woeighted average Weighted average

Exercisable at

SARs availabla

Weighted avarage

cutstanding at remaining exercise price {in 31 March 2025 exercise price {in
21 March 2025 contractual life uss$) uss)
{vears)
72.89 22,389 6.95 72.89 16,155 72.89
72,99 5,45,048 5.33-541 72.9% . -
76.65 1,73,022 3.25 76.65 82,248 76.65
77.45 23,241 3.92 77.45 11,620 77.45
87.62 1,28,607 5.86 - 8,25 87.62 32,134 87.62
8,592,307 75.92 1,42,157 78.77

As on March 31, 2024 SARs outstanding SARs currently available
Exercise prices {in US$) Number Weighted average Weighted average Exercisable at Weighted average

outstanding at remaining exercise price (in 31 March 2024 exercise price {in
31 March 2024 contractual life Uss} uss$)
fwears)
72.89 31,435 7.96 72.89 14,935 72.89
76.65 2,200,034 4,25 76.65 47,982 76.65
77.45 23,241 4.92 77.45 5,810 77.45
87.62 1,72,661 5.93-9.25 87.62 - -
BO.66 68, 72Z7.00 75.90

L r

PROSUS RSU (EUR):

Prosus MLV Share Award Plan has been introduced during the previous year. Under the Scheme, no more than 5% of the issued share capital of Prosus
M.V may be granted in the Prosus RSW. One quarter of the awards will be vested on yearly basis. Awards under the scheme will be settied automatically

with participantz on vesting date.

Eal

The weighted average fair value has been calculated by an external valuer using the Bermudan Binomial option pricing mode!, using the following inputs

and assumptichs:

Weighted average fair value at measurement date {in EUR}

Weighted average share price {in EUR)

Weighted average exercise price

Weighted average expected volatility (in 9%) - determined using historica! daily share prices
Weighted average option life {in years}

Weighted average dividend yield {in %}

Weighted average risk-frae interest rate (in %), based on zero rate bond yield

Weighted average annual sub-aptimal rate (%)

Weighted average vesting period (vears)

b} Changes in options during the year

March 31, 2025

March 31 2025
33.23
33.23
0.00
0.01%
10.00
0%
2.33%
180%
2.5¢

March 31 2024
53.92
53.92
0.69
6.01%
16.01
0%
2.44%
180%
2.51

March 31, 2024

Particulars Number of options Weighted Number of Weighted average
average exercise options exercise price
nrice (ELIRY {ELIR}Y
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,81,309 - 4,76,366 E
Movements [In/Out) 2,417 - -
Granted during the year 1,43,325 - 3,08,790 =
Feifeited/cancelled during the year {1,31,580) - (90,527} -
Exercised during the year {1,68,217) - {1,19,680) -
Reinstabtement 7,518 - &,360 -
Expired during the year = - - -
Balance at the end of the year 4,34,773 - 5.81.309 -

¢l Share options outstanding at the end of the vear

The share option cutstanding at the end of year had remaining contractual life of 8.16 - 8.55 years (2024: 8,25 - 9,05 years )

Payl) Credit BY SAR Plan

Under the PayU Credit BV Share Appreciation Rights {'SAR') Scheme, no more than 15% of the tolal number of ordinary shares is available for issue.
SARs may be granted with an exercise price of not less than 100% of the fair value of the SARs at the time of the grant. This plan is dlassified as cash-

settled. All offers vest equaily over four years. SAR offers expire after 10 years from date of offer.
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

a} Falr value of the SARs

The weighted average fair value has been calculated by an externa! valuer using the Bermudsan Binomial option pricing medel, using the following inputs

and assumptions:

Weighted average fair value at measurement date (in US$)

Weighted average share price {In U5$}

Weighted average exercise price {in US$)

Weighted average expected volatility {in %), determined using historical annual company vaiuations.
Weighted average option life (in years)

Weighted average dividend viald {in %}

Weighted average risk-free interest rate {in %}, based on zero rate bond vield

Weighted average sub-optimal rate {in %)

Weighted average vesting period {in years}

b) Changes in SAR during the year:
March 31, 2025

_March 312025 March 312024 _
= 8.89

= 35.08

= 56.97

- 81.39%

- 6.01

]

- 4.08%

- 180%

- 2,50

March 31, 2024

Particulars Number of options Weighted Number of Weighted average
average exercise options exercise price
prica {1180} [HSm
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,B2,474 37.21 6,83,942 36.77
Granted during the year 18,320 56.97
Movements {In/Out) 713 138.71 {82,383) 38.39
Forfeited/cancelled during the yvear {30,875) 39.73 {2,11,535)} 40.16
Exercised during the year {40,991} 23.53 {2,33,528) 36.01
Reinstatement - - 7,648 32,149
Expired during the year - - - &
Balance at the end of the year 1,11,317 41.56 1.82.474 37.21
Vested and exercisable 56,716 37.16 45,030 28.45

£} SAR gutstandinag at the end of the vear by exercise price

As on March 31, 2025

SARs currently availabla

SARs outstanding

Number Waeighted average

Weighted average

Woeighted average

Exercise prices (in U5%$) outstanding at co::rna’:;?alﬁife exercise price {in ; : i:::ib;i;; exercise price {in
31 March 2025 {years) Uuss) uss)
23.53 18,225 5.48 - 5.53 23.53 18,225 23.53
39.57 32,650 6.23 - 6,54 39.57 19,082 39,57
45.92 48,708 3.25 45,92 16,477 45,92
5G.97 11,734 4,25 56,97 2,932 56.97
1,11.317 41.56 56,716 37.16
As on March 31, 2024 S5ARs cutstandina _ SARs currently available
Exercise prices {in US%$) Number Weighted average Weighted average Exercisable at Woeighted average
outstanding at ramaining exercise price (in 31 March 2024 exercise price (in
31 March 2024 contractual lifa us%) uss$)
[wears
23.53 62,209 6.48 - 6,55 23.53 31,654 23.53
39.57 51,335 7.40 - 7,54 39.57 12,157 39.57
45,82 45,763 4.25 45,92 1,179 45.92
45.92 11,433 4,25 45.92 - .
56.97 11,734 5.25 56.97 - -
1,82,474 37.21 45,030 28.45

] SAR outstanding at the end of the year by exercige price

SARs gutstanding

SARs currently available

Exercise prices {in US$) Number

Weighted average Weighted average

Exercisable at Weighted average

outstanding at remaining exercise price {in 31 March 2023 exerclse price (in
31 March 2023 contractual life Us$} uss)
[yeprsd
72,89 30,086 8.86 72,89 7,411 72.8%
76.65 2,12.864 5.26 76.65 - -
2,42,950 76.18 7411 72.89

F. Red Dot Payment Pte Ltd SAR Plan

Under the Red Dot Payment Pte Ltd SAR Plan Scheme, ne more than 20% of the companies issued/notional share capital is avaifable for the plan, One-

quarter vests after years one, two, three and four. The awards are settled in cash.




PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

a) Fair value of the options

The weighted average fair value has been calculated by an external valuer using the Bermudan Bincmial option pricing model, using the following inputs
and assumptions:

March 31 2025 March 31 2024
Weighted average fair value at measurement date (in US$) 33.17 -
Weighted average share price {in US$) 125.59 =
Weighted average exercise price {in US$) 240.41 =
Weighted average expected volatility (in %}, determined using historical annual company valuations., 48.10% -
Weighted average option life {in years} &.00 -
Weighted average dividend yield {in %) 0% g
Weighted average risk-free interest rate (in %), based on zero rate bond yield 4.07% =
Weighted average sub-gptimal rate (in %) 180% -
Weighted average vesting pericd {in years) 2.50 -
b} Changes In SAR during the year:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Particulars Number of options Weighted Numbar of Weighted average
average exercise options exercise price
price {USDY {USD}

Balance at the beginning of the year =
Granted during the vear 3,744 240.41 - -
Movements {In/Out) - - & -
Forfeited/cancelled during the vear - - =

Exercised during the year -
Reinstatement . = -
Expired during the vear = i =
Balance at the end of the year 32,744 240.41 - -
Vested and exercisable - - =

c a tions outstandin t ar
As on March 31, 2025 SARs outstanding SARs currently available
Exercise prices {in US%$) Number Weighted average Weighted average Exercisable at Weighted average
outstanding at remaining exercise price {in 31 March 2025 exercise price (in
31 March 2025 contractual life uss$) uUss)
{wears)
240,41 3,744 5.33 249,41 - =

{This space has been left blank intenticnally}
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39

39.1

39.2

L]

Contingent Liability

Particulars HarchA;la,tIOZS March“;:,tzoz‘s
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts

Qther cases in Consumer forumn/ district courts 327.33 48,96
Qther bank disputes 10%9.10 163.27
Total 436,43 213.17

Gther lltlgatiehs with no slgnificant Impact

The Supreme Court on 28 Febreary 2619, has provided its judgment ragarding inclusion of other allowances such as trave! zllowances, special allowances, ete, within the
expression “basic wages’ for the purpose computation of contribution of provident fund under the Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellanecus Provisions Act, 1952, There are
interpretive challenges on the application of the said judgment including the pered from which judgment would appiv, consequantial implications an resigned employees, etc

and these factars ralse significant uncertzinty regarding the implementation of the said judgment.

Owing to the aferesaid uncertainty, absence of reliable measurement of the provisions for the earlier perods and pending clarification frem regulatory autharities in this

regard, the Company has not recorded adjustments, if any, in respect of this matter for earliar years.

Commitmeants

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
- Property, plant and equipment 6,37 21.41
- Intangible assets = =
Total 6.37 21.41

{This space has bean left blank intenttanally}
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Notes t¢ Consclidabted Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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41

{i)

(ii)

Related party discl o5
in accordance with the requlrements of Indlan Accounting Standard {'Ind AS') - 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ the names of the related parties with the aggregate
transactlons ang vear- end balance with them as ldentifled and certified bv the management are as below:

List of related parties
Related parties where control exists
{1y Uitimate Parent Company - Naspers Limited, South Africa

{il} Parent Company - MIH india (Mauritius} Lirvited (Tili December 19, 2023)
- MIH Payments Holding B.Y. (From December 20, 2023)

tiily Subsidiary Company - Payl) Innovatioh Private limited (Wholly-owned subsidiary)
- PaySense Servicas India Private Limiked {w.e.f. 14 December 20232}
- Payl) Finance India Private Limited {w.e.f, 14 December 2023)
- fayl Digital Labs Private Limited {Formerly kaown as Enstage Software Private Limited) (w.a.f,
14 Gecember 2023}
- LazyPay Private Limited {w.e.f.- 14 December 2023}
- Wibmo Inc. {w.e.f.- 04 December 2023)
- Mindgate Sclutions Private Umited {w.e.f,- 20 March 2025)
- Minggate Solutians FZ LLC (w.e.f.- 20 March 2025)
= Mindgate FTE Urited {w.e.f.- 20 March 2025)
- Mindgate Solutions, Inc {w.ef.- 20 March 2025)
- Mindgate Sofutions (UK) Umited {w.e.f- 20 March 2025)

Other refated parties
(i} Fellow subsidiaries f entities under common contrel with whom transactlons have taken place during the current year and previous years:

- Azsaznjobs Private Limited

- Swiggy Limltad {earlier known as "Bund] Technologles Privata Limited™)
- Diokpe Private Limited

- Finwizard Technology Pvt Ltd

- MIH Fintach Holdings BY

- Pay\ll Global BY.

- iyzi Odeme ve Elektranik Para Hizmetieri

- MIiH Payl BV

- MIH Services FZ LLC

- Myniad Services By

- Nrex Transportation Services Private Limited
- OIX Indig Private Limited

- Paysense Pte, Lid

- Payl Credit BY

- Prosus services BY

- Red Dot Fayment Pte. Lid

- Zooz Mohile Limited

= MIH Payments Holdings BY

- MIH Internet Holding BV,

- Gobrisk Technologias Private Limited

- Fashnear Technologies Put Lid. (Measha)

- Similarwab Ltd

- Flat White Capital Private Limited

- Vasty Housing Finance Corporation Limited

{ii} Key t I

- Mr. Aakash Moondhra, Director il 20 September 2023

- Mr, Anirban Mukherjee, Exacutive Diractar and CEO

= Mr. Arvind Agarwal, Executive Cirector and CFO {w.e.f. 19 December 2022)

- Ms. Anuradha Aggarwal, Company secretary [Upto August 27, 2024)

- Ms. Dimple Mehta, Company Secretary (w.a.f. August 28, 2024)

- Mr. Gautam Ujwal Thakar, Non-Exaecutive Non-independent Director w.e.f August 28, 2024
- Ms. Renu Sud Kamad, Independent Director waelf, 1 February 2024

= Mr. Jaira} Manohar Purandare, Independent Director w.e.f, 1 Februgry 2024

- Mr. Johannes Pune, Non-Executive- Non-Independent Director w.e,f, 1 February 2024

- Mr. Laurent Bominique Le Moal, Mon-Executive Non-Independent Blrector w.e.f. 6 February 2024
- Ms. Goplka Pant, Independent Director w.e.f, 27 Febmuary 2024

- ¢r Subhash Sheoratan Mundra, Independent Director woe.f. 13 May 2025

- Mr Ashutosh Sharma, Non-Executlve Non-Independent Director w.e.f. 13 May 2035

- Mr Mangj Kumar Agarwal, Independent Director w.e.f. 13 May 2025

{This space has been left blank intentionally}
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Details of transxctions with related parties
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Issue of equity share capital
- MiH Payments Holdings B.Y. 15,912,328 77,443.08
= MIH India {Maurntius} Limited - 428.34
Sala of services
- Swiagy Limited (earler known as "Bundl Technologles Private Limited™} 451.65 256,28
- Finwizard Technology Pyt Ltd 0.00 0.02
- Dotpe Private Lirnited 9,35 771
- Gobrisk Technologles Private Limited 0.01 -
- Fashmear Technologies Pyt Ltd. {Meesho) 17,57 -
- OLX India Private Limited L ‘a6
- Faysense Pte, Lkd - S4.10
- PayU Credit BV - 1.33
Other income
- MIH Fintech Holdings BV, - 228.42
- 2aoz Mobife Limited 0.78 5.08
- Red Dot Payment Pte. Ltd 48,34 69.55
- MIH Services FZ LLC i7.i4 -
- Flat White Capital Private Umited 0,02 -
- Prosus sarvices BY 80.49 8.18
Interest Income
- Vasku Housing Finance Corporation Limited 0.05 -
Lost of services
- Zaopz Mobile Limited 150.65 78.75
- Red Dot Payment Fre. Ltd 0.68 -
Commission Expense
- Swiggy Limited (earlier known as "Bund] Technologies Pyt Ltd") 1,78 -
- Meesho Paymants Private Limited 4.99 -
ESOF expenses
- MIH internet Holdings B.W. = 69.68
Reimb t by company towards sett] of stock options
~ Paysanse Pte, Lid = 56.53
Advance towards Restricted Stock Units
- MIH internet Haldings B.Y. 90,46 72170
Finance cast
= MIH India (Maunties) Limited = 6.9%
Support services fea
- Fayll Credit BY = 2.47
- MIH Payments Holdings B.V. - (1.26)
- Dotpe Private Lirnlted .03 -
Management service charge
- MIH Payments Heldings B.Y. S48.74 437,18
= Payl Credit B.v. ] 42.95
IT and othear costs
= Payl) Credit BLY. s 6.98
- MIH Fintech Haldings BY - 4,58
- MIH Payments Holdings BY - {2.19)
- Similarweb Ltd 3.38 -
Reimbursement of expense incurred by
- MIH Payl BY - 0,95
- Myriad Services BV 1,87 1.63
- Prosus Services B.Y 7.51 48,78
- MIH Fintech Holdings B.W, 39.61 26.89
- MIH Services FZ LLC 47.54 187.6%
- MIH Payments Holdings 8.Y. - 19.45
- Red Dot Fayment Pte Lkd 42,91 15.64
Recovery of expenses incurred on behalf of
- MiH Fintach Holdings BY 7.67 13.08
- fled Dot Payment Pte, Ltd 8.07 2.95
- Payl Global 8v. 3.82 -
- MIH Services FZ LLC 5.7 >
- Prosus Services BLY .60 -
- ivzi Odeme va Elaktromk Para Hizmetler 0.08 -
= MIH Payments Haldings BY .35 -
Tr ctions with key t personnel *
- Short term employes benefits 99.95 86.19
- Share based payments 154.56 8.17
- Rirector sitting fees 54,62 .40

*Gratuity and lesve encashment amounts accrued attributable to key management personnel cannot be separately determined as the actuanal valuations have been

perfarmed by an independent actuary 2t the Company lavel and hence not induded in transactions above,

narterod

Agcountants




Payll Pay ts Private Limited
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€. The following bal, are outstanding at the end of the reporting pericd in relation to transactions with refated parties:
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Other receivables

= Prosus Services B.Y

- Zooz Mobile Limited

- MIH Fintech Holdings B.V.

- Swiggy Limited (sarier known as "“Bundl Technologies Pvt Ltd™)
- MIH Servicas FZ LLC

-Payl) Fintach Investmants BY

- Red Dot Payment Pte, Ltd

= Payl Fintech investments By

- Wastu Housing Finance Corporation Umited

Direct Assignment loan Asset
- Vasku Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Trade receivables
- MIH Payments Holdings BV
- Swiggy Limited (earlier known as "“Bundl Technologies Pyt Ltd")

Other current assets
- Red Dot Payment Pte Ltd

Trade payables

- MIH Fayl B.v.

- MIH Services FZ LLC

- MIH Payments Holdings 8.V,

= MIH Fintech Holdings B.V.

- Prosus Services B.Y

- Payl Payments Solutions {Pty) Ltd
= MIH Internet Holdings B.v.

- Red Dot Payment Pre Ltd

Other financial liabilltles

- Progus Services BV

- MIH Fintach holdings B.Y.

- MIH Services FZ LLC

- MIH Payments Holdings B.Y,

=MIH Payu BY

- Zooz Mobile Ltd

- Swiggy Limlted (earlier known 25 "Bund] Technologies Pyt Ltd™)
- Meesho Payments Private Llimited

{This space has bean left blank intentionally)
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17.14
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179.71
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2.34
153.28
13,55
2.19

3.51
4.90

8.1&
119
125.69
25.06

A.04
69.55
0.04

0.3¢
3.01
152.33
2.58

2.76
85.77
3.35

14.37
23.13
B4,12
153.05
0.29
42.02
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i
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i}

i,

B

Sagment Reperting

Dascription of segments and principal activities

for the year ended March 31, 2035

Operalting segments are those camponents of the business whose operating results ave requiarly reviewed by the chief cperating decision making body in the Group te make decisions for performance
assessment, resaurce allacation and for which information is available discretely. The reporting of segment information is the same as provided to the management for the purpose of the performance
The group has formed an executive committes (comprising of the CEO and CFQ) which would assume the primary responsibility sround key operating decislons and resource allocations and accordingly
deslgnated it a5 its CODM and has identified two reportable segmenats of its business.
The reportable segments of the Graup comprise of the following:

_Description of activity

Digital Payment Servicas

This part of Busi c

of the

1} Payment gataway services for E-commerce transactions,

2} Web-Technolagies and «

3] Risk-based authentication and payment security related services;
4) Fraud rick identificstion, predominzntly an Indta,

Digital Financial Services

This part of Business comprises the fellowing services which is
1} Lending credit by way of personal loan and deferred credit faclllty for short term duration on the basis of the the [nternal business reparting

systems;
2} Ftnance relsted technology services ta the third party customers;
3} Financing through Puy now pay |ater {BNPL) services.

Corporate Segment This

entities p

g services which is monitored by the committee separatefy:-

I ¥ services addressed to business process enginearing ang Information Technolagy;

separately:-

itorad by the

a\rersight [nformatlon managemen{ legal, treasury, control and accounting, hurnan resources, taxes and mvestor relattons,

Geographical segments are categorisad as ‘India’ and *Guiside India’ and are basad on the domicile of the customers.

Operating Segments

iding various corporate functions and activities, These servites include, but are not limited to, exacutive

Eor the veer erded March 31, 2015
B L Dhgital financial Carporate Adjustments and .
Particulars Drigital Fayment i services s::ment :wm Cansolidated
Segment Revenue
External customers 41,909.35 13,720,485 = - 55,620 80
Inter-segment 110,00 1,058 .84 - (b, 7G887) =
Total Segment Revanue 42.6159.38 18,779.39 - {1, 768.87) 55, 639,00
Segment Assets 1,10,446.76 96,784.29 = {86,284.88} 1,20,946.18
Segment Liabilities 39, 086.27 42,233.22 - 3,174.08 84,494,327
Its and R iliation of 5 {4 Its t¢ Proflt/{Loss) before Tax
Profit f {loss) befare tax 906.77 {2.613.06) [B856.70} 66,32 {2,996.68)
Interast expensa B.27 32,49 = (37.20} 3.56
Cther incamz {405,51) (i18.84) - 188,01 {335.34)
Remeasurement of cash zettied share based expenses (1 [182.2%) - {1,327.8
EBIT/Trading profit / (loss) [GS6.03) (L, B61,66) 218.13 (415637
Share based payment expense 1,138.79 262.58 - - 1,4G1.37
Management £ress charge 523,02 26.70 - S 549,73
interest an leass liabilities 49.01 3g.41 - - 8842
Amartisatlon of [ntanglhle assets 102,13 25.58 - {71.40) 56.231
Depreciation on tangible assets and ROV 23118 B1.03 - - F16,12
Adjusted EBITDA 1,390,032 [3,434.27) (BE8. 7O} 146,72 [1, 744,31}
Eor the vear soded March 1L 2034
= Digital franclal Corporate Adiustiments and

Particalars Digital Payment Consolldatad
Sagment Ravenis

External custarmars 36,473.37 &,800.50 = . 45,273.86
inter-segment 75545 108301 - {1,758 46} ]
Total Segment Revenue 37,228 83 8.8 l._:._ll - {1,768 48] 4% 273,86
Sagment Asgets %6,100.41 75,504.71 - {1,05,731.59} 65,873.43
Segment Liabilites 5,033,310 35,330.64 - {2,409.62} 40,954.32

R and R illation of results to Profit/{Loss) hafore Tax

Profit f (loss) befora tax (1,025.67) {1,336.29) {501.68) 158.57 (2.698.05)
Interest expense 24,85 3g.88 - [51.94) 11.78
Qther income {607.53) {15296} - 280.60 {479.96)
Remessurement of cash settled share based exponses 54,07 (448, 47 [354.40)
EBIT/Trading profit / {loss} (L518.348) [1,8992.85) (3,520,623
Share based payment expense 1,352.46 231.47 - {67.41) 1,516.52
Management ¢ross charge 417,61 66,67 - - 484,28
interest on fease [tabllities 36,682 39.48 - 0.88 9747
Amortisation of intangible assets 99.05 23.74 - (71.40) 51.28
Crepraciation on tangible assets and ROY 1590, 24 83.79 - 1037 28379
Adjusted EBITDA [T F] Ligd48.230) [ELERTN] 260,57 {1087 47
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Notes:

{I} Adjusted EBITDA Is a non-End AS messure that represents operating profit/less, as adjusted,

(i3

tiiiy
<}

a} Depreciation and amortisation expense (refer note 30)
b} Share based payment expense {refer note 38}

) Management cross charge (refer note 22}

d) Excepticnal items {refer note 23}

e} Other income {refer note 28)

f} Interest expeanse {refer note 29)

9] Interest o lease liabilities (refer note 29)

Trading (less)/profit is 5 non-Ind AS measure that refers to adjusted EBITDA adjusted for
a} Deprediation and amortsation expensa (refer note 30}
b) interest on lease labilities {refer note 297

¢} Share based payment expense (excluding remagurement cash settied share based payment expenses) {refer note 38)

4} Management cross charge {refer note 32)

COLM uses Adjusted EBITOA and trading profit as fec] lyse eperational p i}
Disaggl tlon of 1 from contracts with
Sales between segments are carrled out at 2rm’s length and are efiml d on ¢ Idatton. The revenus ts 1 tn the same way s In the statement of proflt and loss, The group derves
revenua from transfer of goods and services over time and at a palnt of time in the following major product nes and geographical areas,
graphical Infor
For the year endad Az at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Particulars Revenue from external customers Non-current operating assets
Digital payment Digital financial Digital payntent Digital Bnancial
services services
India 40,035.65 14,382,924 §,740.24 1,865.48
Dutside India 1,211.19 - 0.50 -
Tata] 41,246,85 14,382,994 8,740.74 1,865.48
For the year ended As ar
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Particulars enue from external Non-current oporating assets
- Dlgikal financial Diglral financial
Digital payment P Dgltal payment Vet
India 35,852.33 B, 745.07 8,382.38 1,493,854
Outside India 621.03 55.43 = =
Tatal 355ﬂ73.37 8,800.50 B, m 1,493.84

{This space has been left blank intentionally}
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43  Failr value and fair value hierarchy

The group uses the following hisrarchy for determining and disclosing the Falr value of finandiaf instrument by valuation tachnlque:

+ Leve] 1 - quoted prices {unadjusted) in 2ctive markats for identical assets or labilities:

+ Level 2 - inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as price) or indirectly (i.e, derived from prices): and
» Level 3 - derived from valuation techniques that Include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based an observable market data {unobservable inputs)

1} Set out below, I's a comparisen by class of the carrvitng amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial Instruments that are recurringly measured at fair valye.

Partlculars "!:',EI S FAAT v NN Marc:gr,tzozs Marc:;;,tzozd

Carrying value Fair value Carrying valua Fair value
Finan<iai Assets
Measured at fair value through cther comprehensive income
- Unguoted equity shares Level 3 77.04 77.04 77.08 704
Financlal Liakilities
- Net Put Option with Non Contralting Interest ™ Level 3 3,743.00 3,743.00 B -

Valuatien Mathedology:

(i} Unguoted Equity Shares represtents investments in Ferbine and NPCE | The group being minority shareholder, does not have any other afternate source to delermine the fair value of
Investmants in ungoted shared a5 at March 31, 2025, Management, based on financial information available, believes that the value of these shares has not changed matertally since the

acquisition/investment date and therefore the purchase value of these shares have been considered as their Fair value.

(i} The group has entered into Call and Put Opticn with promoters of Mindgabe Solution Private Limited for purchase of ramaining stake in the company which has been recognised as Put
Qption Liability. The company used Monte Carlo Simulation to caleulate the expected consideration payable for the remalning stake to be purchased, The models inCorporate various inputs
including Revenue Volatility, Equity Volatility, EBITDA Volatility, Risk Adjusted Discount Rate for Revenue end Risk Adjusted Discount Rate for EBITDA and Weigheted Average Cost of

Capital.
Reconciliation of Leve] 3 fair value measurement is as follows:

Particulars

As at

March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Unguoted equity shares

Balance at the baginning of the year 77.04 77.04
Gains/{losses) recognised in other compr ive income - -
Balance at the end of the year ?7.04 77.04
Net put option liability with non controlling Interest

Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Additions during the year 3,743.Q0 -
Gains/{iosses) recognised in profitfloss Cs &
Balance at the end of the year 3,743.09 =

ii} Set out below, is a comparisen by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group®s financial Instraments that are not recurringly measured at fair value (i.e,

carried at amortised cost}.

As at

Leve| of Fair Value

As at

Particulars . March 31, 2025 March 31, 3024
- Carrving value Fair value Carrylng valus Fair value
Financial Assets
Measured at amertised cost
- Trade recaivables Lavel 3 3,645.69 3,645.63 1,664.57 1,664.57
- Cash and cash equivalents Level 1 14,570.72 14,570.72 16,777.17 1077717
- Bank talances other than above Lavel 1 26,193.40 26,193.40 4,231 42 4,231.42
- Loans Leve] 3 42,985.08 43,508.66 31,582.15 31,66%.94
- Cther financial assets Level 3 8.,005,6% 8,005.69 4,783.29 4,782.2¢
Total 95,400.58 95.924.17 53.008.59 53.126.38
Firancial Liabilities
HMeasured at amortisad eost
= Borrowings Level 3 38,178.48 3B,328.51 30,963.10 31,529.20
= Lease labliihes Level 3 947.52 947.52 966,80 966 .86
- Trade payables Levef 3 2.72%.33 2,729.33 1,945.57 1,945,597
- Other financial kabilities Lavel 3 34.870.02 24,870.02 5.093.26 5093.26
Total 76.725.35 756.875.39 38.968.79 35,534.89
Nates:;

The management sssessed that cash and cash equivalents, other Bank balances, loans, trade receivables, trade payables, pank everdrafts and other financial assets / habilities approximata

their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

There are no financial instruments measured at Level 1 and Leve! 2 falr value as at respective reporting dates,

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Rizh management framework

The Group has exposura ko the following risks arising from the financial statements:
iy Credit risk

i) Llquidity risk

i) Markel risk

The Group has for d a comprehensive Risk Manag t Policy, which covers, interatia, Credit risk, Liquidity risk and Market rlsk of the srganisation.

This note explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed %o and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial staternents.

Credit risk
Crediy risk s the risk of financlal loss to the Group If & customer or 3 counter party to a finandal strument fatls to meet the contractual ohilgations, Cradit rsk encompssses both, the direct Ask of defaulk

and the risk of deterioration of credit warthiness ag well concentration of risk. Financial instruments that are subject to concentration of cradit risk principally canstst of trade receivatle, cash and cash
equivalents, [pans and other finangial assets,

Financial assets that expose the entity to credit risk

Particulars Asiat As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Loans {Refer Note A below) 42,985.08 31,952,158
Trade receivables (Refer Moto B below) 384589 1,664.57
Contract assets (Refar Note B betow) 625,63 173.25
Investments (Refer Note C below} 77.04 77.04
Cash and cash equlvalents {Refar Note C below) 14,570.72 10,777.17
Other bank balances {Refer Note C below) 26,193 40 4,231.42
Gther financial assets (Refer fote ¢ helow) B840 A, 78124
Total 6, 103,25 50, 25U S
Cradit Risk - Loans
in pliance with latary requi and accounting standards, the group has pted a robust Fr k for the ldentification, measurement, and management of credit risk. This disclosure

includes a detailed analysic of the credit risk associated with different pertfolios of loans, as well as the caleulatton of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) a5 per IndAS 109,
The greup is in the business of providing credit in the form of loans and kransactional credit, The leans are unsecured and vary in tenure fram 3 months ko 60 months.

The credit risk is primarily refated to the four key portfolios mentioned betow:

1.} Persanal Loan - {Own Lending Portfolio) - This partfolio comprises leans disbursed through our internal 2pps and are sourced through DSAs, online aggragatars and marketing, The maximem loan
tenura is &0 menths and the maximum ticket size in 7.5 lakns.

ii.) Persomal Loan - API Lending Portfolle - This portfolio consists of loans originatad through third-party Lead Service Providers integrations, intiuding collaborations with fintach platforms, e-commerce
services, and other third-party lenders under a Co-lending arrangement.

iii.) Small Merchant Busingss Loans (SiB) Portfolio - Loans tn this portfolio ara extended to smell and med 1284 busi (SMBs} to support their operatlonal needs,

iv.} Buy Now Pay Later (BNPL) Lending Model - This portfofle consists of short-term loans extendad to cansumers who make purchases and repay over time,

Each of these portfolios has unique characteristles and credit risk is measured and differantly depending on the portfolio type,

The group's lending is governed by board approved Credit Policy, Risk Management Committee evatuates all policies and portfotio performance on quarterly basis. It also reviews Operational, Information
Security and Fraud Risk. The Chief Risk Officer {CROY) from the Risk Management Committes af tha Company is responsible for the key pollcies and processes for manaotng credit risk, which include
farmulating credit policies and risk rating frameworks, guiding the Company's appetite for credit risk expasures, undertaking independent reviews and objective assessment of credit risk, monitoring
performance and management of portfolios,

Credit risk managemsent

The Group's exposure ta credit risk is influenced mainly by the characteristics of each ¢ . H i U] t also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base,
including the defaull risk arrizing frofn macro-econmormic factors.

The basic credlt risk managemant would cover three key areas, iz, {3) custorner selectlon (b) customer management & (¢) ECL Methodolagy and These are governed by
Commlittee/Beard Approved Credit Policy and Cellections Polley which 15 reviewed on 3 regular basis,

a,} Customer Selection:
Key criterion for customer selection is in accorgance with Committee/Board Appreved Credit Policy, which defines, inter alia, typa of customers, category, market segment, income criterion, KYC

requirement, documentation ate. The Policy also spells out detalls of credit appraisal process, defegation structure. The custormer selection process aims to ensure quality portfolio and lower delinquency.
1.} Parsenal Loan- Own Lending- Cust Selecti The Own Lending Portfolio consists of toans disbursed directly by PayU Finance under Its progrietary lending programs agatnst the leads
orlginated by PaySense

All the I pp d applicaticns wnd) a numbear of checks which include:

+ Ensuring the eligibillty of the customers thraugh the built in logics in the appllcations
= Scrutiny of KYC and ingome documents

= Bureau checks

= intgrnal deduplication checks,

+ Fraud deduplication check

= Anti Money Laundring Check ete_

it.} Persenal Loan- APT Lend] Cust

The APT Lending Portfolia consists of [pans originated through third-party Lesd Service Providers integratlens, including cellaborations with Fintech platforms, e-commerce services, and other third-party
lenders through a Co-dending arrangement. Credit risk |3 shared between Payl Finance and its partners. Partrer platforms are responsible for [nitla) credit assessment, while Payl Finance performs
additi itering and validation of credi thiness,

The company has credit policy in place For APE Lending Portfolio as well, which definas the sustomer efigibility for Lending through Payl! Finance, The API Partner is responsible for collection fof KYC
docaments, basic KYC Checks snd others documets check at first.

As we received the applications through LSP, those applicatlons undergo @ number of checks which include:s AMS check to verify the loan amount, lean tenure 2rd interest rate.

= Serutiny of KYC decuments

= Bureau Score checks

+ MName and Temgering Check for Signatures

+ Anti Money Laundring Check ete,

iit,) SMB Leadi Cust; 1
The SMB Portclio consists of loans extended to small znd medium-sized businesses (SMBs) to support thair growth and operational needs,

The company has credit policy in place for SMB Lending Portfolio as wetl, which defines the ¢ igibility for Lending through Payl! Finance, The Comp has onboarded LSPs ltkes BharatPe,
PhonePe, Meesho etc. which provides an assessment of Credit risk based on the Ainanclal health of SMBs, including cash fow analysis and credit history,
L5Fs are responsible for KYC Cheeks and others dotumets check at fivst,

As we recelved the applications through L3P, those applications undergo a number of checks which include:

= Basic information Mateh

+ Burzau checks

= Anki Money Laundring Check etc.
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v.} BNPL Maode] Lending- Custemer Selection:
The SNPL Portfofto consists of short-Term leans extended to consumers who make purchases and repay the loan, The credibworthiness of BNPL borrowers 15 assessad at the polnt of sale, with simple credit
checks, transzction history, and behavioral data,

In al| cases credit fimits and intrest rates are assh i based on Company’s internzl policies and models

B.}) Customer Management
Customer management refates to credit controls once a loan is disbursed, broadly consisting of:

1.} Portfollo monftaring:
The © ¥ perform ¢ i itoring of the portfolio leveraging various capzhilities icluding review of aging, behavior scores, bureau refresh, bureaw alerts, payment behavior, transaction

trends, and periodic update on DPD {Days Past dues)

it} Portfaliec managemant:
Fortfollo management attivitles enable us to grow lower fisk exposures while restricting tugh rigk. The company have robust ¢ around dy [krmit , CF il oF term loans,
balance transfers. Account management capabilities including a robust blocking strategy, ref , disp q t, and imit strateqies

iit.} Fraud control:
Contlnuous monltoring of transactons and a risk-based approach Is leveraged to \dent!fy Instances of fraud ke account takeover, unauthorised arcess, Algorithm bullk In the applications are leveraged to
identify potentizl frauds and preactively protect ageinst the same

iv.) Collection strategy:

Customers who fail ko pay their dues by the stipulated payment due dates, at varfous stages of delinquency come under the purvlew of coflection and recovery gies. The Comp has developed
alginthms in application to prionitise cellection efforts and also guide the intensity of efforts across deli ¥ buckets, H p tools are leveraged to help resolve cases including settlements and
rastructuring.

¢} ECL Methodalogy and arent

The group measures Expected credit losses (ECL') using Probability of Defanlt (PD), Exgosure of Default {EAD), Loss Given Default (LGD). At initial recognltlon, an allowance or provision is recegnised for
ECL resulting from possible default events within the next 12 months, or less, where the remaining life is less than 12 months {'12-maonth ECL'). In the event of a significant Increase in credit risk, an

Ih e (Qr provision) s ree Ised for ECL resulting from all pessible defaulk events over the expected life of the financial instrument (lifetime ECLY. Finandial assets where 12-month ECL is
recognised are considerad to be “stage 17 financial assets which are considered ta have experiencad a sigrificant increace in credit risk are in ‘stage 27 and financial assets for which there is objective
evidence of impairment, and so are considered to be in default or otherwise credit impaired are tn “stage 3°,

The group uses muftiple eronomic factors to measure the ECL on a Ferward locking basis. Some of these factors include change in inflation, growth in i £t Price Index (P}, currency
clreutation. Correlations have been tested with past NPA trends. Factors where management vlews the corealations to be acceptable are than used to a55ess the extent of Impact on the portfolle.

The assessment of credit risk and the estimalion of ECL are unbiased and probability -weighted, and incorporate all ilable inf ton which is rel to the ingluding Infarmation about
past evants, current conditlons and reasanable and supportable foracssts of future events and economic conditions at the reporting date. In addition, the estirmation of ECL should take into atcount the
tiimie value of money. In general, The Group caloulates ECL using three main compenents: a probability of default ['PDY), a loss glven default ("LGDY) and the exposure at defsult {*EAD’). The 12-month
ECL |5 calculated by multiplying the 12-menth P, LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL is calculated using the lifatine PD instead, The E2-month and lifetime P05 represent the probability of defsult occurring over
the pext 12 months and the remaining maturity of the instrument respectively,

The EAD represents the expected bajance at default, taking inke 2ccount the repayment of principal and interest from the balance sheel date to the defauft event together with any expected drawdowns of
committad facilities, The LGD reprasants expactad lesses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attrtbutes, the hitorical trands and the expected behaviour of the loan.

The Group categorises loan assets and rece{wables inte stages based on the days past due status:
- Current - Stage 1

- -0 days past due - Staga 1

- 31- 90 days past due - Skage 2

- More than 90 days past due - Stage 3,

Segmentation:

For measurement of ECL, the group segments its partfollos, This is done o aczaunt for the differences in riski in behavior between and sub The ion is
prienarlly based on the tistorical daata supporied by the business understanding and rationale of their products. This |s further supportad by quantitative techniques incorporated to assess segment
diffarantiation.

The financial assets have been d inta following catagaries:

»  Praduct Tyae: Different loan products may have unique featuras and risk factors, so it's important to segment them based on thelr spectfic charactaristics.

- Distribution Channel: The way loans are distributed can affect the risk profile. For exampte, online [oans might attract diffarent custamers than Jeans distributed through physical branches.
»  Approval Process: The undernwniting criteria and approval process can influence the fikelihood of repayment, so loans apgroved through different processes are segmented accordingly.

»  Loan Duratinn {Tenor): The length of the loan term can impact the borrower's ability to repay, with longer loans potentially carrying more risk.

Probability of default {BD):
For PD calculation, the group has dane PD Segmentation as well:

The segmentation within the PL pertfolio is designed te categarnize |oans inte groups that share similar risk and behavioural characteristics, For instance,
* Sggment congisting of short-term lpans distnibuted online with an automated approval process
* Segment consisting of long-term losns offerad through physical brenches with a approval process,

Days past due (OPD) anaiysis is the primary input into the detarmination of the terem structure of PD for expesures. The Group collects performance and default informatton a2baut its credit sk axposures
analysed by type of product ar borrower as well 3¢ by DPD, The Graup employ al models to ysed the data collected and generate estimates of the PD of exposures and how these are
expected (o change a3 a result of passage of time,

Probakility of Default "PD” {Through the Cycle)

The sectinn encamy the overal] hodelogy used for developing the TTC PD models for Payll Fin portfollos. The caleulated defaulk rates are willized for computation of PIT PR for Personal Loan
Own Landing Portfolio and SME Lending Porifolie by using OLS regrassion, Tn case of Personal Loans- APT Lending Portfello (all partners axcluding NIRO), historical Prabability of Defsult "PD” (Through the
Cycle) has been used, For NIRO, similar to Personal Loan Own Lending Portfolic and SMB Lending Portfolin, calculated default rates are utilized for computation of PIT £Ds.

Far the calculation of Through-the-Cycle (TTC) PD, two methods are applled across diffarent segments:

»Observed Default Rate Appreack : The Observed Default Rate (ODR) approach is used fgr Personal Loans (PL} and Smail Merchant Business {SMA) Loans to measure the defzult rate at which
borrowers shift from performing |oans to default status over a defined pariod, This historical dava is critical in assessing the Probability of Default (RD) for berrowers, For QDR computation, the histornicz]
data ranges from January 2021 ] September 2024 for the parsonal loan's portfolio. The default rate obtained from the analysis for each conatt IS defined as the Observed Default Rate (DDR), The
Obzerved Default Rate is computed monthly at Month on Book (MOB) level,

#Flow Rate Anafysis: The Flow-Rate Method was employed for Buy Mow Pay Later {BNPL) to estimate the Through-The-Cycle {TTZ) Probability of Default {PD}. This methad invalves analyzing the
transitions of accounts between different &hﬂum-\y buckets over time, The process uses historical data o compute transition rates between these buckats, which are then -u'mn o satimane delf i
probabilities. ——
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Probability of Default {PD} - PIT PD

+As requirad by Ind AS 109 the expected loss is measured through the incorporation of forward-looking Information. Farward [ooking information is addressed through scenaries linked to macro-economic
Factors. The PD values derived so far are unconditional, however, Ind AS 109 requlres PD estimates 1o be conditional on refevant ferward-looking infarmation and thereby considers Point in Time (PIT) PD
a better risk estimate. Unlike the Through-The-Cyele (TTC) approach, which considers the entire economic cycle, the PIT PD appreach reflects the credit risk associated with current canditions and factors
affecting the borrower st a paricufar moment,

»PI PD models are typically facused on shart-term horizons, such as the next 12 months, although the exact
requirements, The models alm o capture changes In credlt risk over relatively bref periods,

f ding an the institution’s risk mar

may vary d g t practices and regulatory

«0LS Regression analysis is used for variable sefection to be used in the Vasicek methoadolagy for caleulation of PIT PO forecasts and term structures.For creating macroeconomic models, the
macroeconomic Faetors/ varlables are used as Independent factors. As lterated above, the dats for the systemic factors ts obtalned from the IMF {World Economitc Cutlook Database, October 2024}, The
madel is trained using annual historical time sertes data from 2019 to 2024, with forecasts provided for the period 2025-2029 based ¢n data frem the IMF, All macroecenomic variables, except inflation
{CPl}, are sourced from the IMF database, while inflation data s obtatned from the RBI datab This methodolegy was adopted after obtaining ¢ From Payl's senior management, The RBI
provided anneral histarleal time series data for 201%-2024, with forecasts available up s 2026, For values beyond the forecast period, the latest avaitable annual forecasted value from the RBLis treated as

constant for extrapolation, Exogenous macroeconomic parameters were used a5 independent (X) variables to pradict the dependent [¥) vartable (PIT PO}

s4fter selection of bwo macroeconemic varisbles vasicek model has hasn developed vsing these 2 factors for Personal Logns- Own Lending portfolic,
Exposure at default {EAD)

Tha exposure at default (EAD) represents the axpecled axposure in the event of a default and is the gross carrying amount in case of the financal assels held by the Group.
Loss given default {LGD)
Loss given default is an estimate of loss from a transaction given that a default occurs, Each segment is treated separately for the calculation of Loss Given Default (LG},

For Personal Leans- Own Lending Portfalio and API Lending Portfolic , data from January 2018 to Februzry 2024 has been utifized in the calcufation of LGD.

Defaulted T s identified; Recovery PariadfRecovery Threshold was established. After the recovery perigd, the entire pepulation for LGD calculation is fnalized, This popufation indudes all cdlosed,
which are cansidered for the calculation. For epen accounts, only those thal have completed their recovery window, These accounts form tha data input used for the LGO calculation, To calculate the
economic loss of a defaulted Facility, the observed recoveries need to be discounted back to the default date, reflecting the time value of money, The discount rate applied is the intarest rate prevailing at
the time of default, The cost of racovery |s constdered 25 15% of the recovery amount For PL. The discounted recoveries are multiplied by this cast percentage to determine the actual recoveries after
arcaucnttng for recovaery costs.

{Buy Now Pay Later - BNPL): For BMNPL LGD computation, the historical data ranges from Apri) 2021 tl| March 2023, This dataset includes all defaults fram April 2021, and the recovery amounts

already reflact 12 manths of recovery. Far BNPL, the recovery window is ¢ i dtc be 12

For the Small Merchant Business (SME} portfalie, thera are Insufficient defaults, resulting in limited LGD data, Bue to this lack of data, 2 €5% regulatery LGD is applied as a conservative estimate.

Exposute ak default (FAD}
The calculatlon of Exposure at Default {EAD) incorporates the following key assumpttans:

sRepayment Perfod and EAD Facter [Cwn Lending Portfolto+ SMB Portfolio + API Lending Lorg tenure Loan): For the purpeses of EAD calcalation, it is assumad that repayments occur over a
B-ronth perlod. Stnce defaults can ocour 20 any tme dunng the year, the repayment Is canstdered up to the midpoint of the repayment period to 2ccurately reflact the exposure at the paint of default. Te
adjust the expesure for the full £2-month period, the EAD factor is calculated 35 the ratlo of the EAD at the end of the 6-month repayment period to the EAD at the reporting date, This ensuras the
exposure is appropriately scated te reflect the full 12-month peried, accounting for repaymaents and changes in exposure over time.

+Repayment Period and EAD Facter [API Lending except Long Terure Loans of API Lending}: For the purpoese of EAD calculation for APT Lending partners expected number of repayments
before loan becomes NPA is wned, This EMI rund, |s based on MOB, DPD Rucket and lender seg t. 3 lender ks are created;

Portfolin 1 Loans with tenure <=5 months
Portfolio 1 loans with tenure »5 months

Others All Portfolio of API Lending

DPD_Bucket Portfclio L (Tenure -5} Portfelic 1 {Tenure 5+) Cthers

1 EMI rindown In 0-2 MOB 2 EMI rundown across

Bucket ¢ Mo rundown MOB 3 onwards e Bt Mo

Bucker 1 No rundown 1 EME rundown across MOB 1EM mr:g:n ALI0SS
Bucket 2 Mo rundown 1 EMI rundown across MO8 Sl ru::!g;n Beinss
Bucket 3 Mo rundown Mo rundewn Mo rundown
«EAD Ing {12 hs): The exp e iz discounted for 12 manths of the repayment period. This method accounts for the tima value of money, providing a more accurate representation of
the exposure in the event of default. The 12 months discountlng approach cansiders the average time-weighted exposure, enhancing the reliability of the EAD caloulation by adjusting for the timing of
cash fows

f of significant incroase in credit risk

The credit risk on & financial asset of the Sroup are assymad to have increased sionificantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are rmore than 30 days past due, Accordingly the financial
agsats shall be classified as Stage 2, if on the reporting data, it has been mare than 30 days past due.

Cradit Impaired

& default on a Ananglal assel s when the counterparty falls to make the contrachral payments within 50 days from the day It Is due. Accordingly the financial assets shall be classifted as Stage 3, If on the
reparting date, it has been 99 days past due.

Farward looking information

1n jts EEL models, the Group relies on a broad range of forward looking infarmation as macre econemic {ME) tnputs, Some of these factors include change in infation, growth in investment, Consumer
Price Indew {CFPI), cwsrency clrculation, Carrelations have been tested with past NPA trends, Facters where management views the carrelations to be acceptable are then used to assess the extant of
impact on the portfolle, Overtime, new ME varniable may emerge to have 3 better corelation and may replace ME being vsed now,

Palicy on write off

Financlal assets are fully provided for or written off {gither partizlly or in full} as per the Group's accounting policy, However, financial assets that are writtan off could still be subject to enfarcement
activities under the Group recovery procedures, taking inte account legal advice where appropriate, Any recoverles made are recognised in statement of prefit or loss on actua! realization from customer,

MNew Portfolie acquirad during the year

On March 31, 2025, the Company acquired a partfolle of housing loans from a financlal Instivstion. At the time of acqulsition, management conducted & comprehensive revlew of "__J“'F""“""“\- Thi=.
Company is curently i the procass of implementing a dedicated systam to monitor credit access risks associated with this porifolic,

The carrylng value of the portfolto, net of Expected Credlt Loss (ECLY, is INR 17653 mll{ton.
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Lhanges to the ECL Methodology during the year

The Group has I
>Segmentation

> Use of Point in time PO's for longer pericd tenure teans and hosterical POs fer shorter tenure loans

= Loss Given Befault
> Exposure at Dafauit

The application of the new Methadology did nat result in @ significant impact on the ECL measurement.

ECL Matrix

The follewing tables gives Raceivables and credit risk / exposure concentration by client poniolio:

(i) Concentration by client portfalic

As at 31-Mar-25

ts for the year ended March 31, 2025

ed new ECL Methodelagy In the current year and used assumption In the various factors of ECL mentlaned balow:

Portfolic Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 (Defaulted) Total Loan Balance/
(Performing) {Ynderperforming) Impairment

Own Lending Loan Bafanca 17,245,272 371.58 608,03 18.229.83
ECL Balance E2B.42 124 08 495,83 1,246.33
LY 3.64% 33.39% Bl1.41% 6.85%

API Lending Loan Bajance 12,373.62 459,91 55601 13,289.55
ECL Balance 363.82 22338 495 42 1,081.59
ECL%: 2.94% 48.35% 89.10% B.0B%

SMB Portfoliv Loan Balance 12,488.66 235.74 157.53 12,881.93
ELL Balance 37466 28.16 10%.0% 52185
ECL% 2.00% 16.159% 65.21% 4.05%

BNPL Portfolle Loan Balance 1.181.28 &4.76 248 1,248.52
ECL Balance 3670 50,77 248 85,95
ECL% 3.11% 78.40%: 100.00% 7.20%

Houging Loan Portiolie Loan Balance 179.71 - - 179.71
ECL Bafance 2.73 . 273
ECL% 1.52% 0.06% 4.80% 1.52%

As at 31-Mar-24

Partfelio Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 {Defaulted} Totaf Loan Balancef

(Perfarming} {Underperforming ) Impairment
Provision

Own Lending Loan Balance 17,001.07 359.14 330.56 17,690.77
ECL Balance &2d.56 153.48 22644 1.004,43
ECL% 3.67% 42.74% 68.50% 5.6B%

API Lending Loan Balange 12,952.3% 260,58 185,35 13,398.23
E£CL Balance 505.87 11870 17774 80230
ECL%% 3.91% 45.55% G5.89% 5.959%

SMB Portfolic Loan Balance 1,628.04 4.483 140 1,632.86
ECL Balance 96.38 1.86 0.78 95,12
ECL% 5.92% 40, 69% 77.64% 6. 07%

BNPL Partfolie Loan Balance 73992 55.36 4,82 800,10
ECL Balance 27.59 32,50 4.82 64,91
ECLY 3.73% 58.71% 100.00% £.11%

{il} Movements in the gross carrylng amount in respect af leans and recefyakle, 1.e, agset on finance

Performing Under-performing Non-performing

Barticaiars {stage 1) {stage 2} {stage 3} g

As at April 01, 2023 16,706.54 594.61 514.38 17.815.63

Transfer during the vear

- Transfer ko stage 1 B.95 [8.09) [Q.88) -

- Transfer to stage 2 (255.95) 256,24 (029} -

- Transfer to stage 3 {1,528 .50} {49355} 2,022.1% =

Changes in opening credit exposures (repaid net of disbursal} (11,085,368} {126.54) (346,99 {11,553.29}

Mew credlt exp inet of repay 28.475.73 451.55 465.28 25,352.56

Aracunt written aff durtng the year . = (2,131 95 [2, 131.95]

As at March 31, 2024 KFEEERCY [ TaNF] S22 EXRTERN

As at April D1, 2024 32,321.42 679.82 521.72 33,522.96

Transfer duriha the year

- Transfer to stage 1 13,77 {10,42) §2.35y -

- Transfer to stage 2 [552.63) 552.97 1034} -

- Transfer to stage 3 £2,922.24) (564,74} 3,486.85 (G213}

Changes in apening credit exposures (repaid net of disbursal) {18,159.3%) {250.27} {562.131 {1B.971.79)

Mew credit exp fnet of repay s} 32.771.59 724 .64 1,526.37 35,022.60

Amaunt writtan off durtng the year a - (3,644 001 {3 644,08}

As at March 31, 2025 wl 1 ‘lw 1m 45 9 FG a‘

- 1
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(i}

The loss allowance for leans and receivables as at 31st March 2024 recondiles to the opering loss aliowance as fallows *:

Perferming Under-parforming Man-performing
Partlculars i {xtags 2 {stage 3 Tota)
Loss allowance as at 1st April 2023 564.46 368,82 399.57 1,332.85
Transfer during the year
- Transfar to stage 1 550 [4.77} 18.73) -
- Trapsfer o stage 2 {9.21) 9.494 (023} -
- Transfor to stage 3 {52.65) {309.96) 388,60 -
Net remeasurement of loss aliowance {7.81) §2.96 1.875.27 1,757.42
Changes in opening credit exposures (repald [338.13) {39.56) {273.93) (651.62)
net of disbursal)
New credit exposure {net of repayments} 1,093.25 192,61 27315 1.664.01
Amount written off during the year - {2,131.95) {2,131.55}
Loss allewance as at 31st March 2024 1,254,440 FOG6, 64 408,77 1.970.51
The loss allowanca for loans and recelvables as af 31st March 2025 reconciles te the opening less allowance as follows *:

Performing Under-performing Non-performing

LI Ti

Particulars i 1} ¢ ] [ 1 otal
Loss allowance as at 15t April 2024 1,254.9C aneG.64 409.77 197081
Transfer during the year
- Transfer to stage 1 7.35 {4.G7) {268} E
- Transker to stage 2 {21.18) 21,43 {0.37) =
- Transfer to stage 3 (111.78) {252 60 364.38 =
Mat r nent of loss &l 2 103,58 170,17 3.126.37 3,408,111
Changes In opaning cradit exposures (repald (6B3.15] (81.68) [431.37) {1,195.20}
net of disbursall
Mew credik fnet of te) Ba45.81 276.08 1,290.92 2,413.81
Amgunt written off during the vear = — {3644 0%) {3, 644.09]
Lass allowance as at 31st March 2025 L.356.05 438,37 1,113.04 2.944 46

Credit Risk - Trade recalvables and Contract assets

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales aver a pertod of 36 months before the reporting date and the corresponding histonical credit losses experienced within this perfad, The
histartcal loss rates are adjusted to reffect current and forward-tooking infarmation on macroeconamic factars affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The group hag identified the
GOP and the unemployment rate of the countries in which it sells its goods and sarvices to be the moest refevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on axpected changes in

these faotors,

Mareover, given the diverse natute of the Group's buslness trade recelvables are spread over a number of customers with no stgnificant concentratton of credIt risk, No sirgle customer accounted for

10.0% or more of trade recaivable on 2 % basis in any of the years indlcated.

AR impairmant analysis is performed at each reporting date on trade receivables by lifetime expacted credit loss methed based on provision matrix. The maximum exposure te cradit risk 2t the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Group does nat hold collateral a5 security. The Group evaluates the cancentration of risk with respect to trade receivables a5 low, as its
customers are located in sevaral junsdictions and industries and operate in [argely indepandent markets. The maximum exgosure t credit rsk at the reporting date is the carrying value of sach class of

financial asrets disclosed in Nobe 43

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off where there is no ressonable axgectation of recovery, Indicators thal there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, ameongst others, the

failure of a debtor t0 engage in 3 repayment plan with the group, and a failure to make contractual payments.

Los= all & Was d Tor both trade receivables and contract assets under the simplified appreach:

: - As at As at
Particulars March 11, 2028 March 31. 2024
Trade receivables
Gross carcylng amount - trade recelvables 3.649.03 1,752 71
Expectad credit loss - trade receivables (203.34} [88.141
Carrylng amourt of trade recelvables {net of § ; t} 3, 845.69 1,664,857
Caontract assets
Gross carrying amount - SOnEract assets 625.63 173.25
Expectad credit Ioss - contract assets - i
Carrying amount of contract assets {nat of impairmant) §25.63 173.25
Reconclliatlon of [oss all & previsien of trade {vables and contract assets
Particulars Az at Az at

March 31, 2025

Opening Balance

Provision for expected credit losses
Utilized during the year

Revarsal of provision

Exchange difference an translation
Closing Balance

Write-offs of trade recejvables
Trade receivables written off which is not expected to recover

Credit Risk - Cther financial assets

March 31. 2024

88.14 113.51
114.58 61.65
. 12.29}
= (8521}
0.65 1.48
263,34 68.14
‘ 27.13

Other fnancial assets mainky include security deposits, excess interast spread, raceivable from the related party, bank depesits, other receivables etc, where the credit risk is envisaged to be minimal.

Market rish

Harket risk 15 the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of threa types of rlsk: currency risk, interest

rate risk and other price risk such as eguity price risk and commaodity risk,

Foreign Currency risk

The Group is subject to foreign exchange risk primanily dua te its foreign currency expenses & foreign operations. Constdering the countries and eronomic envirgnment i which the Group operstes, its
operations are subject to Asks arising from fAluctustions In exchange rates tn those countries. The risk primarlly refate to fluctuations in USD against the functional currency of the Group. The Group has a
traasury Eeam which evaluates the impact of foreign rate fluctuation by assessing ils exposure to exchange rate risk and advises the management of any material adverse effect on the Group.

Chartayad
Azcountanis
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Exposure o curcency risk
The followtng tables demonstrate the

ity to a B ible change [n USD B EURD exchange rates, with afi ather variables held constant, The Impact en the Group proft hefore tax and
equity is due ta changes in the fair value of monetary assets and lizbilities. Foreign carrency exposures recognised by the Group that have nat been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as

under,
As at Impact on profit before tax and equity
March 21, 2035
Particulars Nature Amount in INR Amaunt In Forslan 5% Increase 5% Decrease
CUTTENCY.
Financlal assets Trade recelvables (USD) 352.75 4.13 17.64 {17.64)
IS5 TS5 4,13 17.64 {17.64)
Fimancial [fabklities Trade payables (USO) 225.80 2.84 {11.29) 11,39
Trade pavables (Euro) 3.15 0.03 (0.18) 0,16
Trade pavables (GBF) . 5
Trade payablos (SAR} . - *
{Other Ananclal |labilities (Euro} - . e -
{ther fnanclal liabilities (LJSDY 22.33 26 {1.12} 112
Other Anancial [abilities {GBF) - - - &
25128 2.54 {12.563 12.56
Net receivable/ (payable} 101.47 1.19 30240 {30,320}
i Impact on profit befora tax and equlty
March 31, 2024
Partlculars Nature Amount In INR AmaunE I Earainm 5% Increase 5% Decrease
cUrranc v
Financizl assets Trade receivables {US0) 252.70 3.03 12.64 (1264}
252,70 3.03 12,64 [1r.64}
Financial liabilities Trade pavables (USD) 351,94 4.22 {17.86} 17.60
Trade pavables (Eure) 12.27
Trade payables (GBP) 0.04
Trade payables {SAR} 2,53
Other financial lizbitties {Eure) 17408 0.19
Other financial lizbilities {US0) 484.61 5.581 {24.23) 24.23
Other Rnanclal lzbillties (GBP) E—
868.47 10.22 (41.83% 41,83
Met raceivable/ (pavable} {615.76) {7.18%} 54,46 (5d.46}

Hedge accounting

The group is exposed to certain nsks ralating to its ongelng business operations. The primary risks managed using derivative instruments are foreign Cumency fsk.

Cutstanding forward contracts as at the reporting data {millions USD}-Payable

Dutstanding forward contracks as at the reporting date {milllons EURG)-Payable

Curstanding forward contracts as st the reporting date {milllons GBP}-Payvable
Qutskanding forward contracts as at the reporting date (millions S60)-Fayahble

March 31, 2025
163.50
5.97
058
.56

There is no impact on statement of profit and loss and bafance sheat since all the contracts have been entered on 3isk March 2025 and 31st March 2024 for their respective years,

March 31, 2024
450,81

39.23

5.74

0.93

The group's hedging policy anly altows for effective hedge refatlonships to be gstabllshed. Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective
effactiveness 255e55mant te ensure titat an economic relationship exists babween the hedgad itera and hedging instrument.

For forward contracts, hedge effectiveness is measured using hypothetical derivative method, [neffectiveness is measurad by comparing the change in the fatr value of the actval denivative i.e. forward
contracts designated as the hedging instrumant and the change In the fair value of a hypothetical derivative represanting the hedged itemn |.e. highly probable farecast transactions Hypothetical derivative
fratches the critical terms i.e. maturity date, currency and amount of highly probable forecast transactions.

Interest rabe rish

Interest rake risk s the fsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a nancisl Instrurnent wi| Auctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the rick of Changsd in

Particulars

Flxating rate borrowings

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table d rates the

before tax is affected through the impatt on Aeating rate borrowings, as follows:

As ar As at
Marsh 31,3035 March 31, 2024
28,544,213 15,402.67

ity to a ressonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and berrowings affected. With all other variables held censtant, the Group's profif

Particulars

As ak
Mareh 31. 2035

Az at
March 31. 2024

Interest rates increased
Interest rates decreased

Other prica risk - equity investment

285,42
{28544}

15403
(194,03}

The Group's non-listad equity securities are susceptible to marikel price risk arising from encertainttes about future values of the investment securities, The Group manages the equity price risk through
diversification and by placing limmits on individual and total equity instruments,

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Financlal Assets measurad at Fair value
Investments

gh Other compreat

1arierad
guglants

Incoma

7704

7704

77.04

FI.058




Payll Payments Private Limited
Motes to Consclidatad Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

{iit}

Price risk sensitivity analysls

The fallewing table details the Greup's sensitivity to 3 1% increase and decrease in the NAY of ir held. The ibivity lysis includes only autstanding investrments and adjusts their position at
the period and for & 1% change in NAV. A positive number befaw Indicates an Increase in profit or equity where NAY increases b\.r 1%. For a 144 weakening in NAY, there would be 3 comparable Impact on
the profit or equity, and the balances betow would be negative.

Every 1% Increzse f decrease In the MAY of Investments, will affect the Group's profit before tax as glven In below table;

Change in As at As at
i NAV March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit or loss - Strengthening/{Weskening) 1% Nr/irrsl FAHTTY
Equity (net of tax) - Strengthening/{Weaakening) 1% J58/{.58) J58/.58)
Liguidity fisk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encountar difficulty in mesting the obligations assocrated with its Anancial liabllities that are settled by delivering cash or ancther financial asset, The Group’s
Firanc¢ing arrangements

The Group had access to the undrawn bomowing facilitles at the end of the reporting period:

E As at As at
Bacsubr March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Exolring within one year {bank overdraft and other facilities) 2,7595.38 1,523.66
Exnlring beyond ane yvear (bank loans) 2,800,080 350.50
The bank overdraft facilities miay be drawn at any time and may be tarminated by the bank without notice.

The table below 3 the ity profile of the Group’s financial liakilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Az ot March I, JOZ5

Partlcutars Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 year Total
Baorrowlngs 29,507.86 2,859.79 B.519.82 £ 40,687, 47
Lease liablflty SB8.14 171.59 241,93 72.06 1,073.72
Trzde payables 2,481.40 129,10 108.73 10.10 3,72%.33
Other financlal Hiabiities 34,076.11 135.32 3,741.41 - A7,952.84
Tatal 66,653.51 3,295.80 12,651.80 82.16 B2, 643,36
As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Mare than & year Total
Borrewings 20,410,338 3,323.17 9,869.52 - 33,703.07
Lease fiability 299.63 327.08 3¥7.00 308,97 1,302,732
Trade payables 2,618.83 - - - 2,618,83
Other fnancial liabilltles 2,134.45 : 111.460 325.45 E 2.571.34
Tatal 25,453,338 3,761,865 1¢,671.97 308.97 40,195.97

{This space has been lefl Blank intentionally}
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4% Capital management
For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issueg equity capital, securitiag premium and all other 2quity reserves attributable to the equity holders of
the parent, The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is o maximise the shareholder value,

The Group manages Its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes In economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants, To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retumn capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital using a
gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt, The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing ivans and borrowings, fess cash and cash equivalents,
excluding discontinued operations.

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total gebt {including current maturities of long term debt) (Refer A below) 38,178.48 30,963.10
Less; cash and cash equivalents (14,570.72) (10,777.17
Net debt 23,607.76 20,185,93
Total equity {Refer B below) 35,193.82 24,919.14
Total capital 35,193,822 24,919.149
Total capital and net debt 58,801.58 45,105.07
Gearing ratia 4.15% 44.75%
A- Total debt
- Mon-current borrowings 10,452.09 12,637.75
= Current borrowings 27,726.39 18,325.35
38,178.48 30,963.10
B - Totatl equity
- Equity share capitat 3221820 30,153.18
- Other equity 2,975.62 (5,234.04)
35,193,822 24,919,149

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-
bearing Ivans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to Immediately call loans and
botrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowings during the year. No changes were made In the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

{This space has bean jeft blank intentionally)
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46 Business combinations

(i} Acguisitions during the year ended March 31, 2025

On March 20, 2025, the Group entered into a shareholder's agreament [SHA} with the selling shareholders of Mindgate Solutions Private Limited [Mindgate}, As per the SHA, the
Group acquires initially 42.8% sharehelding for a consideration of INR 5,805 and 15 obligated to purchase additional 27.2% for INR 6,142 which is also considered as part of
purchase consideration, (42,8% in Tranche [ and 27.2% in Tranche I}, Accordingly, on March 20, 2025 Mind become a subsidiary of the Group.

Post acquisition of 0% of equity share capital in Mindgate (42.8% i Tranche | and 27.2% in Tranche 11}, the Group has the option to purchass the balance 22.4% stake subject
to achieverment of certain targets by Mindgate Group Wiz a combination of Call and Put Options that the Group has on the balanca 28.4% (Fully dilutive stake) stake.

The Group has assessed that it does not have present cwnership interast over the balance 268.4% (fully dilutive stake) of the equity shares. The call and put option over the non
controlling interest Is recognised at the prasent value of the expected redemption amount.

The Group is in the process of campletion of the Purchase Price Allocation {PPA) in accordance with Ind AS 103 Business Combinations. On balance sheet date, the Group has
accounted for acquisition on provisional basls. Accardingly, It has recognised the group's share in the <arrying amaount of assets and lizbilittes of the subsidiary, Mon Controlfing
Interest {MCH) Including put option lizbility for INR 3,743 and goodwill of IMR ©,011.6€ on provistonal basis.

The fair values of the identifizble assets and liabilities of Mindgate Group as at the acquisition date ware:

Fair value of

Particulars K
BESGLE TAkEN OVEr,
Assals acquired
Proparty, plamt and equipment 114,55
Right-of-use assaet 147.64
Intangible 3550t
Computar software and license -
Customer refationship 2,138.00
Davaloped technology B17.00
Order backlog 34.00
Intangible assats under development -
Dafarrad tax assat {nat} 112,35
Men current tax asset £1.68
Trade recejvables 1,287.67
Cash and cash equivalents 1,G91.91
Other financial asset 94.49
Other current asset 108.80
Darivative assat -
Contract asset s J55.57
Tolal Assals acquired (A} 6,263,608
Leach habdiags 160,26
BOMOWINGS 61.13
Trade payables 191.7G
Other current lizbilities 330.58
Previslons 120.13
Deafarrad tax lability 752.27
Derivative fiability -
Cantract labilities ) 453,79
Tolal Liabilities assumed (B] 1,069,956
Met identifiable assets acquirad {A-B) 4,193.82
Nen-controlling interest measured at proportionate share in identifiable net sssets {C) (1,258.13)
will 2,011
P we conslderation kransierred 11,547
*Goodwill here rep residual asset value attril ble to unid gibl ts acquired hy the acquirer. Goodwill will not be deductible for tax
purposes,
The goodwlll on acquisition is attributable to assembled workforce, expacted synergies from acquisition and sther intangible assets of the Company that cannot be identified
separately.
The Fair value of the non-controlling interest in Mindgate, has been estirnated by applying a proportionate share of net assets method.
B. Calculation of purch ideration
Purchass consideration Amaint
Tranche 1 corsideration paid in cash 5,805,358
Xranche 11 Lighility £,142.00
Purchase consideration 11.947.35
€. Conslderation transferred
Purchass consideration = Amuunt
Cagh congideration 5,805.35
H {1.081.91)
Jist caghfiovs on acquigition 2,713,443

0, Revenue and profit contributicn

The acqulsition date is the date on which Group obtatned control of Mindgare, i.e., March 20 ,20325. For practical purposes and basis materiality, this transaction initially recognized
as at March 31, 2025. Considering the date of acquisition is March 31, 2025, the acquired business did not contributed any ravenue and profit ta tha Group for the period ended
March 31, 2025,
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(it} Acquisitions during the year ended March 31, 2024
On Decemnber 14, 2623, the Group acguired PaySense Services India Pvt Ltd {'PaySense kndia’} Including its whelly owned Subsidiary PayU finance Indra Pyt Ltd ('PayU Finance’),
wibmo Inc {"Wibmo"), Payll Cigital Labs Private Limited (Formetly known as Enstage Software Private Limited) {'Payl Digital’) and Lazypay Private Ltd {"Lazypay’) pursuant to a

Shara Purchase Agresment (the "Share Purchase Agreement”) in order to simplify existing group structure and unlock value synergies.

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Purchase Agreement, the Group acquired such businesses an December 14, 2023 in axchange for consideration amaunting to INR 8,737.73
comprising cash of INR 768.62 and comganies own shares of IMR 7 960,11,

Group, directly or through |ts subsidiarias, aoquired entities which were ultimatsly controlled by the same parties who also controf the group, both before and after the business.
combination. The pature of these transactions primarily involved the purchasing of the existing shareholders’ equity stake,

As per the guidance avaflable In Appendlx © of the Ind A5 103, these business combinations under common contrel are accounted for sing the pooling of interest mathed.

General nature of transferor « are as

(&) Paysense Services India Private Limited : The business of the Campany is to provide innovative payment and Anancing related services to Indian consumers. The Company
also provides development and maintenance services to the holding company, and deals in Information Technolegy enabled Services.

{b} Payl Fimance (Whally d subsidiary of PayS India} : The Company is a registerad non king finance comp d in the business of providing finance
i.e. business of lending credit by way of personal loan and deferred credit facility for short term duration, The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-
Banking Finance Company {(NBFCY with effect from 26 February 1928,

(<) Wibmo : The Company provides innovative payment and payment security soluttons. The C
it, prepaid solubi and 3 host of merchant sarvices

also pravid fusti ranging from mobile payments, fraud and risk

(d} PaylF Digital : The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing risk-based authenticatlon and payment sacurity services. It also provides solutions ranging from
maobile payments, fraud and risk managamant, prepaid seluttons and a host of merchant services

{e} Lazypay - The business of Company is to provide Buy Now, Pay Later (BMPL) servicas, This enables the customer to spand/purchase products/services and allows merchants to
sall the goads fservices on the credit inanced by the company.

A ing for i C fon under ¢ centrol

Business combinations imvolving antities or businesses under common control are accounted for using the pooling of interest method.

Under poaling of interest method, the 3ssets and Habilitles of the combining entities or businesses are reflected st their carying amounts after making adjustments necessary ko
harmonise the accounting policies, The identity of the reserves is preserved in the same forn in which they appeared in the financial statements of the transferor and the
differance, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additinnal consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amcunt of
share capital of the transferer is transferred to <apital reserve.

C quently, the fi ial infor iost of the Group, includes the financia) information of the businesses transferved by the transferor to the transferee and has
been restated frem the earliest perlod pr ted in the restated lidated fi ial information of the Graup.

{a) Details of ¥ of each companies equity sh ranged ta effect the husiness combination:

Particufars Paysense India Wibmeo Payl Digital Lazypay

(Inc. Payy
Finanga)

Wumber of shares issuad transferor companias (n exchanoed 37.81,957 1.008 14,01,674 5,79,75,394

% of Equity sheres of transferor compantes in exchanged 100% 100% 100% 100%

(b} Details of husiness combinations, carrying value of the assets acquired, liabilities assumed, reserves acquired and harmonized as per the revised accounting
pelicies of the Group, and the r iy capital reserve are given below :
‘Particalars Paysanse Indla Wibmo Payl Cigital Lazypay Teotal

(Induding Payll
Flnancal

Purchase consideration {A) §,690.85 760.16 B43.12 435,62 8,737.73
Aszets and Habilitles taken ower

Assets acquired 8,694.83 1,605.14 1,349.13 1,292,20 12,941.31
Liabitities assumed {1,110.71}) {288.83) [B38.65) {749,811 (2,988.01)
Regerve and surplus acguired {7.562.79) {1,316.21) [498,20) {98.83) {9,466.09)
MNet identiffable assets acquired {B) 21.34 Q.10 12.28 453.50 457,22
Capital Reserve as on Aprdl 01, 2022 {A - B} {6,669.51-] (768,04} (830.83) 17.98 {8,250.51)
Adjustment on account of changa in share capital, assets and resarves 13.17 Q.00 1.74 226,25 241.15
and surplus

Capital Reserve as on March 31, 2023 {6,656.35} (768.04) (829.10} 244,13 {8,009.35)
Adjustment on account of changa in share capital, assets and reserves 332 - .00 0.00 0.00 3.32
and surplus

Capltal Reserve as on March 31, 2024 {5,6_53.03} (768.04) (829,10} 244.13 {8.005.04}
Adjustment on account of change in share capital, assets and resarves * = - = -
and surplus

Capital Reserve as on March 31, 2025 (6,653.03) (766.04) (829,10} 244,13 (8,006.04)




LAlIevonuaUl AUR|g 33| veag sey PIEDS SIML}

= WD 0E 3 00708 FaIMaPs JUaLARY |BY B[P sapinolg Blpul (dnoun} pawn Mengd SUBRNGE ARG
- - 00007 W00 00T SUBINIES AIMNDAS JWAWARD PUE JUAWARD BFAIEAOUL| S3P|A0IY 2] U] Bludig

(REIUT SiRnld 2IRMIOE 3DRISUT S€
=) > Sltn 0ot 00001 s93ruas Aphaay Juswied pue UONEZTUBYINE PISEg-N5H GUIpraey BIpW] UmMOUY ASULCY] PRI Fieapd e |€aBjg nideq
- - WO000T WOG00T “Sa3AIBS fale| y IR S2|BojouyIEL -0 m o s sl v Apewpd pabebuz 210y FRIWIT MEAIA SUGREAGUUT €IPYT VAR
= = %0000t %0000t SANAISSE [TdNG) 420%7 ARd ‘mOb; AN 3PAtd Bipu] PRiWr Bieaprd Avdize]

"WOREIND WUFY WOYS JO) AIPE) 1IPI pRlajap
=, = ShO0 T %00 00T pue uedy [Buosiad 10 ARm Ag 3duedl BuIPlAed 40 SSAUISRG 3 ) pIBeBUa DJEN Bpul palwn aleAlld BIPUT 23UeU|d ndEd
= - 00T 2040001 SIAUNSUDD URIpU] 0] 592|AJ35 PRIE| Burzueuy pue uswded saiescuul 3macad o) BIpu[ PaY|Lu|T FEALY BIPUY SBYMISS SEUASARY
FEOZ "I PR ST0T Tk WIEH
I8 5y 1° Wy

uonedodioaul jo Ajunos
/ssaulsng jo sau|d

o FenAoe [wdipuLy Anma Jo Iwmen
HEeaeu) Suonuca.aou Aq pFy 32043301 diyFIAUMO dnoab oYy Aq PIey 382403U) dIYEIGLME

ssau|sng jo aow(d [edizund Jiayy osie 5| voiesiBad Jo wopeedioau|
Jo Auned oL ~dnosb ayy A pry 5y6ls Bunon 3y sienba play s153.900 diusizume Jo ueiodoud Ju3 pu ‘dnou6 Byl Ag AsaJIp By aue JBU) sadeys A)nba Jo A0S BUIISISUCS [RNdRI BIRUS SARY ATIY TPRARIS SSIAIBLAN SE2)UN "MOJI0 1N 125 M 6207 TIE UMEW 1% SB SIBINSQNS §.anos6 By

IPIEQNS = SR 43410 Uy T it

PAIINLS SFIMIBYIC $SJUN ‘SUSIIW YNT W RUNIIUY
STAT "EE YHRY PAPUS JEIA 33 19) 5 1e35 1 PIIEPIISUS] O} E3JON
PRUWM WEAY Husied nAtg




(ot

([ = [Seeenoozy =R
@ P®auweuy o0

{AlleucnuIU| JUElg YI) URE] SeY EIRTS SIYL)

Teoeers) w001 Tisct SO0 T TETS6E ) W T —ZURLGDE WHB0L le30L
LR A uausnipy 3
(%H97£2) (rrn) YRE b ££°06TT {%TLLT) (L0 22€"E0"T) {%ES piE) pue 13 Aued JFuL
. G - %00°0 - U000 - %0070 SOHERISANS |[2 U] 3531531 BUY||OOUOD-UON
(ES"0S+'T) %Gl EE 847223 %98 L06 [Gere2e't) %bZ EE TE'ZED %S T DUl Qg
uBI910y » e |pi1zqns
GT6E {%16'0) (950} %9522 SLT6E L9%E6'0) A ¢ YLD PEILIT FA8AL SUDIIEADUU] BIBUT NARY
(£0Mb6] BT 2 [woro) Ul (E0w6) WETT 0Z°Ech “H16'E PANLIN #Enllg AedAzey
(£6wLZ'T) WlG 6T 05k (20T E9T) (ES"6LT'1) HBL6T BZ65L'92 WRETLOT P3IUNT @Al BIPU] SBIIAIDS S5URShed
{£7et) st fz6pg) 10°668 (PRI F9eAld UBMYOS FBEISUD SE UMOUY
I (%59 760} HIE'Y t10'g ALY ) PEYW] B18AlId SQET [ENEI) NAeY
7 [CFL ] {gs'1} e 1e £TEY (5T01) SR A %EE B PRALULT EALLY RIDUL 30URLY NAEY
vejpug - Aepisqns
{06 QEL'E} Yabr§ e (zz'z) %688 (R9'BTL T} %ES'EY IT'e15'98 oH0ZLPE FRIWIN 2)BALY SUMNARY NARY
ey
T Baraa 00|
S50 pue Jyosd ISEY JIU
JUnGLY @ajsuDMIdWos je1oy FYTL TR BASURYIsdwWoT Jaylo Junsuy wunewy e
POLEROSURS JO B SY PYER|I0SIEA B A T¥ = PRER[[ISUDD JO 54 T PR P OSROD p By AJaua ayl yo awey
DSNT dajiuSyBIEWwa S [T10L Uy uhnl...ﬁl EI =T U_-_!IE WOy S0 ) F_h_.ﬁ EEOT v._.__nulu._usn uy u.lrm .Tu.m.l_.m.nu__. ) ST S TEFGL) EDESE joy
PLOT "TE YIMEW PAPUD Jedh ayy oy
Ticagezl 00T (] %001 [T ] 00T B9 EEL 5E [T =304,
OF 20P'SE (%E9°€T0T) (6192} %L L2 65924 '5E (902°g2vT) (5¢'650"68} {61652} pUE YoREUILIE Auedion. h.:.m
- %00 ] %0070 3 450070 e gse'Ty (%/5°E) SPUBIPISANS [1€ U I53421U] BUJ||05U03-U0N
STEST (%0p'9) £€°4T {%£6°282) £6'THI (H2L5) 81262 %STZ “IUL CLLGIA
ub[Ioy - AJR|PISQNS
- %000 . %000 . 00 S6'€22°7 Y%TE'G {dnoua) PRI ages Suonniog F1ebpu)y
BT'SL {9k 17E) BEY (4566°1Z) +3°9L (&) w9 20T YWbE'0 P FIBAL 4 SUCIEARUUL BIPUT AR
[fi a3 4] Yt 3% [ aka] (gatttd W05y Fag -t St Pl EA4 ABDAZET
{12418°1} YD1 EL [£344 (9551102} (Z00Es’T) Yotd €L 09°L80'FE %ae'96 PRI ALY BIPU] SIHAIRS 25UIsAey
89'85T lore} 80691 LGESLL (PRI :9BAL BURMYOS SBEISUT S8 UmOUy
(38E 9} WER L (%25'9) HET'E AuRuiiod) pagiwr s1eald e [enbig nieg
{TE" w20 %TLLT (00°Ed %D Gb (1€ 15} %90'£2 0°665°6T T%E9°55 Pl 2L EIPUT DIUEUL] NARY
uejpuy « AIE|p)SgNG
(69 1R9"5E) %99 bELT (59'g) %0 65 (0'8£5'5E) WG HELT 15°0L0°%9 WA5 06T PaY w7 23ealld RUaARY NAed
Juaded
ETTTL =T IR
$50| puR Jyasd Tty Jau
JUNO0 Wy BAISUIYDIAWOD j230Y UMY FAISUBYDILWOD JBYYO 111, BATTY) JuUnoung
SRGEUOS J3 9 Sy N N (I3 50 05, Sy PRIBPIOSUDD JO A Sy PIIEPHOSUCT JU op Sy AUz 3y Jo dwen
MUEIUL] BAFUSQIAdRDT [B10) W) aIEyS BLIDOUT aAsUBgR 0T Foun __._-_!-q_.-.m SEO] PUm J0R B) BIEhS [ L b ] wﬂ.v_—._ [Sriald u-w_

STOT 1€ YDEK PIPUD Jed4 23 Aoy
SOLARIPISANS JO 303dSII UY JAX ANPAUIS A paINbIL LOIEMIOIL RUCRIPPY B
PRIILYS IS|MID YD SSOJUN ‘SUOJ|[IW NI U] Sjunowyy

SZ0Z 'TE UMEW PIPUD JRDA DU JO) FIUIWDIRIS [BPUBUY PRIER(OSU0] OF SIION
Pajjuim B3RAld Bjuowied nAey



PaylJ Payments Private Limite
Notes ta € lidated Fii ial Staty ts for the year ended March 31, 2025
Amounts In INR millisns, unless otherwise stated

a%

EQ

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

(i

(ii}

(th)

(1)
¥

{vi)

[wit)

(vl
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Relationship with struck off campanies

A ppdacch JI SRTE

Hame ol strugk off comeany Hatwre of iransactions Tranzacilens during the year Balznce guiztanding Relatianship
D20 Ecosystem Prvale Limited Reévenue .00 - Merchant
As ap Herch 20, 2024

Mame of struck off company Matura of bransactions Trangections during ko yekr Malsnce ol cbanding Relalbnnship
Chicutts Electronlcs Revenue Q.80 Herchant

*Transaction amount s appearing to be ¥ 4,00 Lakhs due to rounding off threshold,

Transfer te Merchant Protection Fund

During the year the Group has trensferred certain Merchants liability amounting to INR 945.7 from Nodal Account to current account/ Fixed deposit. Qut of these Certain balances amounting to TNR 422.8 has
heen o d as Legally extingutshad and fere has been rac a5 other operating revenue, A5 per the group's Intarnal polictes the amount ransferred in Bhege current 2ccounts are eammarked for
settlement of potential merchant clzims if and when such caims may arise. The balance of such earmarked bank accounis are: a.) Amount in current Account [NR 33.5 b.} Amount in Deposit with ariginal
maturity of [ess than 3 month INR S02.7 and ¢,) Amaunt In Fixed depesits with ariginal maturity more than 3 months INR 4123,

Ind AS & Accounting Policies, Change in accounting estimates and errors
Duting FY 2024-25, the Group has revised its estimation criteria for detenmining the behavioursl life of its custemer contracts, This ravision canstitutas a change |n accaunting estimate in aceordance with the
pravisiens of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS B) Accounting Policies, Change in accounting estimates and grrars,

The change has been made to better raflect the pracessing fees Income and |ts cost of acqulsition on the basis of customer contracts. As a result of this change In estlmate, the profit before tax for the current
vear has increased by INR §5.1B. This change has been accounted for prospectively in the financizl statements for the year ended March 31, 2025,

Lang- term contracts
The Group did not fave any long-term contracts Including derlvative contracts for which there were any materfal foresesable fosses ather than disclosad In Note 24,

Investor Education and Protection Fund
There were no amoutnts which were required to be ed to the | tor Education and Protection Fund by the Group.,

Going concarn Asdesdmant
The Intermedlate Holding Company has confinmed te provide finandal support to fully suppart the gperating, [westing and financing actvities of the Group, As a result, the financlal statements are pregared

based on going cancern assumption,

Tie Indian Paritament kas approved the Cade on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the o ibutions by the Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity, The Ministry of Labour ang Employment has
released draft rutes for the Code on Socizl Security, 2020 on Movember 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stake holders which are under active consideration by the Ministey, The Company wil] sscess
the impact and its eveluation ence the subject rules are notified and will give apprapriate npact in its finandzl statements in the period In which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules te
detenmine the Anancial Impact are publfished,

Events occurring after the raparting periad
In response to the application filed by Payl Payments Pvt, Lid. with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), on 13 May 2025, the RBI issued Anal suthorization to the Company Lo pperate a5 an onfing Payment
Aggregstor. There have been ne gther materizl subseguent events between the balance sheet date and the date of signing this report.

During the year, the Company received cartain allegations through its “speak up” channe! which are being investigated s per management’s intemal policies. As on the date of Issuance of these financial
L these long are substantlaily ¢ leted, 2nd the has concluded that these allegations are not expected to have a matertal effect on the Company’s financial ar its

inteimal cantral assessment.

Other Statutory digclosures

The Group does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accgunts that has been sumenderad or disclosed 35 mcome duning the year in tha tax assessments under the Incoma Tax Act,
1961 {such as, search or Survey or sny other relevant provistens of the Incame Tax Act, 1981,

There are no funds which have been sdvanced or lpaned or invested {either from bormowed funds or share promium or any other saurces or &ind of funds) by the Group to or In any other persons or entities,
inciuding forglgn entitles {“Intermedlanes™), with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwtse, that the Intermedtary shall:

a) directly ar indlrectly lend or tnvest in other persons or entities i B in apy ver ["Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or an behall of the Group or

b} provide any gquarsntee, security or the like o or on behalf of the Ultimate Benefigizries,

There are no funds which have been received by the Group from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recarded in wriling or otherwise, that

the Group shall:
a) directly or Indlrectly, lend or (Rvest In sther persons or entlitles Identlfied in any h ("L Beneficlartes™) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or
bl provide any guarantee, securty or the like from or on behalf of the Utimate Beneficiaries.

The Group nas not traded or Invested In Crypto currency or Wirtual Currency during the finandal year or prior yesrs. Further, the Group has not received sny deposits or sdvances from any persen for the
purpose of trading or irvesting in Crypto Cumency or Virtual Currency,

The Group has complled with the number of l2yers prescribed ynder sectton 2(87) of the Compames Act, 2013 read with Cornpanies (Restriction an number of Layers) Rules, 2017
The Group does not have any Benaml property snd ng procesdings have peen [nitlated ¢r pending agalnst the Cermpany far holding any Benarml property, under the Benaml Transactions (Probiblttons} Act,
1988 {45 of 1988) and the rutes made thereunder,

The Group dees Aot have any charge which is yet o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

The Group has not been declared a “Wilkul Befzulter by any bank or Anancial Institutron {85 defined under the Compsnies Adt, 2013) or consertium thereof, In ac¢cordance with the gquidelines an witful
defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

The group has not revalued its property, plant and equipmment {including right-of-use assets} or intangible assets or hoth during the cumrent or previous year,

{This space has been left blenk Intentonaliy)

Il: Cherlered
o Acsountanis
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£9 As per MCA notification dated 05 August 2022, the Central Government has notified the Companies {Accounts) Feurth Amendment Rules, 2022, As per the amended rules, the Group are required to maintaln
back-up of the books of sccount and other ralevant books and paper in electronle made that should be accessible In Indla at af) the time, Ales, the companies are required to create backup of accounts an
seryers physteally located In Indla on a dally basis. The management of the parent company and its ies has tntatned proper books of account and the backup is kept on a dally basis of such of
books of accounts maintained in electronic mode in & server physicatly located in India except for-

a) for (WS which was uged thraughout the year for which the server are maintatned in India but Backup is kept on weekly basis,
in ralation to comaoltance with the reauirement of the audit trail. refer note 60 to the finandal statements.

60 Awdit Tradl

The Parent Company {Payl Payments Private Limited) has used accounting software's For maintaining its books of sccount for the year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recording sudit trail {edit
log) facllity and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded In the softwara excapt that:

records of revenue and cost, the accounting software did not have the

a} In respect of accaunting softwara (“Transaction Platform- Biz, Admin Panel, Redshift and Sal ce™) used for Fled
audit beall feature enabled throughout the year;
b} In respect of accounting software ["SAP S4HANAT) which was used for malntaining 2ccounting records refated to all general ledgers, the accounting seftware did ot have the audte trzll featura enabled for

the said peried at the application level,

Further, no instances of audit trail feature belng tampered with has been noticed In respect of the accounting software For the period far which the audit trail feature was operating,

Addidonally, the audlt trall that was enabled and operated For the year ended March 31, 2024, has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requlr for record r

Following is the audit trail for iarigs comp

Subsidiary 1:

The Subsidiary C. [Pay Servlces India Private Limited} has used accounting softwares for maintaintrg its books of account for the year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording
audit teail fedit log) faclllt\,r and tie same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that:

a} In respect of accounting software {"Pscore™) which was used for malntalning accounting records related te malntenance of lvan origimation by the Company, did not have the audit trall feature anabled
during the period starting from Aprl §1, 2024 to May 0B, 2024 at the application fevel.

b} In respect of accounting softwara ("Payments") which was used for maintaining accounting records refated te collections made by the Company, dld not fave the audit trail feature enabled during the
period starting from Aprl 01, 2034 to March 46, 2025 at the application level

c} In respect of accounttng software ("SAP S4HANA") which was used for malntaining zccounting records related o sl general ledgers, the accounting software did not have the audlt krall fgature enabled for
the said period at the application level,

Further, no instances of audit trail feature being tampered with has been noticed in respect of the accounting software for the period For which the audit trail feature was opersting,

As zudit trail feature was not enabled for the year anded March 31, 2024, reparting under Ruta 11 {g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditars) Rules, 2014 on praseryatlon of audit trall as per the statutary
requir far racord ian is nat appllcable,
Subsidiary 2:

The Subsidiary Company (Lazypay Povate Limited) hag used accounting software's for maintaining its bosks of account for the year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording sudit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all retevant transactlons recorded in the saftware except that:

a) In respact of accounting software [“SAP S34HANA") which was used for malntaining accountlng records related to all general ladgers, the accounting software did not have the audlt trail feature enabled for
the said period 3t the spplication tevel,

Further, no instances of audit trail feature being tampered with has been noticed in respect of the accounting software for the period for which the audit trail feature was operating,

Additionaliy, the aydit trail that was enabled and aperated for the year ended March 11, 2024, has beon preserved by the Company az per the statutory reguirements far record retentlon.
Subsidiary 3:

The Subsidlary Company [Payl Finance India Private Limited) has used acoounting software for malntalning its books of accaunt for the year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audtt trall
{edit log) facility and the same has operatad thraughout the year for all ratavant transactions recorded in the software excapt that:

aj) the accounting seftwares ("Flnflux") used for maintaining accounting records of revenue and SMB [pan balances, did not have the audit trail feature enabled throughout the year;

b} the accounting software ("Pscora™) which was used for maintaining accounting records refated to maeintenance of lesn origingtion by the Company, did not have the audit trail feature enabled during the
period starting frem April 01, 2024 to May 03, 2024 at the applicatian leval,

€} the accounting software [*Payments") which was used for maintaining accounting records releted to collections made by the Company, did not have the audit trail feature enabled during the period starting
from Aprll 01, 2024 to March 06, 2025 at the application lavel

) the accounting software ("SAP S4HANA™) which was used for maintaining ac¢ounting records ralated te af] general ledgers, did not have the audit trail feature enabled for the sald penad at the application
level,

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of sudit trail feature being tampered with tn respect of the stcounting software for the period for which the 2udit tra] feature was
gperatking.

AdditioRallv. the sudit trall that was enzbled and operated for the vear ended March 31, 2024. has been preserved by the Comoanv 25 ger the statubory reauirements for record retention
Subsldiary 4:

The Subsidisry Company {Payll Digital Labs Private Limltad) has used arcaunting software’s for raintalning its baoks of account for the year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recerding audit tradl
{edit tng) Fcifity and the same has operated throughout the year far all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that:

a) In respect of accounttng software {TIV5™) used for malntalning accounting records of revenite, the accounting seftware 4id not have the audit trall feature enabled throughaut the year;

b In respect of accounting softwara {(*SAP S4AHANA) which was uzed for matntaining accaunling records refated ta ajl general ledgers, the accounting software did not have the audit trail feature enzbled for
the cald perind at the application level.

Further, no instances af sudit trail feature being tampered with has been noticed in respect of the accounting software for the penod fur which the audit trail feature was aperatng.

Additlenally, the audit trail that was enzbled and operated for the vear ended March 31, 2024, has bean preserved by the Company 2s per the statutory requirernents for regord retention,
Subsidiary 5

The Subsidiary Company (Payl india ion Private Limited) has used accounting software's for maintaining its books of account for the year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recarding audit
trail {edik log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year far af| relevant ransactions recorded In the software except that:

a) In raspect of accounting software {"Realtime score provider dashboard and Inguiry DB") used for matntaintng accounting reconds of revenue, the accounting software did not have the audlt tral] featurs
enabled throughout the year;

b) In respect of accounting software (SAP S4HAMA) which was uscd for maintaining accounting records related to all generzl ledgers, the accounting software did not have the audit trail feature enabled for
the said period at the applicatlon level,

Further, no instances of audit trail fzature being tampered with has been noticed in respect of the acceunting software for the perod far which the sudit traf] feature was operating.

Additionatly, the audit trail that was enabled and operated for the year ended March 31, 2024, has been preserved by the Company a5 per the statutery requir for recerd
Subsidiary 6: "
The idizry C y (Mind fuati Privata Limited} has used accaunting softwara {“Tally") far maintaining its books of account far the year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recording

audit trail {edit iog) fadhty and the same has oparated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit, we did net come across any instance of sudit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the acceunting software for the perigd for which the audit trail feature was
aperaking.

Additienatly, the zudit trail that was enabled 3nd operated for the vear ended biarch 31, 2024, has been preserved by the Company a5 per the statutory requirements for record retention,

{This space has been left blank intentionally)




Payl Payments Prlvate Limited
Motes ta © d Fli {2l for the year endad March 31, 2625
Amounts In THR millong, urlezs otharwliss stated

61 Frevious y2ar's 3mounts have been regrouped and redassifled to make therm comparable with turreat year's amounts, whare necessary,

82 These Anandal stak Were app d and adop by the Beard of Olrectnrs of the Company In thelr meeting dated June 13, 2025, and ara subject to [dac’s app. 1 at the forth g Anntral
Generl Maeting of shareholders.
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an Mukerjee

Charterad

Accountanis




FORM NO. AOC-1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of su bsidiaries or associate companies or Joint ventures

Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

PART A: SUBSIDIARIES
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. Lakhs)

Sr. Particulars PayU LazyPay PaySense PayU Digital | PayU India Wibmo Inc.* Mindgate
No. Finance Private Services Private Innovations Solutions
India Limited India Private | Limited Private Limited Pvt Ltd.*#
Private Limited (Formerly (formerly known
Limited known as as PayU India
(Step-down Enstage Settlement and
subsidiary) Software Processing
Private Private Limited)
Limited)
1. The date since when subsidiary was acquired 14-12-2023 14-12-2023 | 14-12-2023 14-12-2023 29-04-2022 29-12-2023 20-03-2025
2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, | From 1st April | From 1st From 1st April | From 1st April | From 1st April 2024 | From 1st April From 1st April
if different from the holding company's | 2024 to 31st April 2024 2024 to 31st 2024 to 31st to 31st March 2025 | 2024 to 31st 2024 to 31st
reporting period March 2025 to 31st March 2025 March 2025 March 2025 March 2025
March 2025
3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on | N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A USD N/A
the last date of the relevant financial year in the Balance Sheet
case of foreign subsidiaries. rate- Rs. 85.46
Profit & Loss
rate- Rs 84.61
4. Share capital 13,048.28 6,797.54 519.17 140.19 5.00 1.00 120.00
5. Reserves and surplus 1,82,044.65 1,844.20 3,40,357.35 11,395.46 1,197.28 7,920.82 20,312.22
6. Total assets 5,92,307.68 9,746.56 3,65,804.19 18,821.80 4,238.96 8,765.06 33,608.13
7i Total Liabilities 3,96,314.75 1,104.82 24,027.67 7,286.15 3,036.68 843.26 13,175.91
8. Investments (excluding Investments - - - 0.03 - - -
made in subsidiaries)
9. Turnover 1,16,382.07 4,781.33 14,775.85 19,843.62 6,795.78 6,418.90 -
10. Profit/(Loss) before taxation (6,760.49) (1,117.32) (18,300.24) 1,630.81 913.73 1,113.77 -
11 Provision for taxation - - = = 145.29 (305.56) -
12, Profit/(Loss) after taxation (6,760.49) (1,117.32) (18,300.24) 1,630.81 768.44 1,419.33 -
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Sr. Particulars PayU LazyPay PaySense PayU Digital | PayU India Wibmo Inc.” Mindgate
No. Finance Private Services Private Innovations Solutions
India Limited India Private | Limited Private Limited Pvt Ltd.*#
Private Limited (Formerly (formerly known
Limited known as as PayU India
(Step-down Enstage Settlement and
subsidiary) Software Processing
Private Private Limited)
Limited)
13. Proposed Dividend - - - - - - E
14. Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100 100 100 100 100 100 70

* Unaudited Financial Statements are considered for Consolidation.

# Figures of Mindgate Solutions Private Limited are as per their consolidated financial statements which also includes its share in s

Solutions FZ LLC-UAE", *Mindgate Solutions UK Ltd" and “Mindgate Solutions Inc USA”".

Notes:

1. All subsidiaries of the Company have commenced commercial operations.
2. No subsidiary was liquidated or sold during the year.

PART B: ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Not Applicable

For and on behalf of board of directors of PayU Payments Private Limited

Anirban Mukerjee

Executive Director & CEOQ

DIN: 07157585
Place: Mumbai

Date: June 1y, 202¢ .

Arvirmd Agarwal
Executive Director & CFO

DIN: 02175753
Place: Mumbai

Date: J‘umel_%, 2029,
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ubsidiaries ‘Mindgate Pte Ltd’. *Mindgate

()

Dimple Mehta
Company Secretary

ISCI: F12560
Place: Mumbai

Date: J“up\t 12, 20245
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